

















































































































Cash flow

The primary cash generation focus of group management is on the
percentage of operating profit converted into cash. From 2007, the
group’s target conversion rate was raised from 80% to 85%. Operating
cash flow, as defined for management purposes, was as follows:

2009 2008
£m £m

PBITA 500.3 | 4150
Less share of profit from associates (1.2) 34
PBITA before share of profit from associates
(Group PBITA) 499.1 411.6
Depreciation and amortisation of intangible assets
other than acquisition-related 136.2 [16.1
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment (0.3) 2.1
Movement in working capital and provisions (15.4) (153)
Net cash flow from capital expenditure (169.7) (161.3)
Operating cash flow 449.9 | 3532
Operating cash flow as a percentage of group PBITA|  90% 85%

Capital expenditure relative to the depreciation charge can vary from
year to year due to the timing of asset replacements. It was 125% of
depreciation in 2009, compared to 139% in 2008. Overall operating
cash generation for the year was good, as a result of the maintenance

of financial discipline across the organisation.

The management operating cash flow calculation is reconciled to

the net cash from operating activities as disclosed in accordance

with IAS7 Cash Flow Statements as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m

Cash flow from operating activities (IAS 7 definition)| 509.2 | 373.0
Net cash flow from capital expenditure (169.7) (161.3)
Add-back cash flow from discontinued operations 12.7 272
Add-back additional retirement benefit contributions |~ 29.9 323
Add-back tax paid 67.8 82.0
Operating cash flow (G4S definition) 449.9 3532

Adjusted EPS was 20.2p,
an increase of 22% on
l6.6p for 2008
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The additional retirement benefit payments in 2008 included a
one-off payment of £54m in respect of the acquired GSL scheme.

The group’s free cash flow, as defined by management, is analysed

as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m

Operating cash flow 449.9 | 3532

Net interest paid (86.7) (80.0)

Tax paid (67.8) (82.0)

New finance leases 9.7), (71
Free cash flow 275.7 174.1

Free cash flow is reconciled to the total movement in net debt as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m

Free cash flow 275.7 |74.1
Cash flow from discontinued operations (12.7) (272
Additional retirement benefit contributions (29.9) (323
Net cash outflow on acquisitions (153.5) (629.7)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from disposals (9.5) 311
Net cash flow from associates 2.4 12.2
Dividends paid to minority interests (18.0) (119)
Share issues less share purchases (7.1)) 2680
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent 94.2)] (750)
Net cash flow from hedging financial instruments (10.2), (659)
Movement in net debt in the year (57.0) (356.6)
Foreign exchange translation adjustments to net debt |  (28.7) (186.2)
Net debt at | January (1,347.7) (804.9)
Net debt at 3| December (1,433.4) (1,347.7)

Net debt represents the group’s total borrowings less cash, cash
equivalents and liquid investments. The components of net debt

are detailed in note 39 on page 105.

Operating cash flow was
£449.9 million

profit was 90%

Operating cash flow as a
percentage of operating
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Financing and treasury activities

The group’s treasury function is responsible for ensuring the availability
of cost-effective finance and for managing the group’s financial risk arising
from currency and interest rate volatility and counterparty credit.
Treasury is not a profit centre and is not permitted to speculate in
financial instruments. The treasury department’s policies are set by

the board. Treasury is subject to the controls appropriate to the risks

it manages. These risks are discussed in note 33 on pages 95 to 97.

Financing

The group’s funding position is strong, with sufficient headroom against
available committed facilities and very little debt maturing before 2012.

The group’s primary source of finance is a £1.1bn multi-currency
revolving credit facility provided by a consortium of lending banks
at a margin of 0.225% over Libor and maturing on 28 June 2012.

The group also has US$550m in financing from the private placement
of unsecured senior loan notes on | March 2007, maturing at various
dates between 2014 and 2022 and bearing interest at rates between
5.77% and 6.06%. The fixed interest rates payable have been swapped
into floating rates for the term of the notes, at an average margin

of 0.60% over Libor.

On 15 July 2008, the group completed a further $514m and £69m
private placement of unsecured senior loan notes, maturing at various
dates between 2013 and 2020 and bearing interest at rates between
6.09% and 7.56%. The proceeds of the issue were used to reduce
drawings against the revolving credit facility. $265m of the US dollar
receipts have been swapped into sterling for the term of the notes.

On 9 March 2009, the group obtained a BBB credit rating from Standard
& Poor's. This credit rating supported the group’s inaugural transaction

in the public bond market, a £350m note issued on 13 May 2009 bearing
an interest rate of 7.75% and maturing in 2019.

At 31 December 2009, the group had other short-term committed
facilities of £45m and uncommitted facilities of £515m.

The group’s net debt at 3|1 December 2009 of £1,433.4m represented a
gearing of 99%. The group headroom at 3| December 2009 was £614.7m.
The group has sufficient capacity to finance current investment plans.

The group obtained
a BBB rating from
Standard & Poor’s
in March 2009

The group's headroom
at 31 December 2009
was £614.7 million

Interest rates

The group’s investments and borrowings at 31 December 2009 were,
with the exception of the issue of private placement notes in July 2008
and public notes in May 2009, at variable rates of interest linked to
Libor and Euribor; with the group’s exposure being predominantly to
interest rate risk in US dollar and euro. The group’s interest risk policy
requires treasury to fix a proportion of this exposure on a sliding scale
utilising interest rate swaps. The maturity of these interest rate swaps
at 31 December 2009 was limited to five years. The market value of
the Loan Note-related pay-variable receive-fixed swaps outstanding
at 31 December 2009, accounted for as fair value hedges, was a gain
of £39.0m. The market value of the pay-fixed receive-variable swaps
and the pay-fixed receive-fixed cross-currency swaps outstanding at
31 December 2009, accounted for as cash flow hedges, was a gain

of £8.7m.

Foreign currency

The group has many overseas subsidiaries and associates denominated

in various currencies. Treasury policy is to manage significant translation
risks in respect of net operating assets using foreign currency
denominated loans, where possible. The group no longer uses foreign
exchange contracts to hedge the residual portion of net assets not
hedged by way of loans. The group believes cash flow should not be put
at risk by these instruments in order to preserve the carrying value of net
assets, given the changed liquidity environment following the global credit
crisis. At 31 December 2009, the group'’s US dollar and euro net assets
were approximately 75% and 87% respectively hedged by foreign
currency loans.

Exchange differences on the translation of foreign operations included

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income amount to a loss
of £64.7m (2008: gain of £100.9m). These differences are net of a £28.7m
loss (2008: £186.2m) on the retranslation of net debt and a £10.2m cash
outflow (2008: £65.9m) from forward exchange contracts.

The market value of forward contracts outstanding at 31 December
2009 was a loss of £0.Im.


http:1,433.4m

Cash management

To assist the efficient management of the group's interest costs and its
short-term deposits, overdrafts and revolving credit facility drawings,
the group operates a global cash management system. At 31 December
2009, more than |10 group companies participated in the cash pool.
Debit balances of £146.9m and credit balances of £147.5m were held
within the cash pool. The group met the conditions of IFRS allowing
balances within this cash pool to be offset for reporting purposes.

Retirement benefit obligations

The group’s primary defined benefit retirement schemes are those
operated in the UK, but it also operates such schemes in a number

of countries, particularly in Europe and North America. The latest full
actuarial assessments of the UK schemes were carried out at 31 March
2007 in respect of the Group 4 scheme (approximately 8,000 members),
at 5 April 2006 in respect of the Securicor scheme (approximately
20,000 members) and at 31 March 2005 in respect of the GSL scheme
(approximately 2,000 members) acquired during the prior year. These
assessments and those of the group’s other schemes have been updated
to 31 December 2009. The group’s funding shortfall on the valuation
basis specified in IASI9 Employee Benefits was £328m before tax or
£236m after tax (2008: £286m and £206m respectively).

The valuation of gross liabilities increased during 2009 largely due to

a decrease in the appropriate AA corporate bond rate in the UK from
6.3% to 5.7%, and compounded by an increase in inflation from 3.1%

to 3.6% in the UK. However, the value of the assets held in the funds
increased by £143m which helped to partly offset the increase in liabilities
during 2009.

The group believes that the short-term volatility in reported retirement
benefit obligations, in response to movements in asset prices and financial
circumstances, is of limited relevance in the context of liabilities which are
exceptionally long term in nature and furthermore that, over the long
term, investment returns on the retirement benefit scheme assets will be
sufficient to fund retirement benefit obligations. However, in recognition
of the regulatory obligation upon pension fund trustees to address
reported deficits if they arise, the group anticipates that additional cash
contributions will continue to be made at least at a level similar to that

in 2009. The three schemes in the UK have combined under one trustee
body with effect from | January 2009 and will all be formally actuarially
assessed at 5 April 2009.

The group’s funding shortfall for its defined benefit retirement schemes
was £236m after tax.
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Corporate governance

The group’s policies regarding risk management and corporate
governance are set out in the Corporate Governance Statement
on pages 47 to 49.

Going concern

The directors are confident that, after making enquiries and on the
basis of current financial projections and available facilities, they have
a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources

to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.

Trevor Dighton
Chief financial officer
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Group principal risks

Our risk assessment and
management process

The group operates around 150 businesses spread
over more than |10 countries and across a range

of product areas. Most of the risks identified below
are market specific and so the diversity of the group’s
operations means any particular issue should have

a limited impact.

The group operates a management structure that

is appropriate to the scale and breadth of its activities,
and the internal audit department operates under

a wide remit to ensure strict adherence to group
authorisation procedures and control standards

as outlined here.

Risk Management Process
Audit Committee overview

Risk Committees

Group Risks identified
and escalated based
on materiality
Management meetings
Regions

(and clusters)

Company
(and business functions)

Risk reporting system

Risk and potential impact

Price competition

The security industry comprises a number of very competitive markets. In
particular, manned security markets can be fragmented with relatively low
economic barriers to entry and the group competes with a wide variety of
operators of varying sizes. Actions taken by the group’s competitors may place
pressure upon its pricing, margins and profitability.

Major changes in market dynamics

Such changes in dynamics could include new technologies, government legislation
or customer consolidation and could, particularly if rapid or unpredictable, impact
the group’s revenues and profitability.

Security can be a high profile industry. There is a wide and ever-changing variety
of regulations applicable to the group’s businesses across the world, with a recent
development being an increase of restriction of foreign ownership in some
countries. Failure, or an inability, to comply with such regulations may adversely
affect the group’s revenues and profitability.

Cash losses

The group is responsible for the cash held on behalf of its customers. Increases in
the value of cash lost through criminal attack may increase the costs of the
group’s insurance. Were there to be failures in the control and reconciliation
processes surrounding customer cash these could also adversely affect the
group’s profitability.

Onerous contractual obligations

Should the group commit to sales contracts specifying disadvantageous pricing
mechanisms, unachievable service levels or excessive liability, it could impact its
margins and profitability.

Defined benefit pension schemes

A prolonged period of poor asset returns and/or unexpected increases in
longevity could require increases in the current levels of additional cash
contributions to defined benefit pension schemes, which may constrain the
group’s ability to invest in acquisitions or capital expenditure, adversely impacting
its growth and profitability.

Inappropriate sourcing of staff

The group's greatest asset is its large and committed workforce. However, were
the group to source inappropriate staff, whether as permanent employees,
temporary workers or sub-contractors, the result could be detrimental to the
group’s reputation and could adversely affect the group’s growth and profitability.

Poor operational service delivery

Should the group fail to meet the operational requirements of its customers
it could impact its reputation, contract retention and growth.

Financing

If, due to adverse financial market conditions, insufficient or only very costly
financial funding were available, the group might not be in a position to
implement its strategy or invest in acquisitions or capital expenditure, adversely
impacting its growth and profitability. This includes possible bank bankruptcy, loss
of headroom particularly from movement of exchange rates, unavailability of bank,
bond or other sources of financing and downgrading of the G4S credit rating.
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— Group management continually monitors competitor activity to ensure that — The group will be undertaking a project to refine the customer
the group can react quickly to any competitor actions which would directly ~ measurement system during early 2010 which should further enhance
affect the group’s resullts. competitor analysis.

— All business plans and strategic planning includes competitor and SWOT
analysis and the pricing strategy for contracts is managed through business
unit and regional price approval levels. Significant price reductions require
group capex committee approval.

— The group performs strategic and business planning at group, division, — The group also monitors local markets and engages with local
region and business unit level to ensure that specific local regulation governments around the world involving the group legal department
requirements are met. Monthly business unit trading reviews ensure that where appropriate to ensure adherence to regulatory requirements,
market changes are identified quickly and actions taken to maintain to identify any restrictions that could adversely impact the group'’s
performance and ensure that business objectives continue to be achieved. activities and take appropriate actions.

— The group has formal systems and policies in place documenting physical — In addition there is regular reporting of any cash losses/attacks and audits
security procedures and security directives and adheres to a security of security are performed in branches.

framework to help reduce the risk of cash losses. — Recently the group has implemented a number of actions around recruiting

— The group also operates captive insurance business units to mitigate against  regional cash reconciliation managers to increase the frequency and profile
the financial risk of losses and attacks. of cash reconciliations throughout the group.

— All transactions are subject to strict authorisation limits and regular
reconciliations of cash balances are performed for both cash in ATMs
and cash held on customers’ behalf.

— Any new contracts entered into are subject to defined approval process — The group maintains a contract risk database and management system to
criteria. Standard contracts with standard terms and conditions are used monitor the ongoing risks involved. The contract management system was
where possible. Non-standard contracts which expose the group to subject to a major upgrade during 2009.

material risk (e.g. unlimited liability) are subject to risk assessment and
depending on the level of risk exposure are referred for regional and
group legal department review.

— The performance of the group’s pension schemes and deficit funding plans  — The results of these reviews are discussed with the board and appropriate

are reviewed regularly by both the group and the trustees of the schemes action is taken. Please refer to note 34 to the group accounts for further
taking actuarial and investment advice as necessary. details of the group’s retirement benefit plans and upcoming valuations.

— The group has standard recruitment policies and procedures in place — Steps have been taken to further tighten controls and increase independent
to ensure that only appropriate staff are recruited. These include formal monitoring of business unit compliance with these standards. For 2010
vetting procedures carried out during application with formal sign-off that onwards a formal business unit compliance review by regional human

the group standards have been met before a new staff member; temporary  resources management has been instigated.

worker or sub-contractor is able to commence work. — Particular attention is given to acquired businesses to ensure that they meet

the group standards.
— Group-wide operational procedures and standards are in place and
enforced in all business units. There is also a robust supervision structure
which allows management to monitor the progress and delivery of the
group’s contracts and customer relationships.
— The group treasury department monitors and follows policies to mitigate ~ — The group’s historical main source of funding has been a revolving bank
against liquidity, refinancing and currency/exchange rate risks. Refer to facility of £1.1bn that is due for renewal in 2012. Recently the group has
note 33 to the group accounts for more details. sought to diversify its sources of finance by issuing a number of private

placement bonds both in the US and more recently in the UK.

These have spread out the refinancing requirements over the next ten
years to ensure the group has access to sufficient funds to meet its business
and strategic plans.
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Board of directors

O AIf Duch-Pedersen (3)

Chairman
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Alf was appointed to the board in May 2004 and became its chairman

in June 2006. He is also chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Alf’'s career has involved managing multinational companies based in
both Scandinavia and the UK, and covering a range of industries from
manufacturing and financial services to food and food products. He was
president and chief executive of Tryg-Baltica A/S from 1991 to 1997 and
fulfilled the same roles at Danisco A/S from 1997 to 2006. He is now
chairman of the board of Danske Bank A/S.

O Mark Seligman (54)
Non-executive director

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee

Mark was appointed to the board in January 2006 and is the chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Having qualified as a chartered accountant with Price Waterhouse,
Mark spent 12 years with SG Warburg before joining BZW in 1995.
Then, following the takeover of BZW, he became Head of UK
Investment Banking at CSFB and subsequently deputy chairman of
CSFB Europe. In 2003, he became chairman of UK Investment Banking
for CSFB and in 2005 became a senior advisor to Credit Suisse Europe.
He is an alternate member of the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers,
chairman of the Industrial Development Advisory Board and

a non-executive director of BG Group plc.

@ Thorleif Krarup (57)

Non-executive director
Member of the Audit Committee

Thorleif was appointed to the board in May 2004 and is a member
of the Audit Committee. A former chairman of TDC (Tele Danmark
Corporation) and former group chief executive of Nykredit A/S,
Unibank A/S and Nordea AB, Thorleif is currently chairman of Exiqon
A/S, Sport One Danmark A/S and Nutri Pharma ASA. He is also
deputy chairman of H. Lundbeck A/S, ALK-Abello A/S and LFI A/S
and a director of the Lundbeck Foundation.
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O Mark Elliott (60)

Chief executive

Non-executive director

Nick was appointed to the board in May 2004 and was the company’s
deputy chief executive and chief operating officer, before becoming
chief executive in July 2005. Nick joined Securicor in 1985 as a projects
accountant. In 1996, he was appointed managing director of Securicor
Cash Services (UK) and became chief executive of the security division
of Securicor in 1999. He was appointed to the board of Securicor plc
in 2000 and became its chief executive in January 2002. Nick is also

a non-executive director of Arriva plc.

© Trevor Dighton (50)

Member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Mark was appointed to the board in September 2006 and is a member
of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees. Based in the USA,
he worked for IBM between 970 and 2008, having occupied a number
of senior management positions including General Manager, IBM Europe,
Middle East and Africa, where he was responsible for the company’s
operations in more than 110 countries. Mark is now the non-executive
chairman of QinetiQ Group PLC and a non-executive director of Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier Group plc, a member of the supervisory
board of Reed Elsevier NV and chairman of Reed Elsevier's remuneration
committee. He also serves on the Deans Advisory Council and the
Technology Advisory Council at Indiana University.

O Lord Condon (3)

Chief financial officer

Deputy chairman and senior independent director

Trevor was appointed to the board in May 2004. An accountant,

he joined Securicor in 1995 after a previous career which included
posts in both the accountancy profession and in industry, including five
years in Papua New Guinea, three years in Zambia and seven years
with BET plc. He joined Securicor’s vehicle services division in 1995,
was appointed finance director of its security division in 1997 and
became its deputy group finance director in 2001. He was appointed
to the board of Securicor plc as group finance director in June 2002.
Trevor became the company’s chief financial officer in July 2004.

O Grahame Gibson (57)

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Audit and Nomination Committees
Senior independent director

Lord Condon was appointed to the board in May 2004. He became
deputy chairman of the board in September 2006 and is chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees and the senior independent director. Paul joined the
Metropolitan Police in 1967 and, after holding various senior
appointments in the police force, including a period as Chief Constable
of Kent, he served as Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police between
1993 and 2000. He was created a life peerin 2001 and is an advisor to
international sports governing bodies and a member of the Advisory
Board of Vidient Systems Inc.

O Bo Lerenius (63)

Chief operating officer

Non-executive director

Grahame was appointed to the board in April 2005. He joined
Group 4 in 1983, starting as Finance Director (UK) followed by a
number of senior roles, including Deputy Managing Director (UK),
Vice President (Corporate Strategy), Vice President (Finance and
Administration), Vice President Operations (Central & South Eastern
Europe and UK) and Chief Operating Officer of Group 4 Falck.

In July 2004, he became the group’s divisional president for Americas
& New Markets. Grahame became chief operating officer in July 2005
and is also regional president for North America secure solutions.

Member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees

Bo was appointed to the board in May 2004 and is a member of the
Audit and Remuneration Committees. After a diverse early business
career; he served as chief executive of Ernstromgruppen AB, a Swedish
building materials company, between 1985 and 1992 when he joined
Stena Line AB, where he was chief executive and vice chairman. In 1999,
he became group chief executive of Associated British Ports Holdings plc.
He is now the non-executive chairman of Mouchel Group Plc and a
non-executive director of Land Securities Group plc and Thomas Cook
Group Plc, chairman of the Swedish Chamber of Commerce for the
United Kingdom and a senior advisor to the infrastructure fund of
Swedish venture capital group EQT.

41
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Executive management team

(1) (2)
O Nick Buckles

Chief executive officer

Nick has worked in the security industry for 25 years, focusing
throughout this time on the commercial and strategic aspects of
all areas of security services.

After a variety of commercial roles throughout the group, he was
responsible for driving significant profit improvements in many Securicor
businesses throughout the 1990s as a business unit managing director
and divisional chief executive of the security division. He was also
instrumental in the development of Securicor’s security sector focus,
becoming Group Chief Executive in 2002, and in bringing together
Group 4 Falck and Securicor to create the new combined group.

Nick became Chief Executive of G4S in July 2005. Nick is Chairman of
the Ligue Internationale des Sociétés de Surveillance, the international
association of leading security companies.

O Trevor Dighton
Chief financial officer

Trevor has worked in the security industry for 24 years. After several
years in both the accountancy profession and commerce working in
the finance function and general management, he joined BET in 1986
as finance director of their Security and Communications Division.

Trevor joined Securicor in 1995 and, following a number of years as
finance director of the security division, he was appointed to the board
of Securicor plc in June 2002 as group finance director. He became
chief financial officer of G4S in July 2004.

Trevoris a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.

(3) (4]
© Grahame Gibson

Chief operating officer and divisional president —
secure solutions

Grahame has been involved in the security industry for 27 years, having
joined Group 4's UK operating company in 1983 as Finance Director.

Since that time, Grahame has held a number of operational, management
and board positions in the UK, USA, Denmark, the Netherlands
and Austria.

His broad experience of the security industry and management of
businesses across a diverse range of cultures has been invaluable to
the group throughout its development. Grahame joined the board
of G4S in April 2005.

Grahame is a board member of the Ligue Internationale des Sociétés
de Surveillance.

O Ken Niven
Divisional president — cash solutions

Ken has 14 years' experience in the security industry, having joined
Securicorin 1996 as operations director of the UK cash services business
where he was later promoted to managing director and was instrumental
in the development of new product areas, including cash centre
outsourcing and establishing Securicor’s independent ATM network.

Ken was appointed to his current role in July 2004 and is responsible
for the group’s cash solutions division, which includes all of the major
cash solutions business units, and for sharing cash solutions best practice
throughout the entire organisation. Ken joined the security industry
following a successful career within the logistics management industry
where he held senior roles at Express Foods, Excel Logistics and
Coca-Cola.

Ken is President of ESTA, the European cash services association,
and is a member of the Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport.



O Sgren Lundsberg-Nielsen

Group general counsel

Sgren began his career as a lawyer in Denmark and since 1984 he has
had a wide range of legal experience as General Counsel for international
groups in Denmark, Belgium and the US before joining Group 4 Falck

in 2001 as General Counsel. Sgren has been involved in a wide range

of successful mergers and acquisitions during his career, including the
acquisition of Wackenhut and the merger of Group 4 Falck and Securicor.
Sgren now has overall responsibility for all internal and external legal
services for G4S as well as the group’s insurance programme.

Sgren is a member of the Danish Bar and Law Society, a board member
of the Danish Blood Donation Society, member of the Advisory Board
of the Danish UK Chamber of Commerce and author of the book
“Executive Management Contracts”, published in Denmark.

O Irene Cowden
Group HR director

Irene has spent her career in HR management, specialising in employee
relations, organisational development, talent management and
compensation issues. She has been involved in major change projects
including the cultural and integration aspects of mergers and acquisitions
as well as large scale organisational change involving workforce
restructuring, working in partnership with major trade unions.

Irene has worked in the security industry for 32 years and has held
director level positions at business unit, divisional and corporate level.
She was appointed to the Board of Securicor plc in 2002 as Group
HR Director.

Irene is a member of the Chartered Institute of Personnel and
Development (MCIPD).
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Report of the directors for the year ended 3| December 2009

The directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report together with the audited financial statements of G4S plc and the consolidated financial
statements of that company and its subsidiaries, associated undertakings and joint ventures (*‘the group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009.

GA4S plc has its primary listing on the London Stock Exchange and a secondary listing on the NASDAQ OMX exchange in Copenhagen.

| Principal activities of the group
GA4S plcis a parent company with subsidiaries, associated undertakings and joint ventures.

The principal activities of the group comprise the provision of secure solutions (including manned security services, care and justice services and
security systems) and cash solutions (including the management and transportation of cash and valuables) as well as the undertaking of other
outsourced business processes in sectors where security and safety risks are considered a strategic threat.

2 Group results
The consolidated result for the year is shown in the consolidated income statement on page 58.

Details of the development and performance of the group’s business during the year; its position at the year end, future developments, principal risks
and uncertainties, prospects of the group and other information which fulfils the requirements of the Business Review are contained on pages 4 to 39
and are incorporated in this report by reference. The Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 47 to 49 is also incorporated in this report
by reference. The group’s financial risk management objectives and policies in relation to its use of financial instruments, and its exposure to price,
credit, liquidity and cash flow risk, to the extent material, are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 97.

3 Dividends

The directors propose the following net dividend for the year:

— Interim dividend of 3.02p (DKK 0.2599) per share paid on 30 October 2009.
— Final dividend of 4.16p (DKK 0.3408) per share payable on 4 June 2010.

Shareholders on the Danish VP register will receive their dividends in Danish kroner. Shareholders who hold their shares through CREST orin
certificated form will receive their dividends in sterling unless they prefer to receive Danish kroner, in which case they should apply in writing to
the Registrars by no later than 5 May 2010.

4 Significant business acquisitions, disposals and developments

In January 2009, Wackenhut Valores SA was disposed of in Panama.

In January 2009, Gottschalk Feuerschutzanlagen GmbH & Co. KG was disposed of in Germany.

In February 2009, G4S disposed of G4S Holdings (France) SAS, the holding company for the group's French security services businesses.
In February 2009, Secura Monde International Limited and Shiremoor International Engineering Limited were acquired in the UK.
In March 2009, the business and assets of ADT Security Services were acquired in Taiwan.

In April 2009, the business and assets of Sunshine Youth Services were acquired in the US.

In May 2009, the company issued £350m, 7.75% bonds due 13 May 2019.

In June 2009, Archive Solutions Limited was acquired in Kenya.

In June 2009, the business and assets of Pacific Security Alarm were acquired in Guam.

In June 2009, the Fogl Knight group was acquired in Australia.

In September 2009, 83% of Control Systems Argentina SA was acquired.

In November 2009, a number of companies in the Hill & Associates group were acquired, primarily in the Asia Pacific region.

In November 2009, Champions of the West, Inc. (trading as All Star International) was acquired in the US.

In December 2009, Adesta LLC and Adesta LP were acquired in the US.

In December 2009, Nuclear Security Services Corporation was acquired in the US.
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5 Capital

The authorised and issued share capital of G4S plc at 31 December 2009 is set out on page 104 (note 37 to the consolidated financial statements).
There were |,410,568,639 shares in issue as at 12 March 2010.

Information concerning the company’s shares held under option is set out on page 104 (note 37 to the consolidated financial statements).

Resolutions granting the directors power; subject to certain conditions, to allot and make market purchases of the company's shares will be proposed
at the company’s Annual General Meeting. The resolutions are set out in the Notice of Meeting on pages 120 to 12| and further explanation is
provided on pages 123 to 127. At 3| December 2009 the directors had authority in accordance with a resolution passed at the company’s Annual
General Meeting held on 26 May 2009 to make market purchases of up to 140,000,000 of the company's shares.

The company does not hold any treasury shares as such. However the 5,543,818 shares held within the G4S Employee Benefit Trust (“‘the Trust”")
and referred to on page 105 (note 38 to the consolidated financial statements) are accounted for as treasury shares. The Trust has waived its right
to receive dividends in respect of the company’s shares which it held during the period under review.

6 Research and development expenditure

Research in connection with the development of new services and products and the improvement of those currently provided by the group is carried
out continuously. Research and development written off to profit and loss during the year amounted to £5.8m (2008: £3.5m).

7 Payment of suppliers

[t is the company's and the group's policy to pay suppliers in accordance with the payment terms negotiated with them. Thus, prompt payment
is normally made to those suppliers meeting their obligations. The company and the group do not follow any formal code or standard on
payment practice.

At 31 December 2009 the trade creditors of the company represented 31 days (2008: 26 days) of annual purchases.
At 31 December 2009 the consolidated trade creditors of the group represented 37 days (2008: 40 days) of annual purchases.

8 Employees

In 2009 the first group-wide employee survey was carried out, offering employees the opportunity to provide feedback on their experience of
working for the group. Every employee was asked a number of questions about their involvement, development and engagement with the group,

and more than 169,000 employees responded — almost a third of the total workforce. Around the world, employees responded positively to being
involved in such a constructive process and the overall feedback was very encouraging with four out of five employees who responded saying they
would recommend G4S as an employer to a friend. Having now analysed the feedback in detail, each business is in the process of developing an action
plan to encourage even greater levels of engagement by the time the survey is repeated in 2011.

During the year the company also began rolling out the Ethical Employment Partnership which it entered into at the end of 2008 with UNI, the global
union federation. The agreement is designed to drive improvements in employment standards across the security industry while helping to ensure that
employee and union rights are respected throughout the group, and has already resulted in a positive impact on employees, their families and their
communities. The first phase of implementation covered South Africa and India, involving around a quarter of the group’s employees, and in both
cases the new level of social dialogue has been well received as employees start to see tangible benefits affecting their everyday lives.

Attracting and retaining talented individuals continues to be essential to the success of the group and the diversity of its workforce helps it meet its
customers’ expectations. The overall approach of the group to diversity and inclusion is to ensure that it appoints, promotes and develops employees
in accordance with their talents and aptitudes, regardless of any disability. To encourage loyalty and retain employees’ skills, the group also aims to
retain existing employees who become disabled wherever possible. Further details of the group’s approach to employee engagement and social
dialogue are included in the group’s separate Corporate Social Responsibility Report.

9 Political and charitable contributions

The group remains committed to the support of charities, the community, job creation and training. Charitable contributions by the group during
the year amounted to £311,000 (2008: £313,000). The purposes for which such contributions were made and the amount donated to each purpose
were: child welfare: £117,000; health and medical: £38,000; NGOs: £38,000; poverty relief: £5,500; local communities: £50,500; environment:
£21,000; prisoner welfare: £29,000; and sports: £12,000.

The company and its subsidiaries have made no contributions during the year to political parties carrying on activities, or to candidates seeking
election, within the EU.

One of the company’s subsidiaries in the US has however made contributions totalling $3,000 in aggregate to a number of candidates and organisations
seeking election or carrying on activities in the US.

10 Substantial holdings
The directors have been notified of the following substantial shareholdings at 12 March 2010 of the ordinary shares in the capital of G4S plc:

Skagen Stichting Administratiekantoor 171,939,961 (12.19%)
BlackRock, Inc. 91,587,666 (6.49%)
Legal & General Group Plc 51,880,641 (3.68%)
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Il Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc, chartered accountants, as auditor to the company and for their remuneration to be fixed by the directors
will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting.

12 Directors
The directors, biographical details of whom are contained on pages 40 and 41, held office throughout the year.

The directors retiring by rotation are Alf Duch-Pedersen, Nick Buckles, Lord Condon and Mark Elliott who, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. The board believes that they possess experience and expertise relevant to the company’s operations, that they continue to be effective,
that they are committed to the success of the company and that they should be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting.

Of those directors proposed for re-election, Alf Duch-Pedersen, Lord Condon and Mark Elliott do not have contracts of service and Mr Buckles'
contract of service has no unexpired term since it is not for a fixed term.

The contracts of service of the executive directors are terminable at |2 months’ notice. None of the non-executive directors has a contract of service.

The company has executed deeds of indemnity for the benefit of each of the directors in respect of liabilities which may attach to them in their
capacity as directors of the company. These deeds are qualifying third party indemnity provisions as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act
2006 and have been in effect since 3 November 2006. A copy of the form of indemnity is available on the company's website. In addition, indemnities
have been granted by the company in favour of certain of the directors of certain of the group’s subsidiaries in Germany and the Netherlands.

The company has maintained a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy throughout the year under review.

Details of directors’ interests (including their family's interests) in the share capital of G4S plc and of the directors’ remuneration are set out on
pages 50 to 55.

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditor is unaware and each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information.

None of the directors had a material interest in any contract significant to the business of the group during the financial year.

By order of the board

Peter David
Secretary
5 March 2010

The Manor
Manor Royal
Crawley
West Sussex
RHIO 9UN
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Governance

Corporate governance statement

The board’s statement on the company's corporate governance performance is based on the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
published in June 2008 (“‘the Combined Code’") which is available on the Financial Reporting Council’'s website (http://www.frc.org.uk/corporate/
combinedcode.cfm).

The Combined Code requires companies to disclose how they apply the code’s main principles, and to confirm that they comply with the code’s
provisions or, where they do not comply, to provide a careful and clear explanation of their non-compliance which aims to illustrate how their actual
practices are consistent with the code’s principles and contribute to good governance.

a Application of Combined Code principles

The board comprises the non-executive chairman (Alf Duch-Pedersen), a non-executive deputy chairman (Lord Condon), four other non-executive
directors, the chief executive (Nick Buckles), the chief financial officer (Trevor Dighton) and the chief operating officer (Grahame Gibson). The board
considers all the non-executive directors to be independent. The senior independent director is Lord Condon.

All continuing directors are subject to election by shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting following their appointment by the board and will
submit themselves for re-election at least every three years.

Membership of the three board committees is as follows:

Audit Committee

Mark Seligman (chairman from May 2009)
Lord Condon (joined November 2009)
Thorleif Krarup (chairman until May 2009)
Bo Lerenius

Remuneration Committee

Lord Condon (chairman)
Mark Elliott

Bo Lerenius

Mark Seligman

Nomination Committee

Alf Duch-Pedersen (chairman)
Lord Condon
Mark Elliott

Mr Seligman, who is the member of the Audit Committee with recent and relevant financial experience, became chairman of the Audit Committee
following the company’s Annual General Meeting on 26 May 2009, taking over that role from Mr Krarup, who remains a member of that committee.
Lord Condon joined the Audit Committee in November 2009. The terms of reference of each of the above committees are available on the
company's website.

[t is intended that the chairmen of the three committees will be available to answer questions at the Annual General Meeting which is an important
opportunity for communication between the board and shareholders, particularly private shareholders. Following each resolution at the Annual
General Meeting, the meeting is informed of the numbers of proxy votes cast and the same information is subsequently published on the
company's website.

There were nine board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2009. One of the meetings was also an extended, two-day board and strategy
session, at which presentations on the development and implementation of the company’s strategy were made to the board by senior executives.
One of the board meetings was held at a subsidiary company’s offices in the USA to enable the board to have greater interaction with some of the
businesses in one of the group’s main markets. All members attended each of the board meetings except that Mr Dighton and Mr Elliott were each
absent from one meeting and Mr Krarup was absent from two. Non-executive directors also attended meetings and conferences held by various
regions and business units in order to gain a closer understanding of the group.

At each meeting, the board receives reports from the chief executive, the chief financial officer and the company secretary, an HR report which
includes summaries of developments on HR and health and safety matters and an investor relations report which includes analysts’ reviews and any
comments received from major shareholders since the previous board meeting. After meetings of the board committees, the respective committee
chairmen report to the board on the matters considered by each committee. In addition, the board receives monthly management accounts.

There are nine board meetings scheduled for the current year, including a one-day strategy review session.

There is a detailed schedule of matters reserved to the board which was reviewed and revised during the year and is now set out under twelve
separate categories: strategy and management; structure and capital; financial reporting and controls; internal controls; contracts; communication;
board membership and other appointments; remuneration; delegation of authority; corporate governance matters; policies; and other. By way of
example, board approval is required for major investments, including the acquisition or disposal of any business worth more than £5m; any changes
to the group’s long-term objectives and commercial strategy; and the annual operating and capital expenditure budgets.
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a Application of Combined Code principles continued

Each of the directors has disclosed to the board any situations which apply to them as a result of which they have or may have an interest which
conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the company. In accordance with the company’s articles of association, the board has authorised such
matters. The affected directors did not vote when their own positions were considered. Where the board deemed it appropriate, such authorisation
was given subject to certain conditions. The board reviews such matters on a regular basis.

In the year under review, the Audit and Remuneration Committees both met four times and the Nomination Committee met three times.
All members attended each of the meetings except for Mr Elliott who was absent from one meeting of the Nomination Committee.

The performance of the board and its committees has been evaluated using a questionnaire-based self-assessment process which was introduced

and informed by the external consultancy which conducted an evaluation of the performance of the board and the board's committees in 2008.

In addition the chairman held individual meetings with each of the directors to discuss their performance and their view of the board as a whole.
Reports generated by this process have been considered by the board, the chairman and by each of the Audit and Remuneration Committees and a
number of actions have been agreed as a means of improving performance. As a result, more presentations will be made to the board by operational
managers, even more board participation in strategy development will be facilitated and the board will give greater direction to the board committees.
The Remuneration Committee concluded that it should provide more explanation of its activities and the Audit Committee is to give greater
guidance on the issues which are to be presented to it.

The chairman held meetings with the non-executive directors without the executives present and a review of the performance of the chairman by
the non-executive directors, without the chairman present, was led by the senior independent director.

The chief executive and the chief financial officer hold regular meetings with individual institutional shareholders to discuss the group's strategy and
financial performance, although price sensitive information is never divulged at these meetings. It is intended that all the directors will attend the
company's Annual General Meeting and will be available to answer questions from shareholders.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations on board appointments and on maintaining a balance of skills and experience
on the board and its committees. During the year it has carefully considered the skills and experience available on the board and concluded that, whilst
the current blend provides the right array of knowledge and understanding, the time is right to plan for the future needs of the board. External search
consultants have therefore been engaged to assist with the process of refreshing the non-executive element of the board using a description of the
role and capabilities required drawn up by the committee and approved by the board. The board itself has also given careful consideration to the
succession planning process for the group’s senior executive management.

Audit Committee meetings are attended by representatives of the group auditor; the chief financial officer, the group financial controller; the head of
group internal audit and the company secretary. The committee considers the group’s annual and half-yearly financial statements and any questions
raised by the auditor on the financial statements and financial systems. It also reviews, amongst other matters, the group’s financial reporting and
internal auditing processes, whistle blowing arrangements, risk management procedures and internal controls.

The Audit Committee has recommended that the board re-appoints the existing external auditor having reviewed its performance of audit services
for the company, reports on the performance of the firm as a whole, its independence given the non-audit services it provides to the group and its
policy and practice on audit partner rotation, as well as the cost of its services. The committee will keep the matter of the choice of external auditor
under review at regular intervals.

The Audit Committee has established a policy on the provision by the external auditor of non-audit services, so as to ensure that the independence
of the audit is not compromised. Besides the formal audit function, the auditor is permitted to provide consultation and due diligence services related
to mergers and acquisitions, audits of employee benefit plans, reviews of internal accounting and control policies, general advice on financial reporting
standards and corporate tax services. The auditor is prohibited from providing other services without specific permission from the Audit Committee.
The value of non-audit services provided by the auditor must not exceed the fees charged for the statutory audit, save in the event of a major
transformation deal. The auditor has written to the Audit Committee confirming that, in its opinion, it is independent.

The work of the Remuneration Committee is more fully described in the Directors’ Remuneration Report which appears on pages 50 to 55.
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b Compliance with provisions of Combined Code

The company complied throughout the year under review with the provisions set out in section | of the Combined Code.

c Risk management and internal control

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The risks associated with the group’s activities are reviewed regularly by the board, which considers major risks and evaluates their impact on the
group. Policies and procedures, which are reviewed and monitored by the head of group internal audit, are in place to deal with any matters which
may be considered by the board to present significant exposure.

The key features of the group’s risk management process, which was in place throughout the year under review and since are:

* A common risk management framework” is used to provide a profile of those risks which may have an impact on the achievement of business
objectives.

* Each significant risk is documented, showing an overview of the risk, how the risk is managed, and any improvement actions. The risk profiles ensure
that internal audit reviews of the adequacy, application and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls are targeted on the key risks.

* Risk management committees have been established at regional, divisional and group level. The regional committees meet at least annually and the
divisional and group committees meet quarterly. A standard agenda covering risk and control issues is considered at each meeting and risk profiles
are reviewed and updated at each meeting.

* Risk and control self-evaluation exercises are undertaken for each operating company, for most companies at least twice a year, and updated risk
profiles are prepared. Similar exercises are undertaken as part of the integration process for all major acquisitions. The results of the company risk
evaluations are assessed by the regional and divisional risk management committees’.

The process, which is reviewed regularly by the board in accordance with the internal control guidance for directors in the Combined Code, is carried
out under the overall supervision of the group risk management committee. This committee, which reports to the Audit Committee, includes both
the chief executive and the chief financial officer.

The Audit Committee undertakes a high level review of risk management and internal control. Both the divisional risk management committees and
the group risk management committee receive internal audit reports and regular reports on risks. They monitor the actions taken to manage risks.

The internal control system includes clearly defined reporting lines and authorisation procedures, a comprehensive budgeting and monthly reporting
system, and written policies and procedures. In addition to a wide range of internal audit reports, senior management also receive assurance from
other sources including security inspections, third party reviews, company financial control reviews, external audit reports, summaries of whistle
blowing activity, and risk and control self-evaluations.

The group has in place robust internal control and risk management systems for financial reporting. The group has a single global consolidation system
which is used for both internal management reporting, budgeting and planning as well as external reporting. The group has a comprehensive budgeting
process with the budget being approved by the board. Forecasts for the year are reported at least quarterly. Actual results at business unit, region and
group level are reported monthly and variances are reviewed. Each business has an internal financial review performed annually by a finance team
from either region or group to check the accuracy of financial reporting and compliance with the group finance manual.

The board has reviewed the group’s risk management and internal control system for the year to 31 December 2009 by considering reports from the
Audit Committee and has taken account of events since 3| December 2009.

By order of the board

Peter David
Secretary
5 March 2010

* Because Wackenhut Services, Inc. (“WSI”) is governed through a proxy agreement under which the group is excluded from access to operational information, it is not subject to the same risk
management process as is applied to other group companies. The board has however satisfied itself as to the adequacy of the internal control processes adopted by WSI.
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Directors’ remuneration report at 3| December 2009

This report, prepared on behalf of and approved by the board, provides details of the remuneration of each of the directors and sets out the
company's remuneration policies for the current financial year and, subject to ongoing review, for subsequent financial years. The report will be
put to the company’s Annual General Meeting for approval by the shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee met four times during the period under review. The members of the committee, all of whom are considered to be
independent, are Lord Condon (chairman), Mark Elliott, Bo Lerenius and Mark Seligman. The committee is responsible for setting all aspects of the
remuneration of the chairman, the executive directors, the three other members of the group executive committee and the company secretary.

[t is also responsible for the operation of the company’s share plans. Its terms of reference are available on the company’s website.

During the year, the committee received advice from Towers, Perrin, Forster & Crosby, Inc.' (“Towers Perrin”) as the committee’s appointed
advisors on executive and senior management remuneration matters. Towers Perrin has also provided a small amount of management remuneration
information to the company during the period under review. Their terms of appointment are available on the company’s website. In addition Alithos
Limited (“Alithos”) has been appointed by the committee to verify the calculation of certain elements of payments due under the company's
performance share plan. Alithos has not provided any other services to the company during the period under review.

Nick Buckles, chief executive, provided guidance to the committee on remuneration packages for senior executives within the group.
Further guidance was received from the group’s HR director, Irene Cowden. Neither Mr Buckles nor Mrs Cowden participated in discussions
regarding their own remuneration.

Remuneration policy

The policy for the remuneration of the executive directors and the executive management team aims to achieve:
* the ability to attract, retain and motivate high calibre executives;

* a strong link between executive reward and the group’s performance;

« alignment of the interests of the executives and the shareholders; and

* provision of incentive arrangements which focus appropriately on both annual and longer term performance.

In terms of market positioning, the overall objective is to achieve remuneration levels which provide a market competitive base salary with the
opportunity to earn above market norms through the company’s incentive schemes on the delivery of superior performance. A significant proportion
of total remuneration is therefore related to performance, through participation in both short-term and long-term incentive schemes. On average,
the performance-related element of remuneration for executive directors amounts to around 50% of the total package for target performance

and around 65% of the total package for stretch performance. The committee believes that the current balance is appropriate given its desire to
ensure a strong link between performance and remuneration whilst, at the same time, avoiding a system which might incentivise inappropriate
risk-taking. The balance between long- and short-term incentives, and between basic salary and performance-related bonuses, is therefore kept
under close review, but the committee is satisfied that the existing long-term incentive scheme, allied to the claw back processes and minimum
shareholding requirements which have been introduced recently, provide suitable controls and incentives which are designed to avoid rewarding
excessive risk taking or behaviour aimed at short-term, unsustainable, gains.

Target performance Stretch performance

Long-term incentive

Base salary
Long-term incentive

Base salary

Annual bonus

Annual bonus

The committee is also satisfied that the incentive structure for the board does not raise environmental, social or governance risks by inadvertently
motivating irresponsible behaviour.

Bonus payments do not form part of salary for pension purposes.

|. Towers Perrin and Alithos have each given, and not withdrawn, their written consent to the issue of this document with the inclusion of the reference to their respective names in the form
and content in which they appear. Copies of the consent letters are available for inspection at the company’s registered office.
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Elements of remuneration

a Base salary and benefits

The salaries of the executive directors are reviewed with effect from | January each year. Interim salary reviews may be carried out following
significant changes in responsibility. The salaries take account of a benchmarking exercise based on similarly sized companies with a significant part of
their business overseas and also reflect responsibility, individual performance, internal relativities and salary and other market information supplied by
Towers Perrin. Benefits include pension arrangements and the provision of a company car (or a cash allowance in lieu of a car), health insurance and
life assurance. As in 2009, the executive directors have again requested that their base salaries are frozen in 2010, to take account of both pay and
employment conditions across the group as well as the current economic circumstances. The committee has acceded to this request, but is conscious
that this decision is not consistent with the company's stated remuneration policy or the continuing strong performance of the group as a whole.

As a result the committee will continue to monitor the market closely and, when conditions permit, it is the committee’s intention to more closely
align base salaries with its competitive mid-market policy. Once again, as was the case in 2009, the non-executive directors have also asked that their
fee levels are not changed in 2010.

b Performance-related bonus scheme

For the year under review, the executive directors participated in an annual performance-related bonus scheme, payments under which were
dependent on the attainment of defined PBTA (profit before tax and amortisation) targets of the group, adjusted for the effect of any exceptional
items and discontinued operations and using constant exchange rates. The committee believes that PBTA best reflects the various key drivers of
business success within the group. The maximum bonus entitlement for the executive directors is an amount equal to 125% of base salary (150% in
the case of the chief executive). 60% of maximum bonus entitlement was payable on achievement of the budgeted target and the amount of bonus
increased on a straight-line basis up to 100% of maximum bonus entitlement for achievement of a stretch profit target. Any bonus due above 50%
of the individual's maximum bonus entitlement would be awarded as deferred shares which would not vest for three years. For achievement of a
threshold level of profits which is at least 95% of the budgeted profit target, a bonus payment of 35% of maximum bonus entitlement was due, with
no bonus payable for performance below threshold.

A claw back provision was included in the 2009 annual bonus rules by which any deferred shares awarded and dividends arising therefrom could be
clawed back if the 2009 profit figures are restated materially in line with a recommendation by the Audit Committee within two years of the year end.

The committee has approved the retention of the same rules as described above for the 2010 annual bonus scheme but has extended the claw back
provisions so that they apply to cash payments as well as to deferred shares.

The group performed extremely well in 2009 in what were very difficult economic conditions in many of its key markets. PBTA increased by £78.2m
(£51.7m at 2009 constant exchange rates), exceeding the target of £397.7m, but falling below the maximum full stretch target which was £417.5m;
thus, 35% of the maximum stretch target was achieved. The Remuneration Committee has therefore agreed that the resulting bonus payment will be
at 74% of maximum bonus entitlement.

The PBTA target used for the above scheme is the same as the company’s budgeted PBTA for the corresponding period (assuming constant exchange
rates). The PBTA target allows for adjustments in respect of any material, non-budgeted changes which take place during the year, such as acquisitions,
disposals etc. Thus, for example, should a planned disposal not be completed by the year end, the committee reserves the right to re-insert the
operating profit or loss for the business in question in the actual and budgeted PBTA targets.

c Performance Share Plan (long-term incentive plan)

The Performance Share Plan (“PSP"") was introduced in July 2004. Under the plan, the executive directors and certain other senior executives receive
conditional allocations of the company’s shares which are released to them only on the achievement of demanding performance targets.

The maximum annual award of shares payable under the plan is two and a half times base salary. The annual award approved by the committee for
the year under review is two times base salary for the chief executive, one and a half times base salary for the other executive directors and one times
salary for senior executives below board level. The extent to which allocations of shares under the plan vest is determined, as to two-thirds of the
award, by the company’s normalised earnings per share growth relative to the RPI over a single three-year period and, as to the remaining third of the
award, by the company's ranking by reference to TSR (total shareholder return; being share price growth plus dividends paid) using a bespoke global
group of 16 support services companies as a comparator group, again over a single three-year period.

In relation to awards made in years prior to 2007, the conditions subject to which allocations of shares vest under this plan differ in a number of
respects: half of any award is determined by the company's normalised earnings per share growth relative to the RPI over a single three-year period
and the other half of the award by the company’s ranking by reference to TSR using the FTSE 100 constituent companies as at the date of the award
as a comparator group, again over a single three-year period. There is no provision for retesting.

The following targets will continue to apply to two-thirds of awards granted since 2007, with the three-year EPS (earnings per share) period ending
on 31 December in the third year (so for awards made at the beginning of 2009, the period ends on 3| December 2011):

Average annual growth in EPS Proportion of allocation vesting

Less than RPI + 6% per annum Nil

RPI + 6% per annum (18% over three years) 25%

RPI + 6%—11% per annum Pro rata between 25% and 100%
RPI+ 119 per annum (33% over three years) 100%

The same targets apply to the first half of awards granted in years prior to 2007.
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c Performance Share Plan (long-term incentive plan) continued

The following targets apply to the remaining one-third of each award granted since 2007:

Ranking of the company against the bespoke comparator group by reference to TSR Proportion of allocation vesting

Below median il

Median 25%

Between median and upper quartile Pro rata between 25% and 100%
Upper quartile 100%

The same targets apply to the second half of each award granted in years prior to 2007, but the ranking applied is that of the company against the
FTSE 100 constituent companies as at the date of the award.

In addition, participants in the PSP will receive a further share award with a value equivalent to the dividends which would have been paid in respect
of future PSP awards vesting at the end of the performance period.

In relation to awards made before 2007, there will only be a transfer of shares under the second half if the growth in EPS of the company has
exceeded the growth in RPI by 10% over a performance period of three financial years.

Furthermore, there will only be a transfer of shares under the final third (or second half in respect of awards made before 2007) if the Remuneration
Committee is satisfied that the company's TSR performance is reflective of the company's underlying performance.

The Remuneration Committee believes that a combination of earnings per share growth and total shareholder return targets is the most appropriate
performance measure for the performance share plan, as it provides a transparent method of assessing the company's performance, both in terms of
underlying financial performance and returns to shareholders. The company calculates whether the EPS performance targets have been achieved by
reference to the company's audited accounts which provide an accessible and objective measure of the company’s earnings per share, whilst TSR
ranking will be determined by Towers Perrin whose findings are verified by Alithos.

Awards will not normally vest where an employee ceases to be employed within the group unless cessation of employment is due to death, injury,
disability, redundancy, retirement or following a change of control of, or sale outside the group of, his or her employing company. In these situations,
vesting will occur in the normal course and the performance targets will need to be satisfied. Only a proportion of the award, based on the time
which has elapsed from the award date to the end of the last complete month in which the employee was employed, will vest in these circumstances
in most cases. The Remuneration Committee does however retain the ability to allow for a greater award to vest if it considers it to be appropriate
in exceptional circumstances.

The company’s current policy is to use market purchased shares to satisfy performance share plan awards.

The Remuneration Committee believes that continued shareholding by executive directors will strengthen the alignment of their interests with
shareholders’ interests. Accordingly, whilst executive directors of the company have previously been expected to retain shares to the value of 30% of
the after-tax gains made on the vesting of performance share plan awards until they have built up a shareholding equivalent to one times base salary,
a formal policy has now been adopted under which, in future, executive directors will be required to retain 50% of after-tax PSP vestings until a total
shareholding equal to 100% of base salary (150% for the chief executive) is achieved.

Following a review of the operation of the PSP by the Remuneration Committee including detailed analysis of the current EPS and TSR targets,
the committee is satisfied that the current EPS and TSR measures and targets remain appropriate for 2010 and that, as in 2009, the committee
will remove the impact of currency movements from the calculation of both EPS and TSR.

Fees, service contracts and letters of appointment

The chairman’s annual fee is £270,000. The annual fee for the non-executive directors, which is set by the chairman and the executive directors, is
£54,100, with a further £44,550 for the role of deputy chairman, £16,700 for the chairmanship of each of the Audit and Remuneration Committees
and £10,000 for the role of senior independent director. No other fees are paid for membership of the board committees. These fees are subject to
periodic review which takes into account comparative fee levels in other groups of a similar size and the anticipated time commitment for the
non-executive directors.

The service contracts of those who served as executive directors during the period are dated as follows:

Nick Buckles 2 June 2004
Trevor Dighton 2 June 2004
Grahame Gibson 6 December 2006

The contracts of Messrs Buckles, Dighton and Gibson are terminable by the company on 12 months’ notice. The contracts are terminable by the
executive directors on 12 months notice. There are no liquidated damages provisions for compensation payable upon early termination, but the
company reserves the right to pay salary in lieu of notice. The directors’ contracts do not provide for the payment of a guaranteed bonus in the event
of termination. It is the company’s policy that it should be able to terminate service contracts of executive directors on no more than 12 months’
notice and that payments for termination of contract are restricted to the value of salary and other contractual entitlements for the notice period.
The Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the current arrangements are appropriate and in line with best practice.

The chairman and the other non-executive directors do not have service contracts but letters of appointment. Mr Seligman and Mr Elliott have each
been granted two-year extensions to their initial three-year terms of appointment. Those extensions began respectively on | January and | September
2009. The other non-executive directors were each granted three-year extensions to their initial letters of appointment, such extensions having begun
on |9 May 2007. All continuing directors are required to stand for re-election by the shareholders at least once every three years.

[t is the company's policy that executive directors may each hold not more than one external non-executive appointment and may retain any
associated fees. Mr Buckles is a non-executive director of Arriva plc for which he received fees of £45,000 in the year ended 3| December 2009.
Neither of the other executive directors currently holds an external non-executive appointment.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Change in fair value of net investment hedging financial instruments
Change in fair value of cash flow hedging financial instruments
Actuarial losses on defined retirement benefit schemes

Tax on items taken directly to equity

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

2009
£m

219.2

(93.3)
28.6
(22.6)
(63.1)
21.9
(128.5)

90.7

74.0

16.7
90.7

2008
£m

164.9

182.0
@l1.1)
364

(1969)
503

(9.3)

155.6

1419

13.7
155.6
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Forthe year ended 31 December 2009

Share Share Retained Hedging Translation Merger Reserve for Total
capital premium earnings reserve’ reserve’ reserve own shares’ reserves
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At | January 2008 3202 [1.0 3170 (14.4) 36.0 426.3 (9.0) 1,087.1
Net recognised income/
(expense) attributable
to equity shareholders
of the parent = = [1.0 (32.7) 163.6 = = [41.9
Shares issued 319 2449 = = = = = 276.8
Dividends declared - - (75.0) - - - - (75.0)
Own shares purchased - - — — — — (8.8) (8.8)
Own shares awarded = = 6.0 = = = 6.0 =
Equity-settled transactions - - 50 - - - - 50
At 31 December 2008 352.1 2559 2520 “7.1) 199.6 426.3 (11.8) 1427.0
At | January 2009 352.1 2559 2520 (“7.1) 199.6 426.3 (11.8) 1,427.0
Net recognised income/
(expense) attributable
to equity shareholders
of the parent - - 1394 44 (69.8) - - 74.0
Shares issued 0.5 22 = = = = = 27
Dividends declared = = (94.2) = = = = (94.2)
Own shares purchased - - - - - - 99) 99)
Own shares awarded - - 9.5) - - - 9.5 -
Equity-settled transactions — — 7. — — — — 71
At 31 December 2009 352.6 258.1 294.8 (42.7) 129.8 426.3 (12.2) 1,406.7

*See Note 38
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I General information

GA4S plcis a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985. The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the company and entities (its subsidiaries) controlled by the company (collectively comprising the group) and the group’s
interest in associates and jointly controlled entities made up to 31 December each year. The nature of the group’s operations and its principal activities
are set out in note 6 and in the Operating and Financial review on pages 4 to 27 and 32 to 37. The group operates throughout the world and in a wide
range of functional currencies, the most significant being the euro, the US dollar and sterling. The group’s financial statements are presented in sterling,
as the group’s primary listing is in the UK. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 3. The address of the
registered office is given on page 130.

2 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted for
use in the European Union (adopted IFRSs). The company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP). These are presented on pages |11 to 19.

3 Significant accounting policies

a Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the going concern basis and using the historical cost basis, except for
the revaluation of certain non-current assets and financial instruments. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below. Judgements made
by the directors in the application of these accounting polices which have a significant effect on the financial statements, and estimates with a significant
risk of material adjustment, are discussed in note 4.

The comparative income statement for the year ended 31 December 2008 has been re-presented for operations qualifying as discontinued during
the current year. Revenue from continuing operations has been reduced by £14.4m and PBT has been reduced by £1.5m compared to the figures
published previously. Further details of discontinued operations are presented within note 7. In addition, the comparative balance sheet as at

31 December 2008 has been restated to reflect the completion during 2009 of the initial accounting in respect of acquisitions made during 2008.
Adjustments made to the provisional calculation of the fair values of assets and liabilities acquired amount to £19.Im, with an equivalent increase

in the reported value of goodwill. The impact of these adjustments on the net assets acquired is presented in note 17.

b Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control is achieved where the group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities, determined either by the group's ownership percentage, or by the terms of any
shareholder agreement.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired business are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency in the cost of
acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. discount on acquisition) is credited to the income statement in the year

of acquisition. The cost of acquisition includes the present value of consideration payable in respect of put options held by minority shareholders.
The interest of minority shareholders is stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised. Subsequently, any
losses applicable to the minority interest in excess of the carrying value of the minority interest are allocated against the interest of the parent, except
to the extent that the minority has both a binding obligation and the ability to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of control
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Joint ventures
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control, in that
strategic financial and operating decisions require the unanimous consent of the parties.

The group’s interest in joint ventures is accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method, whereby the group’s share of the results and
assets and liabilities of a jointly-controlled entity is combined line by line with similar items in the group’s consolidated financial statements.

Associates
An associate is an entity over which the group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint control, through participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the group’s consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the group’s share of the net
assets of the associates, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of the associates in excess of the group’s interest in those
associates are not recognised.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Where a group company transacts with a joint venture
or associate of the group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the relevant joint venture or associate.
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3 Significant accounting policies continued

c Foreign currencies

The financial statements of each of the group’s businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business. Transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary assets and liabilities which are denominated in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities carried at fair value which are denominated in other currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost denominated in other currencies are not retranslated. Gains and losses arising on
retranslation are included in the income statement for the period.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the group’s overseas operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on their acquisition,
are translated into sterling at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expenses are translated into sterling at the average
exchange rates for the period (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rate prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions). Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity, together with
exchange differences arising on monetary items that are in substance a part of the group’s net investment in foreign operations and on borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments where and to the extent that the hedges are deemed to be effective.

On disposal translation differences are recognised in the income statement in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

d Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with its treasury policy, the group only holds or issues derivative financial instruments to manage the group’s exposure to financial risk,
not for trading purposes. Such financial risk includes the interest risk on the group’s variable rate borrowings, the fair value risk on the group’s fixed
rate borrowings, commodity risk in relation to its diesel consumption and foreign exchange risk on transactions, on the translation of the group’s
results and on the translation of the group’s net assets measured in foreign currencies. The group manages these risks through a range of derivative
financial instruments, including interest rate swaps, fixed rate agreements, commodity swaps, commodity options, forward foreign exchange contracts
and currency swaps.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet as financial assets or liabilities at fair value. Fair value is measured using one of the
valuation techniques based on one of the following valuation hierarchies as set out in IFRS 7 (Amended):

Level | — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 —inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the income statement, unless the derivatives qualify for hedge
accounting. Where derivatives do qualify for hedge accounting, the treatment of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged as described below.

Fair value hedge
The change in the fair value of both the hedging instrument and the related portion of the hedged item is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Cash flow hedge

The change in the fair value of the portion of the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in equity and
subsequently recycled to the income statement when the hedged cash flow impacts the income statement. The ineffective portion of the fair value of
the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Net investment hedge

The change in the fair value of the portion of the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in equity and
subsequently recycled to the income statement when the hedged net investment impacts the income statement. The ineffective portion of the fair
value of the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in the income statement.

e Intangible assets

Goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by the application of the purchase method. Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or
jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an additional interest from a minority in a subsidiary represents
the excess of the cost of the additional investment over the carrying amount of the net assets acquired at the date of exchange. Goodwill is stated at
cost, less any accumulated impairment losses, and is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that amounts may be
impaired. In respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included within the net investment in associates. On disposal of a subsidiary,
associate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before transition to IFRS on | January 2004 has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts, subject to being
tested for impairment at that date. Goodwill written-off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and is not included in
determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal.

65




66

G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies continued

e Intangible assets continued

Acquisition-related intangible assets

Intangible assets on acquisitions that are either separable or arising from contractual rights are recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Such acquisition-related intangible assets include trademarks, technology, customer contracts and customer relationships. The fair value of acquisition-
related intangible assets is determined by reference to market prices of similar assets, where such information is available, or by the use of appropriate
valuation techniques, including the royalty relief method and the excess earnings method.

Acquisition-related intangible assets are amortised by equal annual instalments over their expected economic life. The directors review acquisition-
related intangible assets on an ongoing basis and, where appropriate, provide for any impairment in value.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Trademarks up to a maximum of five years
Customer contracts and customer relationships up to a maximum of ten years
Technology up to a maximum of five years

Other intangible assets — development expenditure

Development expenditure represents expenditure incurred in establishing new services and products of the group. Such expenditure is recognised
as an intangible asset only if the following can be demonstrated: the expenditure creates an identifiable asset, its cost can be measured reliably, it is
probable that it will generate future economic benefits, it is technically and commercially feasible and the group has sufficient resources to complete
development. In all other instances, the cost of such expenditure is taken directly to the income statement.

Capitalised development expenditure is amortised over the period during which the expenditure is expected to be revenue-producing, up to a
maximum of ten years. The directors review the capitalised development expenditure on an ongoing basis and, where appropriate, provide for any
impairment in value.

Research expenditure is written-off in the year in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets — software

Computer software is capitalised as an intangible asset if such expenditure (both internally generated and externally purchased) creates an identifiable
asset, if its cost can be measured reliably and if it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits. Capitalised computer software is stated at
cost, net of amortisation and any provision for impairment. Amortisation is charged on software so as to write-off the cost of the assets to their
estimated residual values by equal annual instalments over their expected useful economic lives up to a maximum of five years.

f Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation is provided on all
property, plant and equipment other than freehold land. Depreciation is calculated so as to write-off the cost of the assets to their estimated residual
values by equal annual instalments over their expected useful economic lives as follows:

Freehold and long leasehold buildings up to 2%
Short leasehold buildings (under 50 years) over the life of the lease
Equipment and motor vehicles 10%-33.3%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful economic lives on the same basis as owned assets or;, where shorter,
over the term of the relevant lease.

Where significant, the residual values and the useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment are reassessed annually. The directors review the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment on an ongoing basis and, where appropriate, provide for any impairment in value.

g Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated initially at their fair value. The carrying amount of trade receivables is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. The group provides for bad debts based upon an analysis of those that are past due in accordance with local conditions and
past default experience.

PFl assets

Under the terms of a Private Finance Initiative (PFl) or similar project, where the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset remain largely with the
purchaser of the associated services, the group’s interest in the asset is classified as a financial asset and included at its discounted value within trade
and other receivables.

Current asset investments
Current asset investments comprise investments in securities, which are classified as held-for-trading. They are initially recognised at cost, including
transaction costs, and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing bank overdrafts, loans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method.
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3 Significant accounting policies continued

g Financial instruments continued

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated initially at fair value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

h Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost represents expenditure incurred in the ordinary course of business in bringing
inventories to their present condition and location and includes appropriate overheads. Cost is calculated using either the weighted average or the
first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.
Provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropriate.

i Impairment

The carrying value of the group’s assets, apart from inventories and deferred tax assets, is reviewed on an ongoing basis for any indication of
impairment and, if any such indication exists, the assets' recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
whenever the carrying value of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and its value in use, where value in use is assessed as the estimated pre-tax
future cash flows deriving from the asset discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash flows, the recoverable
amount is determined with respect to the cash-generating unit to which the asset attaches.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is tested annually through assessing the carrying values of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
attaches. An impairment loss recognised in respect of a cash-generating unit is allocated first so as to reduce the carrying value of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit, and then to reduce the carrying value of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of any other asset, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine its recoverable amount. The amount of the reversal is limited such that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
that which would have been determined (after depreciation and amortisation) if no impairment loss had been recognised.

j Repurchase of share capital

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable costs net of any tax
effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Where repurchased shares are held by an employee benefit trust, they are classified as treasury
shares and presented as a deduction from equity.

k Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefits scheme.

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at each balance sheet date. The discount rate used is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit rated corporate bonds that have
maturity dates approximating to the terms of the group’s obligations. The expected finance income on assets and the finance cost on liabilities are
recognised in the income statement as components of finance income and finance cost respectively. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full
in the period in which they occur and presented outside the income statement in the statement of recognised income and expense.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested. Otherwise it is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits vest.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost, reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to unrecognised past
service cost plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

Long-term service benefits
The group’s net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits other than retirement benefits represents the present value of the future benefit
that employees have earned at the balance sheet date, less the fair value of scheme assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.

Share-based payments

The group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. The fair value of share-based payments is determined at the date of
grant and expensed, with a corresponding increase in equity, on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the group’s estimate of the

shares that will eventually vest. The amount expensed is adjusted over the vesting period for changes in the estimate of the number of shares that
will eventually vest, save for changes resulting from any market-related performance conditions.

The fair value of share-based payments granted in the form of options is measured by the use of the Black-Scholes valuation technique, adjusted for
future dividend receipts and for any market-related performance conditions.
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3 Significant accounting policies continued

| Provisions

Provisions are recognised when a present legal or constructive obligation exists for a future liability in respect of a past event and where the amount
of the obligation can be estimated reliably. ltems within provisions include loss-making contracts, external claims against the group's captive insurance
businesses, costs of meeting lease requirements on unoccupied properties, costs of replacing assets where there is a present contractual obligation
and restructuring provisions for the costs of a business reorganisation where the plans are sufficiently detailed and where the appropriate
communication to those affected has been undertaken at the balance sheet date.

Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expected expenditure using an appropriate discount rate.

m Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes. Revenue for manned security and cash solutions products
and for recurring services in security systems products is recognised to reflect the period in which the service is provided. Revenue on security
systems installations is recognised either on completion in respect of product sales, or in accordance with the stage of completion method in respect
of construction contracts.

Construction contracts

Where significant, security system installations with a contract duration in excess of one month are accounted for as construction contracts.
Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity at the balance sheet date. This is normally measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims
and incentive payments are included to the extent that it is likely that they will be agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are deemed likely to be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses as they are incurred. Where it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised immediately as an expense.

Construction contracts are recognised on the balance sheet at cost plus profit recognised to date, less provision for foreseeable losses and less
progress billings. Balances are not offset.

Government grants

Government grants in respect of items expensed in the income statement are recognised as deductions from the associated expenditure.
Government grants in respect of property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred income and released to the income statement over the lives
of the related assets.

Interest
Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. This is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Dividends
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

n Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement, except those that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are capitalised.

o Profit from operations

Profit from operations is stated after the share of results of associates but before finance income and finance costs. Exceptional items of particular
significance, including restructuring costs, are included within profit from operations but are disclosed separately.

p Income taxes

Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that

it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill in a business combination or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.
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3 Significant accounting policies continued

p Income taxes continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except
where the group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of each deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

q Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the inception of the lease at their fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Amounts due from lessees
under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the group’s net investment in the leases. Lease payments made or received are
apportioned between finance charges or income and the reduction of the lease liability or asset so as to produce a constant rate of interest on the
outstanding balance of the liability or asset.

Rentals payable or receivable under operating leases are charged or credited to income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, as are incentives to
enter into operating leases.
r Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the group's other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the group’s CEO to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

s Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather

than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. The group must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

A discontinued operation is a component of the group's business that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations
oris a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale, that has been disposed of, has been abandoned or meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale.

t Dividends

Dividends are recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period in which they are paid. Dividends proposed or declared but not paid are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

u Adoption of new and revised accounting standards and interpretations

Standards and interpretation issued by the IASB are only applicable if endorsed by the EU. The Following revisions to the IFRS will be applicable in
future periods, subject to endorsement where applicable.

* Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations is applicable for 2010. This standards will affect the future accounting for acquisitions. There will be no
retrospective impact.

* Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures are applicable for 2010. The Amendments
require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and liquidity risk.

* IAS 27 Amendment Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly-Controlled Entity or Associate is applicable for 2010. The standard will affect the future
accounting for transactions with non-controlling interests. There will be no retrospective impact.

* Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement: Eligible Hedged Items and Amendment to IAS 39 Reclassification of
Financial Assets: Effective Date and Transition applicable for 2010.

* IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements is applicable for 2010. The standard addresses how service concession operators should apply existing
IFRSs to their arrangements.

The group does not consider that any other standards, amendments or interpretations issued by the IASB, but not yet applicable, will have a significant
impact on the financial statements
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4 Accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of the group's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, with respect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income
and expenses during the reporting period. These judgements, estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, including current and expected economic conditions, and in some cases,
actuarial techniques. Although these judgements, estimates and associated assumptions are based on management's best knowledge of current events
and circumstances, the actual results may differ:

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions which are of most significance to the group are detailed below:

Valuation of acquired businesses

The initial accounting for an acquisition involves identifying and determining the fair values to be assigned to identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities as well as the acquisition cost. In some instances, this initial accounting can only be determined provisionally by the end of the period in

which the acquisition is effected because the fair values and/or the costs are not known with full certainty. In such an event, the initial accounting

can be completed using provisional values with any adjustments to those provisional values being completed within 12 months of the acquisition date.
Additionally, in determining the fair value of acquisition-related intangible assets, in the absence of market prices for similar assets, valuation techniques
are applied. These techniques use a variety of estimates including projected future results and expected future cash flows, discounted using the
weighted average cost of capital relevant to the acquisition. Furthermore, management make an assessment of the useful economic life of acquired
intangible assets upon recognition. Full details of the fair values of assets and liabilities of acquired businesses are presented in note 17.

Assessment of the recoverable amounts in respect of assets tested for impairment

The group tests tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill, for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if there are indications that
amounts may be impaired. The impairment analysis for such assets is based principally upon discounted estimated future cash flows from the use and
eventual disposal of the assets. Such an analysis includes an estimation of the future anticipated results and cash flows, annual growth rates and the
appropriate discount rates. The full methodology and results of the group’s impairment testing is presented in note 19.

Valuation of retirement benefit obligations

The valuation of defined retirement benefit schemes is arrived at using the advice of qualified independent actuaries who use the projected unit
credit method for determining the group’s obligations. This methodology requires the use of a variety of assumptions and estimates, including the
appropriate discount rate, the expected return on scheme assets, mortality assumptions, future service and earnings increases of employees and
inflation. Full details of the group’s retirement benefit obligations, including an analysis of the sensitivity of the calculations to the key assumptions are
presented in note 34.

5 Revenue
An analysis of the group’s revenue is as follows:
2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Sale of goods 158.0 190.2
Rendering of services 6,726.8 56189
Revenue from construction contracts 123.8 1194
Revenue from continuing operations as presented in the consolidated income statement 6 7,008.6 59285
Discontinued operations
Rendering of services 34.3 2233
Revenue from construction contracts 6.4 8.0
Revenue from discontinued operations 67 40.7 231.3
Other operating income
Interest income 12.7 184
Net gain in fair value of loan note derivative financial instruments and hedged items 1.0 -
Expected return on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 68.0 86.5

Total other operating income 81.7 1049
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6 Business and geographical segments

The group operates in two core product areas: secure solutions and cash solutions. The group operates on a worldwide basis and derives a
substantial proportion of its revenue and PBIT from each of the following geographical regions: Europe (comprising the United Kingdom and Ireland,
and Continental Europe), North America and New Markets (comprising the Middle East and Gulf States, Latin America and the Caribbean, Africa
and Asia Pacific).

Secure solutions provides integrated security solutions for commercial customers such as risk consulting, manned security and security systems and the
protection of critical national infrastructure for governments along with care and justice, secure facilities and border protection. Cash solutions
provides the outsourcing of cash cycle management for central banks, financial institutions and retailers.

The segment disclosures are based on the components that the board monitors in making decisions about operating matters. Such components are
identified on the basis of internal reports that the board reviews regularly in allocating resources to segments and in assessing their performance.

This results in a segmental analysis which is similar to that presented previously under IAS 14 (Segmental Reporting).

Segment information is presented below:

Revenue by business segment

Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total operations operations Total
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Secure solutions
‘ UK and Ireland 1,139.3 - 1,139.3 9299 - 9299
‘ Continental Europe 1,497.7 33.7 1,531.4 1,378.6 215.2 [,593.8
Europe 2,637.0 33.7 2,670.7 2,308.5 215.2 2,5237
North America 1,495.3 - 1,495.3 1,222.3 - 1,222.3
‘ Middle East and Gulf States 424.5 - 424.5 315.6 — 315.6
‘ Latin America and the Caribbean 283.0 - 283.0 229.0 19 2309
‘ Africa 305.6 - 305.6 248.6 - 248.6
‘ Asia Pacific 522.0 - 522.0 412.0 0.1 412.1
New Markets 1,535.1 - 1,535.1 [,205.2 2.0 1,207.2
Total Secure Solutions 5,667.4 33.7 5,701.1 4736.0 2172 4953.2
Cash solutions
Europe 929.2 0.1 929.3 859.1 02 859.3
North America 98.8 - 98.8 87.0 - 870
New Markets 313.2 6.9 320.1 2464 139 260.3
Total cash solutions 1,341.2 7.0 1,348.2 [,192.5 14.1 1,206.6
Total revenue 7,008.6 40.7 7,049.3 5928.5 231.3 6,159.8
Revenue by geographical market
Total Total
2009 2008
£m £m
UK and Ireland* 1,629.3 1,397.7
Continental Europe 1,970.7 1985.3
Europe 3,600.0 3,383.0
North America 1,594.1 1,309.3
‘ Middle East and Gulf States 475.7 3539
‘ Latin America and the Caribbean 326.9 272.6
| Africa 426.7 3436
‘ Asia Pacific 625.9 4974
New Markets 1,855.2 1,467.5
Total revenue 7,049.3 6,159.8

*UK and Ireland revenue includes £1,508m relating to the UK (2008: £1,278m).
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6 Business and geographical segments continued

Revenue from internal and external customers by business segment

Total gross Total gross
segment Inter-segment External segment Inter-segment External
revenue revenue revenue revenue revenue revenue
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Secure solutions 5,709.7 (8.6) 5,701.1 4,960.3 (7.) 4,953.2
Cash solutions 1,348.6 (0.4) 1,348.2 1,207.1 ©.5) 1,206.6
Total revenue 7,058.3 9.0) 7,049.3 6,1674 (7.6) 6,159.8

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

PBITA by business segment

Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total operations operations Total
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008
£Em £m £Em £m £m £m
Secure solutions
UK and Ireland 97.3 - 97.3 76.8 ©.5) 763
Continental Europe 79.3 (10.7) 68.6 74.3 8.0 66.3
Europe 176.6 (10.7) 165.9 I51.1 8.5) 142.6
North America 84.8 (1.1 83.7 70.6 (1.6) 69.0
Middle East and Guilf States 38.5 - 38.5 264 - 264
Latin America and the Caribbean 17.6 - 17.6 13.8 0.2 14.0
Africa 29.0 - 29.0 224 - 224
Asia Pacific 41.1 - 41.1 326 0.2 324
New Markets 126.2 - 126.2 95.2 — 95.2
Total secure solutions 387.6 (11.8) 375.8 3169 (101 306.8
Cash solutions
Europe 102.0 .n 101.9 94.0 ©.1) 939
North America 4.1 - 4.1 0.8 = 0.8
New Markets 46.3 (1.5) 44.8 38.8 ©.3) 385
Total cash solutions 152.4 (1.6) 150.8 133.6 04) 133.2
Total PBITA before head office costs 540.0 (13.49) 526.6 450.5 (10.5) 440.0
Head office costs (39.7) - (39.7) (35.5) - (35.5)
Total PBITA 500.3 (13.49) 486.9 415.0 (10.5) 404.5
PBITA by geographical market
Europe 278.6 (10.8) 267.8 245.1 8.6) 236.5
North America 88.9 (nn 87.8 714 (1.6) 69.8
New Markets 172.5 (1.5) 171.0 134.0 ©.3) 133.7
Total PBITA before head office costs 540.0 (13.4) 526.6 450.5 (10.5) 440.0
Head office costs (39.7) - (39.7) (35.5) - (35.5)

Total PBITA 500.3 (13.49) 486.9 415.0 (10.5) 404.5
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Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total operations operations Total
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Total PBITA 500.3 (13.49) 486.9 415.0 (10.5) 404.5
Amortisation of acquisition-related
intangible assets (83.2) - (83.2) (67.8) — (67.8)
Total PBIT 417.1 (13.49) 403.7 3472 (10.5) 3367
Secure solutions 330.1 (11.8) 318.3 271.3 (10.1Y 261.2
Cash solutions 126.7 (1.6) 125.1 1114 04) I11.0
Head office costs (39.7) - (39.7) (35.5) - (35.5)
Total PBIT 417.1 (13.49) 403.7 3472 (10.5) 336.7
Continuing PBIT as stated above is equal to PBIT as disclosed in the income statement. Discontinued PBIT as stated above is analysed in note 7.
Segment assets and liabilities
The following information is analysed by business segment and by the geographical area in which the assets are located:
2009 2008
Total assets £m £m
By business segment
Secure solutions 3,829.7 39924
Cash solutions 653.9 639.3
Head office 104.6 180.5
Inter-segment trading balances (98.5) (86.6)
Total segment operating assets 4,489.7 4,725.6
By geographical segment
UK and Ireland* 1,500.8 1,543.5
Continental Europe 1,015.4 [,163.5
Europe 2,516.2 2,707.0
North America 997.5 956.3
Middle East and Gulf States 166.0 1714
Latin America and the Caribbean 161.7 166.5
Africa 282.1 2614
Asia Pacific 360.1 329.8
New Markets 969.9 929.1
Head office 104.6 219.6
Inter-segment trading balances (98.5) (864)
Total segment operating assets 4,489.7 47256
Non-operating assets 674.2 893.0
Total assets 5,163.9 5618.6

*UK and Ireland operating assets include £1,431m of assets relating to the UK (2008: £1,527m).
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6 Business and geographical segments continued

Segment assets and liabilities continued

2009 2008
Total liabilities £m £m
By business segment
Secure solutions (1,017.6) (1,051.3)
Cash solutions (219.5) (356.9)
Head office 97.9) (109.2)
Inter-segment trading balances 98.5 86.6
Total segment operating liabilities (1,236.5) (1/430.8)
Non-operating liabilities (2,488.2) (2,716.9)
Total liabilities (3,724.7) (4,147.7)

Non-operating assets and liabilities comprise financial assets and liabilities, taxation assets and liabilities and retirement benefit obligations.

Included within operating and non-operating assets are £2.6m (2008: £64.5m) and £26.5m (2008: £6.5m) respectively relating to assets classified as
held for sale. Included within operating and non-operating liabilities are £10.9m (2008: £58.4m) and £20.0m (2008: £15.7m) respectively relating to
liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale. Disposal groups are analysed in note 27.

Other information by geographical location

Impairment Impairment

losses Depreciation losses Depreciation
recognised and Capital recognised and Capital
inincome amortisation additions in income amortisation additions
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008
By business segment £Em £m £m £m £m £m
Secure solutions - 165.2 247.8 294 [13.0 7532
Cash solutions - 53.6 86.0 = 709 109.6
Head office - 0.6 16.5 - - 2.5
Total - 2194 350.3 294 1839 865.3
Capital Capital
additions additions
2009 2008
By geographical segment £m £m
UK and Ireland 66.2 5100
Continental Europe 66.1 96.5
Europe 132.3 606.5
North America 110.1 75.3
Middle East and Guilf States 8.2 69.1
Latin America and the Caribbean 10.7 23.0
Africa 43.7 453
Asia Pacific 42.8 43.6
New Markets 105.4 181.0
Head office 2.5 2.5

Total 350.3 865.3
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7 Discontinued operations

Operations qualifying as discontinued in the current period primarily comprise the security services business in France, which principally comprises
Group 4 Securicor SAS, disposed of on 28 February 2009, Group 4 Falck Reinsurance S.A, the captive insurance business in Luxembourg, disposed of
on 23 December 2009 and the systems installation business in Slovakia. Further operations qualifying as discontinued in the prior year also comprised
the security services business in Germany, which principally comprised G4S Sicherheitsdienste GmbH and G4S Sicherheitssysteme GmbH, disposed
of on 15 May 2008.

The results of the discontinued operations which have been included in the consolidated income statement are presented below:

2009 2008

£m £m

Revenue 40.7 231.3
Expenses (54.1) (241.8)
Operating loss before interest and taxation (PBIT) (13.49) (10.5)
Net finance costs (0.3) (1.3)

Attributable tax credit 19.3 0.1
Total operating profit/(loss) for the year 5.6 (11.7)
(Loss)/profit on disposal of discontinued operations (note |8) (12.5) 12.0
Goodwill impairment - (294)
Adjustment in respect of disposals in the prior year - |.6
Net loss attributable to discontinued operations 6.9 (27.5)

The attributable tax credit relates to the recognition in 2009 of previously unrecognised tax attributes in G4S Government Services Inc., a US
group company.

The 2008 goodwill impairment charge relates to the security services businesses in France, which includes principally Group 4 Securicor SAS, to write
down net assets to their recoverable amount based on the disposal in February 2009.

The 2008 adjustment in respect of disposals in the prior year comprises £0.Im relating to the finalisation of the disposal of Cognisa Transportation, Inc.
and £1.5m to write-off of assets and liabilities relating to the disposal of G4S Cash Services (France) SAS.

The effect of discontinued operations on segment results is disclosed in note 6.

Cash flows from discontinued operations included in the consolidated cash flow statement are as follows:

2009 2008
£m £m
Net cash flows from operating activities (14.1) (25.1)
Net cash flows from investing activities (CA)) 2.1
Net cash flows from financing activities 1.3 6.0
(21.9) (17.0)
8 Profit from operations before interest and taxation (PBIT)
The income statement can be analysed as follows:
2009 2008
Continuing operations £Em £m
Revenue 7,008.6 5928.5
Cost of sales (5,472.8) (“.615.7)
Gross profit 1,535.8 1,312.8
Administration expenses (1,119.9) (969.0)
Share of profit from associates 1.2 34
PBIT 417.1 3472

Included within administration expenses is £83.2m (2008: £67.8m) of amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets.

Revenue and expenses relating to discontinued operations are disclosed in note 7.
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9 Profit from operations

Profit from continuing and discontinued operations has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2009 2008
£m £m
Cost of sales
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 91.9 83.1
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 0.2 0.2
Administration expenses
Amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets 83.2 67.8
Amortisation of other intangible assets 15.1 [
Goodwill impairment - 294
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 121.1 105.0
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisition-related (0.3) 2.1
Impairment of trade receivables 17 4.5
Litigation settlements 0.9 0.5
Research and development expenditure 5.8 35
Operating lease rentals payable 131.2 124.3
Operating sub-lease rentals receivable (10.3) 6.2)
Cost of equity-settled transactions 7.1 50
Government grants received as a contribution towards wage costs (1.3) (1.5)
Net foreign translation adjustments 1.6 24
10 Auditors’ remuneration
2009 2008
£m £m
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the company’s annual report and accounts 1.1 1.0
Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for other services:
The audit of the company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 4.2 32
Other services pursuant to legislation - 0.1
Taxation services 0.4 0.3
Corporate finance services 0.6 04
Fees payable to other auditors for the audit of the company'’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.6 0.6

The Corporate governance statement on pages 47 to 49 outlines the company’s established policy for ensuring that audit independence is not
compromised through the provision by the company’s auditor of other services.



GA4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009
Overview
Business review

Governance

Financial statements 77

Shareholder information

I1 Staff costs and employees

The average monthly number of employees, in continuing and discontinued operations, including executive directors was:

2009 2008
Number Number
By business segment
Secure solutions 542,044 516,647
Cash solutions 50,804 44930
Not allocated, including shared administration and head office 116 299
Total average number of employees 592,964 561,876
By geographical segment
Europe 134,224 129,224
North America 48,995 51918
New Markets 409,629 380,619
Not allocated, including shared administration and head office 116 I5
Total average number of employees 592,964 561,876
Their aggregate remuneration, in continuing and discontinued operations, comprised:
2009 2008
£m £m
Wages and salaries 4,059.8 3,5369
Social security costs 505.1 467.2
Employee benefits 157.9 [13.3
Total staff costs 4,722.8 41174

Information on directors’ remuneration, share options, long-term incentive plans and pension contributions and entitlements is set out in the
Directors’ remuneration report on pages 50 to 55.

12 Finance income

2009 2008

£m £m

Interest income on cash, cash equivalents and investments 11.9 7.8
Other interest income 0.8 0.6
Expected return on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 68.0 86.5
Loss arising from change in fair value of derivative financial instruments hedging loan notes (53.2) -
Gain arising from fair value adjustment to the hedged loan note items 54.2 -
Total finance income 81.7 1049

I3 Finance costs

2009 2008

£m £m

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 27.6 63.3
Interest on loan notes 66.4 31.6
Interest on obligations under finance leases 7.0 39
Other interest charges 8.0 6.6
Gain arising from change in fair value of derivative financial instruments hedging loan notes - (78.0)
Loss arising from fair value adjustment to the hedged loan note items - 792
Total group borrowing costs 109.0 106.6
Finance costs on defined retirement benefit obligations 87.0 82.8
Total finance costs 196.0 1894

Included within interest on bank overdrafts and loans is a debit of £12.3m (2008: £1.5m) relating to cash flow hedges that were transferred from
equity during the year.
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14 Taxation

Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total operations operations Total
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Current taxation expense/(credit)
UK corporation tax 19.0 - 19.0 10.5 - 10.5
Overseas tax 73.2 (rn 72.1 73.0 ©.3) 727
Adjustments in respect of prior years:
UK corporation tax (2.9 - 2.9 (3.8) - (3.8)
Overseas tax 8.6 0.3 8.9 (4.0) — 4.0)
Total current taxation expense/(credit) 97.9 (0.8) 97.1 757 0.3) 754
Deferred taxation (credit)/expense
(see note 36)
Current year (13.8) (18.5) (32.3) (2.1 0.2 (11.9)
Adjustments in respect of prior years (7.4) - (7.4) 6.7 - 6.7
Total deferred taxation (credit)/expense (21.2) (18.5) (39.7) 54 0.2 5.2
Total income tax expense/(credit) for
the year 76.7 (19.3) 57.4 70.3 ©.1 70.2

UK corporation tax is calculated at 28.0% (2008: 28.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the period. Taxation is calculated at the corporation
tax rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows:

2009 2008
£m £m
Profit before taxation
Continuing operations 302.8 2627
Discontinued operations (26.2) (274)
Total profit before taxation 276.6 2353
Tax at UK corporation tax rate of 28.0% (2008: 28.5%) 77.5 67.1
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 9.7 10.1
Tax losses not recognised in the current year (19.3) 3.
Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in non-UK jurisdictions 9.0 89
Adjustments for previous years (1.4) (1.2
Total income tax charge 57.4 70.2
Effective tax rate 20.8% 299%

In addition to the income tax expense charged to the income statement, a tax credit of £21.9m (2008: £50.3m) has been recognised in equity.

I5 Dividends

Pence DKK 2009 2008
per share per share £Em £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders
of the parent in the year

Final dividend for the year ended 3| December 2007 2.85 0.2786 - 364
Interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2008 2.75 0.2572 - 38.6
Final dividend for the year ended 3| December 2008 3.68 0.3052 51.7 =
Interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2009 3.02 0.2599 42.5 -
94.2 75.0

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 4.16 0.3408 58.4

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. If so approved, it will be paid on 4 June 2010 to
shareholders who are on the UK register on 7 May 2010. The exchange rate used to translate it into Danish krone is that at 15 March 2010.
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16 Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to equity shareholder of the parent
2009 2008
£m £m

From continuing and discontinued operations
Earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 202.5 151.2
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares (net of tax) - 0.2
Profit for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 202.5 1514
Number of shares (m)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,403.6 1,357.7
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares 0.1 1.3
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings/(loss) per share 1,403.7 1,359.0
Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations (pence)
Basic 14.4p [.Ip
Diluted 14.4p [.Ip
From continuing operations
Earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 202.5 151.2
Adjustment to exclude loss/(profit) for the year from discontinued operations (net of tax) (note 7) 6.9 27.5
Profit from continuing operations 209.4 1787
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares (net of tax) - 0.2
Profit from continuing operations for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 209.4 1789
Earnings per share from continuing operations (pence)
Basic 14.9p 13.2p
Diluted 14.9p 13.2p
From discontinued operations
Loss per share from discontinued operations (pence)
Basic (0.5)p .Hp
Diluted (0.5)p .hp
From adjusted earnings
Earnings
Profit from continuing operations 209.4 178.7
Adjustment to exclude net retirement benefit finance income/(cost) (net of tax) 13.7 @.7)
Adjustment to exclude amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets (net of tax) 59.9 48.7
Adjusted profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 283.0 2247
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (m) 1,403.6 1,357.7
Adjusted earnings per share (pence) 20.2p 16.6p

In the opinion of the directors, the earnings per share figure of most use to shareholders is that which is adjusted. This figure better allows the

assessment of operational performance, the analysis of trends over time, the comparison of different businesses and the projection of future earnings.

The denominators used in all earnings/(loss) per share calculations are those disclosed in respect of continuing and discontinued operations.
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17 Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions

The group undertook a number of acquisitions in the current period. Principal acquisitions in subsidiary undertakings include the purchase of the
entire share capital of SecPoint Security Limited, a security solutions business in Ghana; Sunshine Youth Services, a juvenile justice business in the
US; CL Systems Limited, a cash solutions business in Greater China; SMI, a cash solutions business in the UK; Adesta LLC, a leading US systems
integrator in the design and operation of security systems and command and control centres for Government and Regulated services; All Star
International, one of the premier facilities management and base operations support companies providing services to the US Government; NSSC,
a US risk consulting business in the nuclear power industry and the public sector and Hill & Associates, Asia’s leading provider of specialist risk
mitigation consulting services.

In addition, the group completed the minority buy-outs of certain businesses in New Markets.

A summary of the provisional fair value of net assets acquired by geographical location is presented below:

North New Total

Europe America Markets group

£m £m £m £m

Provisional fair value of net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 20 520 74 61.4
Acquisition of minority interests - ©.8) 7.8 7.0
Total provisional fair value of net assets acquired 20 5.2 152 68.4
Goodwill 1.7 46.1 370 84.8
Total purchase consideration 37 97.3 52.2 153.2

The following table sets out the book values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired and their provisional fair value to the group in respect of all
acquisitions made in the year:

Fair value
Book value adjustments Fair value
£m £m £m
Intangible assets |4 50.5 51.9
Property, plant and equipment 29 - 29
Investment in associates = = -
Inventories 4.5 ©.1 4.4
Trade and other receivables 50.7 = 50.7
Deferred tax assets 0.3 = 0.3
Cash and cash equivalents 4.8 = 4.8
Trade and other payables (335) - (33.5)
Current tax liabilities 0.6) — (0.6)
Provisions 09) = 0.9
Borrowings ©.8) - (0.8)
Deferred tax liabilities - (17.8) (17.8)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 28.8 326 61.4
Acquisition of minority interests 70 - 7.0
Goodwill 84.8
Total purchase consideration 153.2
Satisfied by:
Cash 159.3
Transaction costs' 6.7)
Contingent consideration 0.6
Total purchase consideration 153.2

| Transaction costs are net of £10.5m receivable relating to a refund of tax expenses incurred when Group 4 Securicor plc acquired Securicor plc in 2004.
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17 Acquisitions continued

Current year acquisitions continued

Adjustments made to identifiable assets and liabilities on acquisition are to reflect their fair value. These include the recognition of customer-related
intangible assets amounting to £50.5m. The fair values of net assets acquired are provisional and represent estimates following a preliminary valuation
exercise. These estimates may be adjusted to reflect any development in the issues to which they relate.

The goodwill arising on acquisitions can be ascribed to the existence of a skilled, active workforce and the opportunities to obtain new contracts and
develop the business. Neither of these meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets separable from goodwill. Goodwill arising on acquisition
includes £21.7m arising on the acquisition of minority interests.

From their respective dates of acquisition, the acquired businesses’ contribution to the results of the group for the period was as follows:

Revenue PBITA Profit
Contribution from acquired businesses £m £Em £m
SecPoint Security 37 1.3 0.7
CL Systems 1.3 0.5 =
Secura Monde 4.7 09 0.2
Sunshine Youth Services 9.7 09 09
All Star [1.2 [.] I
Others 39 04 04
Total contribution from acquired businesses 345 5.1 33

If all the acquisitions had occurred on | January 2009 the results of the group for the period would have been as follows:

Revenue PBITA Profit
Group’s results if all acquisitions had occurred on | January 2009 £m £m £m
Group results for the period 7,008.6 500.3 2192
Impact of backdating acquisitions to | January 2009
SecPoint Security 37 1.3 0.7
CL Systems 1.3 0.5 -
Secura Monde 50 09 0.2
Sunshine Youth Services 16.6 1.6 1.6
All Star 66.0 44 2.1
Adesta LLC 66.7 5.1 23
NSSC 15.6 25 1.3
Hill & Associates 8.7 (1.1 (1.0)
Other 8.1 0.8 0.5
Group result for the period if all acquisitions had occurred on | January 2009 7,200.3 516.3 2263

Prior year acquisitions

The most significant acquisition in subsidiary undertakings in the prior year was the purchase of De Facto 119 Limited, the holding company of the
Global Solutions group (“GSL") an international leader in the provision of support services for governments, companies and public authorities, based
in the UK, which was completed on 12 May 2008. Other principal acquisitions in subsidiary undertakings in the prior year include the purchases

of ArmorGroup International plc, an international provider of defensive, protective security services, headquartered in the UK; Touchcom, Inc,,

a security consultancy and design business in the US; RONCO Consulting Corporation, an international provider of humanitarian mine clearance and
ordnance services, specialised security and training, headquartered in the US; MJM Investigations, Inc., a provider of insurance fraud mitigation and
claims services in the US; the Rock Steady group of companies, providing event security in the UK; Travel Logistics Limited, a provider of passport
and visa services in the UK and Progard, a market-leader in professional security services in the Republic of Serbia.

In addition, the group completed the acquisition of a further 35% of Aktsiaselts G4S Baltics, increasing to 100% its holding in this company, the holding
company of the G4S subsidiaries in Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania, which provide both security services and cash services. This transaction was largely
accrued at 31 December 2007 through the recognition of a put option. The group also acquired the 49% of G4S Macau Limitada, a provider of both
security services and cash services that it did not already own.
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17 Acquisitions continued

At 31 December 2008, the fair value adjustments made against net assets acquired were provisional. The initial accounting in respect of acquisitions
made during 2008 has since been finalised. The net assets acquired and goodwill arising in respect of all acquisitions made in the year are as follows:

Fair value
Book value adjustments Fair value
£m £m £m
Intangible assets 5.8 209.0 214.8
Property, plant and equipment 45.7 (16.5) 29.2
Investment in associates |4 = 1.4
Inventories 59 (1.7) 4.2
Trade and other receivables 140.7 4.6) 136.1
Deferred tax assets 89 64 15.3
Cash and cash equivalents 584 [.5 59.9
Trade and other payables (112.9) 222) (135.1)
Current tax liabilities 2.7) (1.5) 4.2)
Obligations under finance leases (13.5) = (13.5)
Provisions 29 (56.2) (53.3)
Borrowings (256.7) — (256.7)
Deferred tax liabilities (1.3) (604) 61.7)
Net (liabilities)/assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings (1174) 538 (63.6)
Acquisition of minority interests 53 0.5 5.8
Goodwill 427.6
Total purchase consideration 369.8
Satisfied by:
Cash 339.0
Transaction costs 19.2
Contingent consideration 1.6
Total purchase consideration 369.8

Adjustments made to identifiable assets and liabilities on acquisition are to reflect their fair value. These include the recognition of customer-related
intangible assets amounting to £191.4m. On completion of the fair value exercise during 2009, adjustments made to the provisional calculation
amounted to £19.Im, with an equivalent increase in the reported value of goodwill. The comparative balance sheet at 31 December 2008 has been
restated accordingly. The adjustments to the provisional calculation are primarily to recognise an additional £10.9m of customer-related intangible
assets (with a related deferred tax asset of £3.Im) and an additional £25.4m of provisions relating to employee benefits and onerous contracts.

The goodwill arising on acquisitions can be ascribed to the existence of a skilled, active workforce and the opportunities to obtain new contracts and
develop the business. Neither of these meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets separable from goodwill. Goodwill arising on acquisition
includes £19.6m arising on the acquisition of minority interests.

In the year of acquisition, in aggregate, the acquired businesses contributed £518.6m to revenues, £46.6m to PBITA and £18.0m to profit for the part
year they were under the group’s ownership. If all acquisitions had occurred on | January 2008, group revenue would have been £6,203.6m, PBITA
would have been £439.6m and profit for the year would have been £174.0m.
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17 Acquisitions continued

Acquisition of GSL

The net assets acquired and goodwill in respect of the GSL acquisition made in the prior year are as follows:

Fair value
Book value adjustments Fair value
£m £m £m
Intangible assets 1.9 157.6 159.5
Investment in associates |4 = 1.4
Property, plant and equipment 18.8 (5.5) 13.3
Inventories 0.6 = 0.6
Trade and other receivables 757 ©.5) 75.2
Deferred tax assets 4.8 0.3) 4.5
Cash and cash equivalents 54.7 — 54.7
Trade and other payables (84.0) 54) (89.4)
Current tax liabilities (1.2) - (1.2)
Obligations under finance leases (12.6) - (12.6)
Provisions 32 (59) 2.7
Borrowings (238.8) - (238.8)
Deferred tax liabilities (1.9) (44.6) (46.5)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings (1774) 954 (82.0)
Goodwill 258.1
Total purchase consideration 176.1
Satisfied by:
Cash 167.7
Transaction costs 8.4
Total purchase consideration 176.1

Post balance sheet acquisitions

No acquisitions have been effected between the balance sheet date and the date that the financial statements were authorised for issue.



G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009

84

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

18 Disposal of subsidiaries

On 23 December 2009, the group disposed of Group 4 Falck Reinsurance S.A, the captive insurance business in Luxembourg.

On 28 February 2009, the group disposed of the manned security business in France, which includes principally Group 4 Securicor SAS.
On 31 July 2008, the group disposed of the security systems business in France, being G4S Telesurveillance SAS and G4S Technologie SAS.

On 15 May 2008, the group disposed of the secure solutions business in Germany, which principally comprises G4S Sicherheitsdienste GmbH and
GA4S Sicherheitssysteme GmbH.

The net assets of operations disposed of were as follows:

2009 2008
£m £m
Goodwill 13.1 20.8
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisition-related 3.0 4.3
Current assets 84.0 13.0
Liabilities (79.3) (19.0)
Net assets of operations disposed 20.8 19.1
(Loss)/profit on disposal (12.5) 12.0
Total consideration 8.3 311
Satisfied by:
Cash received 14.5 311
Disposal costs 6.2) —
Cash 8.3 311

The impact of the disposals, combined with other operations qualifying as discontinued, on the group’s results and cash flows in the current and prior
year is disclosed in note 7.
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19 Intangible assets
Goodwill Acquisition-related intangible assets Other intangible assets Total
Customer Development
Trademarks related Technology expenditure Software
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2009
Cost
At | January 2009 2,113.4 33.5 566.3 19.4 12.4 103.7 2,848.7
Acquisition of businesses 84.8 - 51.2 0.7 - - 136.7
Additions - - 0.2 - 4.9 23.7 28.8
Disposals (22.2) - (0.2) - (0.49) (7.6) (30.4)
Translation adjustments (60.9) 0.4 (16.1) (1.5) (0.6) 1.8 (80.5)
At 31 December 2009 2,115.1 33.9 601.4 18.6 16.3 118.0 2,903.3
Amortisation and
accumulated
impairment losses
At | January 2009 (33.9) (16.4) (186.8) (12.9) 2.9 (52.2) (305.1)
Amortisation charge - (5.3) (75.2) (2.7) (2.7) (12.49) (98.3)
Disposals 8.8 - 0.2 - 0.3 7.1 16.4
Translation adjustments (46.1) 0.2) 5.1 1.5 - (2.8) (42.5)
At 31 December 2009 (71.2) (21.9) (256.7) (14.1) (5.3) (60.3) (429.5)
Carrying amount
At | January 2009 2,079.5 17.1 379.5 6.5 9.5 51.5 2,543.6
At 31 December 2009 2,043.9 12.0 344.7 4.5 1.0 57.7 2,473.8
2008
Cost
At | January 2008 [,357.0 16.2 3222 10.7 7.0 60.5 [,773.6
Acquisition of businesses 4276 16.3 1914 52 - 1.9 6424
Additions = = 20 = 39 19.2 25.1
Disposals = = ©.1) = = (1.8) (19)
Translation adjustments 3288 1.0 50.8 35 [.5 239 409.5
At 3| December 2008 2,1134 335 566.3 194 124 103.7 2,848.7
Amortisation and
accumulated
impairment losses
At | January 2008 (257) (11.0) (106.7) (7.2) ©.8) (354) (186.8)
Amortisation charge = (4.0 61.2) (2.6) (1.7) (94) (789)
Disposals - - - - - [l Il
Translation adjustments 82 (14) (189) (€R)) 04 8.5) (40.5)
At 3| December 2008 (339) (164) (186.8) (129) (29) (52.2) (305.1
Carrying amount
At | January 2008 1,331.3 52 215.5 35 6.2 25.1 1,586.8
At 3| December 2008 2,079.5 17.1 379.5 6.5 9.5 5.5 2,543.6

Included within software is internally generated software with a gross carrying value of £9.Im (2008: £6.7m), and accumulated amortisation of £1.0m
(2008: £0.9m), giving a net book value of £8.1m (2008: £5.8m). During the year, additions amounted to £3.5m (2008: £3.9m) and the amortisation
charge associated to these assets was £1.0m (2008: £0.9m).
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19 Intangible assets continued

Customer-related intangibles comprise the contractual relationship with customers and the customer relationships which meet the criteria for
identification as intangible assets in accordance with IFRS. Customer contracts and relationships recognised upon the acquisition of Securicor plc on
19 July 2004 are considered significant to the group. The carrying amount at 3| December 2009 was £96.4m (2008: £138.6m), and the amortisation
period remaining in respect of these assets is four and a half years.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the cash-generating units (CGUs) which are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The majority of goodwill was generated by the merger of the security services businesses of Group 4 Falck and Securicor in 2004 which
was accounted for as an acquisition of Securicor by Group 4 Falck.

The group tests tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill, for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if there are indications that
amounts may be impaired. The annual impairment test is performed prior to the year end when the budgeting process is finalised and reviewed
post-year end. The group’s impairment test compares the carrying value of each CGU to its recoverable amount. CGUs are identified on a country
level basis including significant business units, as per the group’s detailed management accounts. Under IAS 36 Impairment of Assets, an impairment
is deemed to have occurred where the recoverable amount of a CGU is less than its carrying value.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined by its value in use which is derived from discounted cash flow calculations. These calculations include
forecast pre-tax cash flows for a period of five years. The five-year cash flow forecasts are based on the budget for the following year (year one) and
the business plans for years two and three, the results of which are reviewed by the board, and projections for years four and five, all of which reflect
past experience as well as future expected market trends. Budgeted and forecast cash flows are based on management's assessment of current contract
portfolio, contract wins, contract retention and price increases. Cash flows beyond the five-year forecast period are projected into perpetuity at the
lower of the planned growth rate in year three and the forecast underlying economic growth rate for the economies in which the CGU operates.

Where the planned growth rate in year three exceeds the forecast underlying economic growth rate, the excess is reduced progressively in the
projections for years four and five. Growth rates across the group’s CGUs range from 0% to 15%, and the into-perpetuity growth rates for the
significant CGUs are disclosed in the table below. Future cash flows are discounted at a pre-tax, weighted average cost of capital which for the group
is 8.4% (2008: 11.4%), and the discount rates for the significant CGUs are disclosed in the table below. Pre-tax cash flows are discounted using pre-tax
discount rates derived from calculating the net present value of the post-tax cash flows discounted at post-tax rates. The group rate is adjusted
where appropriate to reflect the different financial risks in each country in which the CGUs operate. Risk-adjusted discount rates applicable to group
entities range from 5.3% in Singapore to 65.9% in Madagascar.

In applying the group’s model, no impairment has been identified and recognised in any of the group’s CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2009
or for the year ended 31 December 2008. Management believe that there is currently no reasonably possible change in the underlying factors used in
the impairment model which would lead to a material impairment of goodwill.

The following CGUs have significant carrying amounts of goodwill:

Goodwill Goodwill

Discount rate Discount rate Growth rate* Growth rate* 2009 2008

2009 2008 2009 2008 £m £m

US secure solutions (manned security) 71.2% 10.1% 2.5% 5.0% 358.9 3889
GSL 8.4% [1.4% 2.5% 5.3% 258.1 258.1
UK cash solutions 8.4% [1.4% 2.5% 5.3% 240.4 244.5
Netherlands security solutions 71.3% 10.5% 3.5% 39% 125.7 136.6
UK secure solutions (manned security) 8.4% [1.4% 2.5% 5.3% 7.1 122.8
UK secure solutions (justice services) 8.4% [1.4% 2.5% 5.3% 95.3 953
Estonia secure solutions and cash solutions 13.1% 14.3% 4.0% 39% 67.4 73.0
Other (all allocated) 781.0 760.3
Total goodwill 2,043.9 2,079.5

*Growth rate is the long term into-perpetuity growth rate.

The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow calculations relate to the discount rates and underlying economic growth rates for each CGU.
With all other variables being equal, a 19 increase in the group discount rate from 8.4% to 9.4% with equivalent increases to the discount rates in all
countries would result in a goodwill impairment to the group of £4m, with a £3m impairment required to Estonia. A significant increase of 3% in the
group discount rate from 8.4% to 11.4%, and an equivalent increase in all countries, would result in a group impairment of £60m including impairments
of £26m to UK Cash solutions and £11m to Estonia.

A decrease in the underlying growth rate in all countries of 1% would result in a group impairment of £2m, with an impairment of £Im to Estonia.
A decrease of 3% in growth rate would result in a group impairment of £11m including an impairment to Estonia of £8m. These approximations
indicate the sensitivity of the impairment test to changes in the underlying assumptions. However, it is highly unlikely that any variations in the
assumptions would impact on all CGUs at the same time.
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20 Property plant and equipment
Land and Equipment
buildings and vehicles Total
£m £m £m
2009
Cost
At | January 2009 229.7 861.4 1,091.1
Acquisition of businesses 0.1 2.8 29
Additions 23.3 158.6 181.9
Disposals (15.6) 79.1) 94.7)
Translation adjustments (10.7) 1.1 (51.8)
At 31 December 2009 226.8 902.6 1,129.4
Depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2009 (59.2) (503.4) (562.6)
Depreciation charge (12.9) (108.2) (12r.n
Disposals 10.1 65.5 75.6
Translation adjustments 4.5 20.2 24.7
At 3| December 2009 (57.5) (525.9) (583.4)
Carrying amount
At | January 2009 170.5 358.0 528.5
At 31 December 2009 169.3 376.7 546.0
2008
Cost
At | January 2008 158.5 630.5 789.0
Acquisition of businesses 73 219 292
Additions 364 132.2 168.6
Disposals (2.3) (654) 67.7)
Translation adjustments 29.8 1422 172.0
At 31 December 2008 2297 8614 1,091
Depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2008 (35.6) (350.2) (385.8)
Depreciation charge (10.6) 944) (105.0)
Disposals 1.3 534 54.7
Translation adjustments (14.3) (112.2) (126.5)
At 31 December 2008 (59.2) (5034) (562.6)
Carrying amount
At | January 2008 122.9 280.3 403.2
At 31 December 2008 170.5 358.0 5285
The carrying amount of equipment and vehicles includes the following in respect of assets held under finance leases:
2009 2008
£m £m
Net book value 72.8 59.5
Accumulated depreciation 87.1 68.2
Depreciation charge for the year 18.6 16.6

The rights over leased assets are effectively security for lease liabilities. These rights revert to the lessor in the event of default.
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20 Property, plant and equipment continued

The carrying amount of equipment and vehicles includes the following in respect of assets leased by the group to third parties under operating leases:

2009 2008

£m £m

Net book value 34.4 39.2
Accumulated depreciation 72.6 74.1
Depreciation charge for the year 10.2 94

The net book value of land and buildings comprises:

2009 2008

£m £m

Freeholds 66.1 57.1
Long leaseholds (50 years and over) 21.1 9.8
Short leaseholds (under 50 years) 82.1 103.6

At 31 December 2009 the group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting to
£2.1m (2008: £3.3m).

2] Investment in joint ventures

At the year end the group owned 59% of the equity of Bridgend Custodial Services Ltd and 50% of the equity in STC (Milton Keynes) Ltd. In both
cases, the group jointly shares operational and financial control over the operations and is therefore entitled to a proportionate share of the results of
each, which are consolidated on the basis of the equity shares held. The group’s correctional facilities in South Africa are under a similar arrangement
other than that the group’s holding is 20%.

The results of each of the jointly controlled operations are prepared in accordance with group accounting policies. Amounts proportionately
consolidated into the group’s financial statements are as follows:

2009 2008
Results £m £m
Income 46.3 30.8
Expenses 41.9) (274)
Profit after tax 4.4 34

2009 2008
Balance sheet £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets 2.5 4.0
Current assets 46.2 478

48.7 51.8
Liabilities
Current liabilities (10.3) (11.3)
Non-current liabilities 12.9) (18.1)

(23.2) (294)

Net assets 25.5 224
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22 Investment in associates

2009 2008

£m £m

Total assets 13.2 1.6
Total liabilities (6.0) “4.2)
Net investment in associates 1.2 74
Revenue 33.6 76.3
Profit for the year 1.2 34

The net investment and results presented above largely relate to Space Gateway Support LLC, in the USA, in which the group holds an investment of
46%. The results of Space Gateway Support LLC are reported in the North America security segment.

23 Inventories

2009 2008

£m £m

Raw materials 15.6 234
Work in progress 10.2 [1.5
Finished goods including consumables 52.0 50.1
Total inventories 77.8 85.0

24 Investments

Investments comprise primarily listed securities of £59.0m (2008: £70.2m) held by the group's wholly-owned captive insurance subsidiaries stated
at their fair values based on quoted market prices. Use of these investments is restricted to the settlement of claims against the group’s captive
insurance subsidiaries.

25 Trade and other receivables

2009 2008
£m £m

Within current assets
Trade debtors 1,175.8 1,220.5
Allowance for doubtful debts (65.9) (594)
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 1.3 44
Other debtors (including tax receivable) 115.4 100.5
Prepayments and accrued income 93.4 89.1
Amounts due from construction contract customers (see note 26) 17.0 10.6
Derivative financial instruments at fair value (see note 32) 1.5 9.6
Total trade and other receivables included within current assets 1,348.5 [,375.3
Within non-current assets
Derivative financial instruments at fair value (see note 32) 57.7 143.6
Other debtors 13.6 I
Amounts receivable under PFl contracts 40.1 433

Total trade and other receivables included within non-current assets 111.4 [98.0

89
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25 Trade and other receivables continued

Credit risk on trade receivables

There is limited concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the group’s customers are both large in number and dispersed
geographically in over |10 countries. Group companies are required to follow the Group Finance Manual guidelines with respect to assessing the credit
worthiness of potential customers. These guidelines include processes such as obtaining approval for credit limits over a set amount, performing credit
checks and assessments and obtaining additional security where required.

Credit terms vary across the group and can range from 0 to 90 days to reflect the different risks within each country in which the group operates.
There is no group-wide rate of provision, and provision is made for debts that are past due according to local conditions and past default experience.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m

At | January (59.4) (364)
Amounts written-off during the year 1.7 38
Increase in allowance (14.2) (26.8)
At 31 December (65.9) (594)

Included within trade receivables are trade debtors with a carrying amount of £368m (2008: £384m) which are past due at the reporting date

for which no provision has been made as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the group believes that the amounts are still
recoverable. The group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The proportion of trade debtors at 31 December 2009 that were overdue
for payment was 36% (2008: 36%). The group-wide average age of all trade debtors at year end was 56 days (2008: 68 days).

To reflect the growing nature of the group, the monthly management accounts use the last three months sales of the year to calculate management
trade debtor days. Using this calculation the group-wide average age of trade debtors at year end was 48 days (2008: 49 days at constant exchange rates).

The directors believe the fair value of trade and other receivables, being the present value of future cash flows, approximates to their book value.

Amounts receivable under PFI contracts

Amounts receivable under PFl contracts comprise the group’s proportion of amounts receivable in respect of the Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
projects undertaken by the group’s joint ventures. The group’s interests under PFl contracts primarily consist of the design, construction, financing

and management of HM Prison and Young Offenders Institution Parc in Bridgend, South Wales, for the Home Office; the Oakhill Secure Training
Centre for young people in Milton Keynes for the Youth Justices Board and Bloemfontein Correctional Contracts (Pty) for the Government of South
Africa. The Bridgend contract commenced in January 1996 and expires in December 2022. The Milton Keynes contract commenced in June 2003

and expires in June 2028. The Bloemfontein contract commenced in July 2001 and ends in June 2026. All contracts can be terminated by the customer
either in the event of a severe failure to comply with the contract or voluntarily with six months notice and the payment of appropriate compensation
(90 days for the Bloemfontein contract). The specified assets remain the property of the customers. The group’s joint ventures have the right to
provide services using the specified assets during the life of the contracts. There is currently no obligation to acquire or build further assets and any
such obligation would be agreed with the customers as variations to the contracts. The pricing basis is inflation-indexed.

Amounts receivable under PFl contracts are pledged as security against borrowings of the group.

26 Construction contracts

Contracts in place at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m

Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other receivables 17.0 10.6
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other payables (1.8) (2.6)
Net balances relating to construction contracts 15.2 8.0
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 180.7 23.6
Less: Progress billings (165.5) (15.6)
Net balances relating to construction contracts 15.2 8.0

At 31 December 2009, advances received from customers for contract work amounted to £5.7m (2008: £6.0m). There were no retentions held by
customers for contract work at either balance sheet date. All trade and other receivables arising from construction contracts are due for settlement
within one year.

The directors believe the fair value of amounts due from and to contract customers, being the present value of future cash flows, approximates to
their book value.
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27 Disposal groups classified as held for sale

Disposal groups classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2009 comprise primarily the assets and liabilities associated with the cash solutions
business in Taiwan. At 31 December 2008 disposal groups classified as held for sale also included the assets and liabilities associated with the manned
security services businesses in France, which principally included Group 4 Securicor SAS.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the operations classified as held for sale are as follows:

2009 2008
£m £m

ASSETS
Goodwill and acquisition-related intangible assets - 15.1
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisition-related 2.1 4.2
Interest in associates - 0.8)
Trade and other receivables 0.5 45.2
Deferred tax asset - 23
Cash and cash equivalents 26.5 50
Total assets classified as held for sale 29.1 71.0
LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafts (6.1 (11.3)
Bank loans (13.2) (1.0)
Trade and other payables (10.9) (58.1)
Current tax liabilities - (2.6)
Retirement benefit obligations (0.7) 0.8)
Provisions - ©.3)
Total liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale (30.9) 74.1)
Net liabilities of disposal group (1.8) 3.

28 Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts

A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents reported within the consolidated cash flow statement to amounts reported within the balance sheet is
presented below:

2009 2008

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 307.6 562.1
Bank overdrafts (37.5) (195.1)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts included within disposal groups classified as held for sale 20.4 6.3)
Total cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 290.5 360.7

Cash and cash equivalents comprise principally short-term money market deposits, current account balances and group-owned cash held in ATM
machines and at 31 December 2009 bore interest at a weighted average rate of 1.19% (2008: 1.2%). The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The group operates a multi-currency notional pooling cash management system which included over 110 group companies at 31 December 2009.

[t is anticipated that the number of participants in the group will continue to grow. In 2009 the group met the conditions of IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation allowing balances within this cash pool to be offset for reporting purposes. At 31 December 2009 £146.9m of the cash balances and the
equivalent amount of the overdraft balances were offset. Previously balances within this cash pool were reported gross.

Cash and cash equivalents of £20.Im (2008: £33.7m) are held by the group’s wholly-owned captive insurance subsidiaries. Their use is restricted to the
settlement of claims against the group’s captive insurance subsidiaries.
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29 Bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes

2009 2008
£m £m
Bank overdrafts 37.5 [95.1
Bank loans 661.9 965.7
Loan notes* L,116.7 9019
Total bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes 1,816.1 2,062.7
The borrowings are repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year 183.1 283.0
In the second year 15.0 10.0
In the third to fifth years inclusive 604.5 900.8
After five years 1,013.5 8689
Total bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes 1,816.1 2,062.7
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current liabilities):
— Bank overdrafts (37.5) (195.1)
— Bank loans (145.6) (879)
(183.1) (283.0)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1,633.0 1,779.7
*Loan notes includes £766.7m of private loan notes and £350m of public loan notes.
Analysis of bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes by currency:
Sterling Euros US dollars Others Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Bank overdrafts 15.9 9.5 - 12.1 37.5
Bank loans 120.9 174.0 323.7 43.3 661.9
LLoan notes 419.0 - 697.7 - 1L,116.7
At 31 December 2009 555.8 183.5 1,021.4 55.4 1,816.1
Bank overdrafts 64.0 55.0 36.2 399 [95.1
Bank loans 236.6 3515 313.6 64.0 965.7
Loan notes 69.0 - 8329 - 901.9
At 3| December 2008 369.6 406.5 [,182.7 1039 2,062.7

Ofthe borrowings in currencies other than sterling, £1,010m (2008: £1,272m) is designated as net investment hedging instruments.

The weighted average interest rates on bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes at 31 December 2009 adjusted for hedging were as follows:

2009 2008

% %

Bank overdrafts 1.4 22
Bank loans 3.6 4.6
Private loan notes 4.2 64
Public loan notes 7.8 -

The group’s committed bank borrowings comprise two multi-currency revolving credit facilities totalling £1,087m with a maturity date of

June 2012 and a revolving credit facility of £45m maturing March 2010, and the group’s uncommitted facilities amount to £515.6m (2008: £578.0m).
At 31 December 2009, undrawn committed available facilities amounted to £614.7m (2008: £350.4m). Interest on all committed bank borrowing
facilities is at prevailing Libor or Euribor rates, dependent upon the period of drawdown, plus an agreed margin, and re-priced within one year or less.

Borrowing at floating rates exposes the group to cash flow interest rate risk. The management of this risk is discussed in note 33.

The group issued fixed rate loan notes in the US Private Placement market totalling US$550m (£340.6m) on | March 2007. The notes mature in
March 2014 ($100m), March 2017 ($200m), March 2019 ($145m) and March 2022 ($105m).

The group issued further fixed rate loan notes in the US Private Placement market totalling US$513.5m (£318.0m) and £69m on |5 July 2008.
The notes mature in July 2013 ($65m), July 2015 ($150m), July 2016 (£25m), July 2018 ($224m) and (£44m), and July 2020 ($74.5m).

The group issued its inaugural public note of £350m using its European Medium Term Note Programme on |3 May 2009. The note matures in May 2019.

The committed bank facilities and the private loan notes are subject to one financial covenant (net debt to EBITDA ratio) and non-compliance with
the covenant may lead to an acceleration of maturity. The group complied with the financial covenant throughout the year to 31 December 2009 and
the year to 31 December 2008. The group has not defaulted on, or breached the terms of, any material loans during the year.


http:US$513.5m
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Bank overdrafts, bank loans, the loan notes issued in July 2008 and the loan notes issued in May 2009 are stated at amortised cost. The loan notes
issued in March 2007 are stated at amortised cost recalculated at an effective interest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a fair
value hedge relationship. The directors believe the fair value of the group’s bank overdrafts, bank loans and the loan notes issued in March 2007,
calculated from market prices, approximates to their book value. US$265m (£164.1m) of the loan notes issued in July 2008 have a fair value market

gain of £299m.

30 Obligations under finance leases

Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £im £m
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year 27.5 240 23.1 22.1
In the second to fifth years inclusive 60.9 559 52.6 49.3
After five years 1.2 16.3 10.0 14.3
99.6 96.2 85.7 85.7
Less: Future finance charges on finance leases (13.9) (10.5)
Present value of lease obligations 85.7 857
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current liabilities) (23.1) (22.1)
Amount due for settlement after |2 months 62.6 63.6

[t is the group’s policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases. The weighted average lease term is eight years. For the
year ended 3| December 2009, the weighted average effective borrowing rate was 7.4% (2008: 7.2%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date.
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The directors believe the fair value of the group’s finance lease obligations, being the present value of future cash flows, approximates to their

book value.

The group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets.

31 Trade and other payables

2009 2008
£m £m
Within current liabilities:
Trade creditors 191.6 197.0
Amounts due to construction contract customers (see note 26) 1.8 2.6
Amounts owed to associated undertakings 0.6 0.5
Other taxation and social security costs 205.8 182.6
Other creditors 398.4 5200
Accruals and deferred income 295.4 2947
Derivative financial instruments at fair value (see note 32) 1.9 19.2
Total trade and other payables included within current liabilities 1,105.5 [216.6
Within non-current liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments at fair value (see note 32) 9.5 39.1
Other creditors 33.0 244
Total trade and other payables included within non-current liabilities 42.5 63.5

Trade and other payables comprise principally amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for trade
purchases is 37 days (2008: 40 days). The directors believe the fair value of trade and other payables, being the present value of future cash flows,

approximates to their book value.

Other creditors within non-current liabilities of £33.0m includes £27.5m relating to creditors due between one and two years, and £5.5m relating to

creditors due between two and five years.
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32 Derivative financial instruments

The carrying values of derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below:

Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m

Forward foreign exchange contracts - = 0.1 286
Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 29.9 60.9 - -
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - 21.2 28.6
Interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges 39.1 923 - =
Commodity swaps 0.2 - 0.1 Il
69.2 1532 21.4 583

Less: Non-current portion (57.7) (143.6) (9.5) 39.1
Current portion 1.5 9.6 1.9 [9.2

Derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value, measured using techniques consistent with Level | of the valuation hierarchy (see note 3(d)).
The source of the market prices is Bloomberg and in addition the third-party relationship counterparty banks. The relevant currency yield curve is
used to forecast the floating rate cash flows anticipated under the instrument which are discounted back to the balance sheet date. This value is
compared to the original transaction value giving a fair value of the instrument at the balance sheet date.

The mark to market valuation of the derivatives has fallen by £47.1m during the year.

The interest rate, cross currency and commodity swaps which qualify as cash flow hedges have the following maturities:

Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m

Within one year 0.2 = 2.7 32
In the second year - - 5.6 4.0
In the third year - - 8.0 7.8
In the fourth year 7.2 = 4.0 10.0
In the fifth year or greater 22.7 609 1.0 4.7
Total carrying value of cash flow hedges 30.1 609 21.3 29.7

Projected settlement of cash flows (including accrued interest) associated with derivatives that are cash flow hedges:

Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m

Within one year 0.6 23 13.6 [1.1
In the second year 0.3 1.6 6.6 10.7
In the third year 0.4 1.6 2.2 49
In the fourth year 1.7 1.6 0.5 2.1
In the fifth year or greater 21.1 54.5 0.1 |4

Total cash flows 30.1 61.6 23.0 30.2
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33 Financial risk

Capital management

The group’s capital management objective is to ensure that the businesses within it can continue and develop as going concerns whilst returns to
stakeholders are maximised. The group believes that these returns are maximised when the group’s Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC)
is minimised and that this is the case when the group broadly has the characteristics of an investment grade BBB rated entity. The group therefore
aims generally to maintain its net debt expressed as a multiple of cash generated from operations broadly within a range corresponding to those
of BBB rated entities. On 9 March 2009 the group obtained a BBB credit rating from Standard & Poor’s.

The group has a range of return on capital targets in respect of potential acquisitions, depending upon their size. Most proposals for “‘bolt—on”
acquisitions must demonstrate a post-tax return of at least 12% on the capital investment within three years. Medium-sized acquisitions are required
to return a minimum of 10% within this time frame and relatively rare, large, strategic acquisitions a minimum equal to the group's WACC. The group's
calculation of its post-tax WACC at 31 December 2009 was 7.6%.

The group monitors the financial performance of acquired businesses during the years following acquisition against the return targets. In addition, the
group monitors the Return on Net Assets (RONA) of all its businesses on a monthly basis. The group regards RONA as a measure of operational
performance and therefore calculates it as EBITA divided by net assets excluding goodwill, tax, dividends payable and retirement benefit obligations.

The group has no current intention to commence a share buy-back plan. The group operates a programme to purchase its own shares on the market
on a regular basis so as to provide a pool of shares from which to satisfy share awards to employees as the awards vest.

The group is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements and there were no changes in the group’s approach to capital management
during the year.
Liquidity risk

The group mitigates liquidity risk by ensuring there are sufficient undrawn committed facilities available to it. For more details of the group’s bank
overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes see note 29.

The percentage of available, but undrawn committed facilities during the course of the year was as follows:

31 December 2008 19%
31 March 2009 10%
30 June 2009 26%
30 September 2009 27%
31 December 2009 28%

The availability of undrawn committed facilities during early 2009 was impacted by the sharp deterioration in the value of sterling against the US dollar
and euro in late 2008, being currencies in which a significant proportion of drawn facilities is denominated. To reduce re-financing risk, group treasury
obtains finance with a range of maturities and hence minimises the impact of a single material source of finance terminating on a single date.

The group's committed facilities, restated at hedged rates where applicable, have the following maturity dates:

March 2010 £45m
June 2012 £1,087m
July 2013 £33m
March 2014 £62m
July 2015 £76m
July 2016 £25m
March 2017 £124m
July 2018 £177m
March 2019 £90m
May 2019 £350m
July 2020 £46m
March 2022 £65m

Refinancing risk is further reduced by group treasury opening negotiations to either replace or extend any major facility at least 18 months before its
termination date.
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33 Financial risk continued
Market risk

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business in many currencies. Transaction risk is limited since, wherever possible, each business operates and conducts its financing
activities in local currency. However, the group presents its consolidated financial statements in sterling and it is in consequence subject to foreign
exchange risk due to the translation of the results and net assets of its foreign subsidiaries. The group hedges a substantial proportion of its exposure
to fluctuations in the translation into sterling of its overseas net assets by holding loans in foreign currencies.

Translation adjustments arising on the translation of foreign currency loans are recognised in equity to match translation adjustments on foreign
currency equity investments as they qualify as net investment hedges.

The group no longer uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge the residual portion of net assets not hedged by way of loans. This foreign exchange
hedging programme was terminated in February 2009. The group believes cash flow should not be put at risk by these instruments in order to
preserve the carrying value of net assets, given the changed liquidity environment post the global credit crisis.

At 31 December 2009, the group’s US dollar and euro net assets were approximately 75% and 87% respectively hedged by foreign currency loans
(2008: US dollar 89%, euro 97%).

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £134.2m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency risk on US$265m of the second US Private
Placement notes issued in July 2008, effectively fixing the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of 1.9750.

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

Borrowing at floating rates as described in note 29 exposes the group to cash flow interest rate risk, which the group manages within policy limits
approved by the directors. Interest rate swaps and, to a limited extent, forward rate agreements are utilised to fix the interest rate on a proportion of
borrowings on a reducing scale over forward periods up to a maximum of five years. At 3|1 December 2009 the nominal value of such contracts was
£170.3m (in respect of US dollar) (2008: £246.9m) and £217.7m (in respect of euro) (2008: £271.7m), their weighted average interest rate was 5.0%
(US dollar) (2008: 5.0%) and 3.7% (euro) (2008: 3.8 %), and their weighted average period to maturity was two and a quarter years. All the interest
rate hedging instruments are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements in their fair value have been deferred in equity.

The US Private Placement market is predominantly a fixed rate market, with investors looking for a fixed rate return over the life of the loan notes.
At the time of the first issue in March 2007, the group was comfortable with the proportion of floating rate exposure not hedged by interest rate
swaps and therefore rather than take on a higher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floating swaps effectively converting the fixed
coupon on the Private Placement to a floating rate. Following the swaps the resulting average coupon on the US Private Placement is LIBOR + 60bps.
These swaps have been documented as fair value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed interest loan notes, with the movements in their fair value
posted to profit and loss at the same time as the movement in the fair value of the hedged item.

The interest on the US Private Placement notes issued in July 2008 was kept at fixed rate.

The core group borrowings are held in US dollar; euro and sterling. Although the impact of rising interest rates is partly shielded by fixed rate loans
and interest rate swaps which fix a portion of the exposure, some interest rate risk remains. Assuming a 1% increase in interest rates across the yield
curve in each of these currencies and keeping the 31 December 2009 debt position constant throughout 2010, an additional interest charge of £6.4m
would be expected in the 2010 financial year.

Commodity risk and commodity swaps

The group’s principal commodity risk relates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices, particularly affecting its cash solutions businesses. Commodity
swaps and commodity options are used to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatility. Commodity swaps hedging
24 million litres of projected 2010 diesel consumption and 7 million litres of projected 2011 diesel consumption were in place at 3| December 2009.
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33 Financial risk continued
Market risk continued

Counterparty credit risk
The group’s strategy for credit risk management is to set minimum credit ratings for counterparties and monitor these on a regular basis.

For treasury-related transactions, the policy limits the aggregate credit risk assigned to a counterparty. The utilisation of a credit limit is calculated

by applying a weighting to the notional value of each outstanding transaction based on the type and duration of the transaction. The total mark to
market value outstanding with each counterparty is closely monitored. For short-term transactions (under one year), at inception of the transaction,
the financial counterparty must be investment grade rated by either the Standard & Poor’s or Moody's rating agencies. For long-term transactions,
at inception of the transaction, the financial counterparty must have a minimum rating of A+/Al from Standard & Poor's or Moody’s.

Treasury transactions are dealt with the group’s relationship banks, all of which have a strong investment grade rating. At 31 December 2009 the
largest two counterparty exposures related to treasury transactions were £27.6m and £14.Im and were both held with institutions with long-term
Moody's credit ratings of Aa3. These exposures represent 40% and 20% of the carrying values of derivative financial instruments, with a fair value
gain at the balance sheet date. Both of these banks had significant loans outstanding to G4S plc at 31 December 2009.

The group operates a multi-currency notional pooling cash management system with a wholly-owned subsidiary of a Aa3 rated bank. At year end
credit balances of £147.5m were pooled with debit balances of £146.9m, resulting in a net pool balance of £0.6m. There is legal right of set off under
the pooling agreement.

At an operating level the minimum investment grade rating criteria applies. Exceptionally, where required by local country circumstances,
counterparties with no, or a non-investment grade, rating can be approved as counterparties for a period of up to 12 months. Due to the group’s
global geographical footprint and exposure to multiple industries, there is minimal concentration risk.

34 Retirement benefit obligations

The group operates a wide range of retirement benefit arrangements which are established in accordance with local conditions and practices within
the countries concerned. These include funded defined contribution and funded and unfunded defined benefit schemes.

Defined contribution arrangements

The majority of the retirement benefit arrangements operated by the group are of a defined contribution structure, where the employer contribution
and resulting income statement charge is fixed at a set level or is a set percentage of employees’ pay. Contributions made to defined contribution
schemes and charged to the income statement totalled £109.0m (2008: £95.6m).

In the UK, following the closure of the defined benefit schemes to new entrants, the main scheme for new employees is a contracted-in defined
contribution scheme.

Wackenhut Services, Inc (“WSI") is the administrator of several defined benefit schemes. WSl is responsible for making periodic cost-reimbursable
deposits to the various defined benefit schemes as determined by independent actuaries. In each instance, the US Department of Energy ("DOE")
acknowledged within the contract entered between the DOE and WSI its responsibility for all unfunded pension and benefit liabilities. Therefore,
these schemes are accounted for as defined contribution schemes.

In the Netherlands, most employees are members of industry-wide defined benefit schemes which are not valued on an IAS |9 basis as it is not
possible to identify separately the group’s share of the schemes’ assets and liabilities. As a result the schemes are accounted for as defined contribution
schemes. Contributions made to the schemes and charged to the income statement in 2009 totalled £7.8m (2008: £7.3m). The estimated amounts of
contributions expected to be paid to the schemes during the financial year commencing | January 2010 in respect of the ongoing accrual of benefits is
approximately £8.0m assuming consistent exchange rates.

Defined benefit arrangements

The group operates a number of defined benefit retirement arrangements where the benefits are based on employees’ length of service. In most
cases these are calculated on the basis of final pensionable pay, other than for the smallest of the three schemes in the UK and one scheme in the
Netherlands where they are based on career average pay. Liabilities under these arrangements are stated at the discounted value of benefits accrued
to date, based upon actuarial advice.

Under unfunded arrangements, the group does not hold the related assets separate from the group. The amount charged to the income statement in
respect of these arrangements in 2009 totalled £2.8m (2008: £2.3m). Under funded arrangements, the assets of defined benefit schemes are held in
separate trustee-administered funds. The pension costs are assessed on the advice of qualified independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The group operates several funded defined retirement benefit schemes. Whilst the group’s primary schemes are in the UK, it also operates
other material schemes in the Netherlands, Ireland, Canada, Israel and Greece.
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Defined benefit arrangements continued

The carrying values of retirement benefit obligations at the balance sheet date are presented below:

2009 2008

£m £m

UK 307.1 256.2
Rest of World 21.1 30.0
Net liability on material funded defined retirement benefit schemes 328.2 286.2
Unfunded and other funded defined retirement benefit obligations 39.4 41.3
367.6 3275

Less: Amounts included within current liabilities (54.6) (48.9)
Included within non-current liabilities 313.0 278.6

The defined benefit schemes in the UK account for 94% of the net balance sheet liability on material funded defined retirement benefit schemes.
They comprise three arrangements: the pension scheme demerged from the former Group 4 Falck A/S with total membership of approximately
8,000, the Securicor scheme, responsibility for which the group assumed on 20 July 2004 with the acquisition of Securicor plc, with total membership
of approximately 20,000 and the GSL scheme, responsibility for which the group assumed on 12 May 2008 with the acquisition of GSL, with total
membership of approximately 2,000. Regular actuarial assessments of the schemes are carried out, the latest being at 31 March 2007 in respect of the
Group 4 scheme, 5 April 2006 in respect of the Securicor scheme and 31 March 2005 in respect of the GSL scheme. Pension obligations stated in the
balance sheet take account of future service and earnings increases, have been updated to 31 December 2009 and use the valuation methodologies
specified in IAS 19 Employee Benefits. The three schemes in the UK have combined under one trustee body with effect from | January 2010 and will
be formally actuarially assessed at 5 April 2010.

At 5 April 2009 the participants of the UK pension schemes can be analysed as follows:

Group 4 Falck GSL Securicor

At 5 April 2009 Scheme Scheme Scheme Total
Active participants

Number 618 [,311 1,409 3,338

Average age 532 50.8 519 517
Deferred participants

Number 4,559 537 10,352 15448

Average age 5.3 484 50.8 509
Pensioner participants

Number 2,607 208 7,878 10,693

Average age 68.2 6l.1 699 69.3

The weighted average principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

UK Rest of World

Key assumptions used at 3|1 December 2009

Discount rate 5.7% 5.7%
Expected return on scheme assets (as at | January 2009) 6.3% 5.8%
Expected rate of salary increases 3.6% 2.6%
Future pension increases (LPI5%) 3.4% 2.0%
Inflation 3.6% 2.0%
Key assumptions used at 31 December 2008

Discount rate 6.3% 5.8%
Expected return on scheme assets (as at | January 2008) 6.9% 6.2%
Expected rate of salary increases 4.9% 29%
Future pension increases (LPI5%) 3.19% 2.0%
Inflation 3.1% 2.0%

In addition to the above, the group uses appropriate mortality assumptions when calculating the schemes obligations. The mortality tables used for the
schemes in the UK are as follows:

* Current and future pensioners 125% of PMA92 (YOB) Medium Cohort ~ Male
* Current and future pensioners 115% of PFA92 (YOB) Medium Cohort Female
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

The amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows:

UK Rest of World Total
£m £m £m
Amounts recognised in income 2009
Current service cost (9.0) 3.7) (12.7)
Finance cost on defined retirement benefit obligations (80.7) (6.3) (87.0)
Expected return on defines retirement benefit scheme assets 64.0 4.0 68.0
Total amounts recognised in income (25.7) (6.0) (31.7)
Amounts recognised in income 2008
Current service cost (11.8) (3.6 (154)
Finance cost on defined retirement benefit obligations (77.8) 5.0 (82.8)
Expected return on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 82.2 4.3 86.5
Total amounts recognised in income 74 “.3) (11.7)
The amounts recognised in income are included within the following categories in the income statement:
2009 2008
£m £m
Cost of sales 8.7) (111
Administration expenses 4.0) “.3)
Finance income 68.0 86.5
Finance costs (87.0) (82.8)
Total @3L.7) (1.7)
Actuarial gains and losses recognised cumulatively in the statement of comprehensive income are as follows:
2009 2008
£m £m
At | January (204.7) (7.8)
Actuarial losses recognised in the year (63.1) (196.9)
At 3| December (267.8) (204.7)

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligations in respect of its defined benefit schemes are as follows:

UK Rest of World Total
£m £m £m
2009
Present value of defined benefit obligations [,547.3 [159 [,663.2
Fair value of scheme assets (1,240.2) (94.8) (1,335.0)
Deficit in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 3071 211 3282
2008
Present value of defined benefit obligations 1,296.3 [10.8 [,407.1
Fair value of scheme assets (1,040.1) (80.8) (1,120.9)
Deficit in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 256.2 300 286.2
2007
Present value of defined benefit obligations [,291.3 84.6 1,3759
Fair value of scheme assets (1,169.7) (70.7) (1,2404)
Deficit in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 121.6 139 135.5
2006
Present value of defined benefit obligations [,328.8 6l [,3899
Fair value of scheme assets (1,118.1) (454) (1,163.5)
Deficit in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 210.7 15.7 2264
2005
Present value of defined benefit obligations [,199.3 6l.1 [,2604
Fair value of scheme assets (1,004.5) (39.3) (1,043.8)

Deficit in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 194.8 21.8 216.6
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations in the current year and the fair value of scheme assets during the year were as follows:

UK Rest of World Total
2009 £m £m £m
Obligations
At | January 2009 [,296.3 [10.8 1,407.1
Service cost 9.0 37 12.7
Interest cost 80.7 6.3 870
Contributions from scheme members 55 3. 8.6
Actuarial gains 205.1 0.5 205.6
Benefits paid (49.3) (4.0) (53.3)
Translation adjustments - “.5) “.5)
At 31 December 2009 1,547.3 115.9 1,663.2
Assets
At | January 2009 1,040.1 80.8 1,1209
Expected return on scheme assets 64.0 4.0 68.0
Actuarial losses 134.3 8.2 142.5
Actual returns on schedule assets 198.3 122 210.5
Contributions from the sponsoring companies 45.6 54 510
Contributions from scheme members 55 3. 8.6
Benefits paid (49.3) (4.0 (53.3)
Translation adjustments - .7) @.7)
At 31 December 2009 1,240.2 94.8 1,335.0

UK Rest of World Total
2008 £m £m £m
Obligations
At | January 2008 1,291.3 84.6 13759
Service cost 1.8 36 154
Interest cost 778 50 82.8
Contributions from scheme members 4.6 2.5 7.
Actuarial gains (129.2) (5.6) (134.8)
Benefits paid (45.9) (1.5) “474)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings 859 — 859
Translation adjustments = 222 222
At 3] December 2008 [,296.3 110.8 1,407.1
Assets
At | January 2008 1,169.7 70.7 [,2404
Expected return on scheme assets 82.2 43 86.5
Actuarial losses (315.1) (16.6) (331.7)
Actual return on scheme assets (2329) (12.3) (2452
Contributions from the sponsoring companies 47.5 5.1 52.6
Contributions from scheme members 4.6 2.5 7.
Benefits paid (45.9) (1.5) (474)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings 97. = 97.
Translation adjustments - 16.3 16.3
At 31 December 2008 1,040.1 80.8 [,1209

The contribution from sponsoring companies in 2009 included £29.9m (2008: £26.9m) of additional contributions in respect of the deficit in
the schemes.
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued
The composition of the scheme assets at the balance sheet date is as follows:
UK Rest of World Total
2009
Equity instruments 59% 45% 57%
Debt instruments 26% 38% 27%
Property 0% 10% 196
Other assets 15% 7% 15%
100% 100% 100%
2008
Equity instruments 57% 39% 56%
Debt instruments 28% 27% 28%
Property 19 4% 196
Other assets 14% 30% 15%
100% 100% 100%

None of the pension scheme assets are held in the entity's own financial instruments or in any assets held or used by the entity.

The expected weighted average rates of return on scheme assets for the following year at the balance sheet date are as follows:

UK Rest of World Total
2009 (return expected in 2010) 6.9% 5.6% 6.8%
2008 (return expected in 2009) 6.3% 59% 6.3%
2007 (return expected in 2008) 6.9% 6.2% 6.9%

The expected rates of return on individual categories of scheme assets are determined with respect to bonds by reference to relevant indices, and
with respect to other assets by reference to relevant indices of the historical return and economic forecasts of future returns relative to inflation in
respect of assets of a similar nature. The overall expected rate of return is the weighted average of the rates on the individual asset categories.

The history of experience adjustments is as follows:

UK Rest of World Total
2009 UK Rest of World Total
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Amount (£m) 9.8 (1.7) 8.1
Percentage of scheme liabilities (%) I O -
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) (133.2) 8.1) (141.3)
Percentage of scheme assets (%) [l 9 l
2008
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Amount (£m) 0.1 0.5 0.6
Percentage of scheme liabilities (%) = | =
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) (315.1) (16.6) (3317)
Percentage of scheme assets (%) (30) 1) (30)
2007
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Amount (£m) 55 (3.h 24
Percentage of scheme liabilities (%) - “) -

Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) (16.6) (4.6) (21.2)
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 0 @) 2
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

UK Rest of World Total
2006
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Amount (£m) 290 0.1 29.1
Percentage of scheme liabilities (%) 2 — 2
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) 454 2.6 48.0
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 4 6 4
2005
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Amount (£m) (17.5) [l (164)
Percentage of scheme liabilities (%) ) 2 1)
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) 99.0 24 1014
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 10 6 10

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the schemes during the financial year commencing | January 2010 in respect of the
ongoing accrual of benefits is approximately £20m and it is anticipated that these will remain at a similar level in the medium term subject to changes
in financial conditions. Additional contributions of at least £30m will also be made in 2010 in respect of the deficit in the schemes.

IAS 19 specifies that pension liabilities should be discounted at appropriate high quality corporate bond rates. The directors consider that it is appropriate
to apply the average of the yields on those AA corporate bonds which most closely approximate to the timescale of the liability profile of the schemes
and have therefore used such a rate, being 5.65%, in respect of the UK schemes at 31 December 2009 (6.3% at 3| December 2008). The effect of a 0.19%
movement in the discount rate applicable in the UK is to alter reported liabilities (before associated deferred tax) by approximately £28m.

Liability calculations are also impacted heavily by the mortality projections included in the actuarial assumptions. The weighted average life expectancy
of a male member of the UK schemes currently aged 65 has been assumed as 204 years. The weighted average life expectancy at 65 of a male
currently aged 52 has been assumed as 21.2 years. The directors consider, on actuarial advice, these assumptions to be appropriate to the profile of

the membership of the schemes. The effect of a one-year change in this UK life expectancy assumption is to alter reported liabilities (before associated
deferred tax) by approximately £70m.

Pension obligations in respect of deferred members increase in line with inflation. Increases in salaries and increases in pensions-in-payment generally
move in line with inflation. Inflation is therefore an important assumption in the calculation of defined retirement benefit liabilities. The effect of a 0.1%
movement in the rate of inflation assumption applicable in the UK is to alter reported liabilities (before associated deferred tax) by approximately £16m.

35 Provisions

Employee Claims Onerous
benefits Restructuring reserves contracts Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At | January 2009 36.0 5.1 45.2 64.3 150.6
Additional provision in the year 4.7 |.8 24.1 1.8 324
On acquisition of subsidiary = = 0.3 0.6 09
Utilisation of provision 84) (19) (23.1) (13.0) 464)
Unused amounts reversed 87) ©.2) (1.0) 99) (19.8)
Reversals on disposal of a subsidiary (1.7) = = = (1.7)
Translation adjustments (37) ©.7) (5.6) (79) (17.9)
At 31 December 2009 18.2 4.1 39.9 35.9 98.1
Included in current liabilities 29.8
Included in non-current liabilities 68.3
98.1

Employee benefits

The provision for employee benefits is in respect of any employee benefits which accrue over the working lives of the employees, typically including
items such as long service awards, termination indemnity schemes and related taxes.
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35 Provisions continued

Restructuring

Restructuring provisions include amounts for redundancy payments, and the costs of closure of activities in acquired businesses and discontinued
operations. Settlement of restructuring provisions is highly probable. The timing is uncertain but is generally likely to be short term.

Claims reserves

The claims reserves are held by the wholly-owned captive insurance subsidiaries in Guernsey and the US which underwrite part of the group’s cash
solutions, general liability, workers’ compensation and auto liability policies. The provisions are subject to regular actuarial review and are adjusted as
appropriate. Settlement of these provisions is highly probable but both the value of the final settlements and their timing is uncertain, dependent upon
the outcome of ongoing processes to determine both liability and quantum in respect of a wide range of claims or possible claims.

Onerous contracts

The onerous contract provision mainly comprises the provision against future liabilities for loss-making contracts, for all properties sub-let at a shortfall,
for the cost of replacing assets where there is a present contractual requirement and for long-term idle, leased properties. The provision is based on
the value of future net cash outflows. Whilst the likelihood of settlement of these obligations is considered probable, there is uncertainty over their
value and duration.

36 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting periods:

Retirement Other
benefit Intangible Tax temporary
obligations assets losses differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At | January 2008 371 (60.6) 5.1 270 8.6
(Charge)/credit to the income statement (7.5) [9.1 1.9 @.hH 54
Acquisition of subsidiaries “.7) (59.3) - 17.6 (464)
(Credit)/charge to equity 56.7 — — 64 50.3
Translation adjustments = (15.5) 0.6 139 (1.0)
At 31 December 2008 81.6 (116.3) 76 44.0 16.9
At | January 2009 81.6 (116.3) 76 44.0 16.9
(Charge)/credit to the income statement “.7) 22.8 19.6 2.0 39.7
Acquisition of subsidiaries - (17.8) - 0.3 (17.5)
Credit to equity 17.0 - — - 17.0
Translation adjustments = 30 = “.7) (1.7)
Transfers/other (1.7) Il - 1.2 0.6
At 31 December 2009 92.2 (107.2) 27.2 42.8 55.0

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where permitted. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)
for financial reporting purposes:

2009 2008

£m £m
Deferred tax liabilities (123.1) (138.1)
Deferred tax assets 178.1 155.0
Total deferred tax position 55.0 169

At the balance sheet date, the group has unutilised tax losses of approximately £528.1m (2008: £526.8m) potentially available for offset against

future profits. A deferred tax asset of £27.2m (2008: £5.1m) has been recognised in respect of approximately £78.4m (2008: £22.9m) of gross losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining £449.7m (2008: £503.9m) of gross losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams in the relevant jurisdictions and the fact that a significant proportion of such losses remains unaudited by the relevant tax authorities.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are gross losses of £2.7m, £3.3m, £1.8m, £1.6m, £1.2m and £3.3m which will expire in 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014
and 2015 respectively. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of non-UK subsidiaries for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised is £1,329m (2008: £2,727m). No liability has been recognised in respect of these gross differences on
the basis that the group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates and joint ventures are insignificant.

At the balance sheet date, the group has total unprovided contingent tax liabilities of approximately £nil (2008: £4.0m) relating to unresolved tax
issues in various jurisdictions.
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37 Share capital
At 31 December 2009 At 31 December 2008
Issued and Issued and
Authorised fully paid Authorised fully paid
GA4S plc £ £ £ £
Ordinary shares of 25p each (2008: 25p each) 587,500,000 352,629,660 500,000,000 352,074,660
Nominal
value
Number £im
Ordinary shares in issue
At | January 2008 1,280,710,738 3202
New shares issued 127,000,000 31.8
Shares issued on exercise of options:

Executive Scheme 587901 0.1
At | January 2009 1,408,298,639 352.1
Shares issued on exercise of options:

Executive scheme 2,220,000 0.5
At 31 December 2009 1,410,518,639 352.6

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of
the company.

Options over G4S plc shares outstanding at 31 December 2009, rolled over at |9 July 2004 from options previously held over Securicor plc shares,
were as follows:

a Executive share option scheme

Number of Exercise price

ordinary shares per share
Number of options outstanding under option (pence) Exercise date
2 45,000 133.75p 2010
2 30,000 153p 2010
| 25,000 85p 20102013
| 50,000 9lp 20102013

The proceeds from shares allotted under this scheme during the year amounted to £2,772,488 (2008: £693,631).
5,543,118 shares are held by an employee benefit trust as detailed in note 38.
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The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow instruments related to the hedged

transactions that have not yet occurred (net of tax).

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations, as well

as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the company’s net investment in foreign operations (net of tax).

Merger reserve

The merger reserve comprises reserves arising upon the merger between the former Group 4 Falck A/S and the former Group 4 Securitas BV in

2000 and the acquisition of Securicor plc by the group in 2004.

Reserve for own shares

An employee benefit trust established by the group held 5,543,818 shares at 3| December 2009 (2008: 5,832,653 shares), to satisfy the vesting of

awards under the performance share plan and performance-related and synergy bonus schemes. During the year 4,437,600 shares were purchased by

the trust, whilst 4,726,435 shares were used to satisfy the vesting of awards under the schemes. At 31 December 2009, the cost of shares held by the
trust was £12,054,145 (2008: £11,715,675), whilst the market value of these shares was £14,447,190 (2008: £11,956,939). Shares held by the trust are

treated as treasury shares, are deducted from equity, do not receive dividends and are excluded from the calculations of earnings per share.

39 Analysis of net debt
A reconciliation of net debt to amounts in the consolidated balance sheet is presented below:
2009 2008
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 307.6 562.1
Investments 84.4 92.7
Net cash and overdrafts included within disposal groups classified as held for sale 20.4 6.3)
Net debt (excluding cash and overdrafts) included within disposal groups classified as held for sale (13.2) (1.0)
Bank overdrafts (37.5) (195.1)
Bank loans (661.9) (965.7)
Loan notes (1,116.7) (901.9)
Fair value of loan note derivative financial instruments 69.2 153.2
Obligations under finance leases (85.7) (85.7)
Total net debt (1,433.4) (1,347.7)
An analysis of movements in net debt in the year is presented below:
2009 2008
£m £m
(Decrease)/increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts per consolidated cash flow statement (37.9) 56.3
Purchase/(sale) of investments 0.9 (5.6
Increase in debt and lease financing 0.6 (160.2)
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows (36.4) (109.5)
Borrowings acquired with subsidiaries (0.4) (230.0)
Net additions to finance leases 19.7) (7.1
Movement in net debt in the year (56.5) (356.6)
Translation adjustments (29.2) (186.2)
Net debt at the beginning of the year (1,347.7) (804.9)
Net debt at the end of the year (1,433.4) (1,347.7)
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40 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities exist in respect of agreements entered into in the normal course of business, none of which are individually or
collectively significant.

Details of unprovided contingent tax liabilities are presented in note 36.
4] Operating lease arrangements

The group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m
Within one year 142.7 141.8
In the second to fifth years inclusive 300.6 306.7
After five years 197.6 200.6
Total operating lease commitments 640.9 649.1

The group leases a number of its office properties, vehicles and other operating equipment under operating leases. Property leases are negotiated
over an average term of 17 years, at rates reflective of market rentals. Periodic rent reviews take place to bring lease rentals in line with prevailing
market conditions. Some but not all lease agreements have an option to renew the lease at the end of the lease term. Leased vehicles and other
operating equipment are negotiated over an average lease term of four years.

Certain leased properties have been sub-let by the group. Sub-leases are negotiated on terms consistent with those of the associated property.
The total future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received by the group from sub-let properties amount to £10.6m (2008: £37.2m).

42 Share-based payments

The group has two types of equity-settled, share-based payment scheme in place: (1) share options previously held by employees over Securicor plc
shares and rolled over to G4S plc shares with the acquisition of that business on 19 July 2004, and (2) conditional allocations of G4S plc shares.
Share options

Share options rolled over from Securicor plc fall under either the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS). Options under the ESOS were granted
at market value, vest three or four years following the date of grant (provided that certain non-market performance conditions are met and that the
recipients continue to be employed by the group during the vesting period) and are exercisable up to ten years following the date of grant.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

Weighted Weighted

Number of average average

shares under exercise Number of exercise

option price (pence) shares under price (pence)

2009 2009 option 2008 2008

Outstanding at | January 2,370,000 124.28 295790l 123.02
Exercised during the year (2,220,000) 122.82 (587901) 11798
Outstanding at 31 December 150,000 115.23 2,370,000 124.28
Exercisable at 3| December 150,000 115.23 2,370,000 124.28

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was 243.95p (2008: 232.94p). All options
outstanding at 3| December 2009 were vested.

No share option expense has been recognised in the income statement during the year as all share options had previously vested (2008: all vested).
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Shares allocated conditionally fall under either the group's performance-related bonus scheme or the group’s Performance Share Plan (PSP). Shares
allocated conditionally under the performance-related bonus scheme vest three years following the date of grant provided certain non-market
performance conditions are met. Those allocated under the PSP vest, to the extent that (a) certain non-market performance conditions are met as to
two-thirds of the allocation and (b) certain market performance conditions are met as to the remaining third of the allocation. Vesting occurs after the
third anniversary of the date the shares were allocated conditionally. To the extent that the performance criteria have been met and the shares are
not forfeited, these shares can only be released upon request after the third anniversary but before the tenth anniversary.

The number of shares allocated conditionally is as follows:

Performance- Performance-

related bonus related bonus
scheme PSP Total scheme PSP Total
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008
Number Number Number Number Number Number
Outstanding at | January 2,257,765 11,861,814 14,119,579 1,981,777 11,460,069 13,441,846
Allocated during the year 553,382 6,576,223 7,129,605 554,229 4,757,230 5,311,459
Transferred during the year (1,488,408)  (3,238,023)  (4,726,431) (278,241) (3.091962)  (3370,203)
Forfeited during the year - (201,393) (201,393) - (228,180) (228,180)
Expired during the year - (36,612) (36,612) - (1,035,343) (1,035,343)
Outstanding at 31 December 1,322,739 14,962,009 16,284,748 2,257,765 11,861,814 14,119,579

The weighted average remaining contractual life of conditional share allocations outstanding at 31 December 2009 was |7 months (2008: 17 months).
The weighted average share price at the date of allocation of shares allocated conditionally during the year was 210.25p (2008: 216.50p) and the

contractual life of all conditional allocations was three years.

Under the PSP, the vesting of two-thirds of the shares allocated conditionally depends upon Total Shareholder Return (a market performance
condition) over the vesting year measured against a comparator group. 25% of the allocation vests upon the group’s Total Shareholder Return
equalling median performance amongst the comparator group. The fair value of the shares allocated subject to this market performance condition

has therefore been reduced by 75%.

Total expenses of £7.Im were recognised in the income statement in the year (2008: £5.0m) in respect of conditional share allocations, the calculation
of which included an estimate of the number of those shares allocated subject to non-market performance conditions that would vest based upon the

probable achievement against the performance conditions.

43 Related party transactions

Transactions and balances with joint ventures and associated undertakings

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the group and other related parties are disclosed below. All transactions with related parties are entered into in the normal course of

business.
Joint ventures Joint ventures Associates Associates
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Transactions
Revenue 9.4 15.0 - =
Balances
Amounts due to related parties
Creditors - — 0.6 0.5
Amounts due from related parties
Debtors 3.9 .1 1.3 44

Revenue includes fees of £6.6m (2008: £9.1m) charged to Bridgend Custodial Services Ltd and fees of £2.8m (2008: £5.9m) charged to STC
(Milton Keynes) Ltd. No expense has been recognised in the year for bad and doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by related parties.
Details of principal joint ventures and associated undertakings are shown in notes 2| and 22 respectively.

107




G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

43 Related party transactions continued

Transactions and balances with joint ventures and associated undertakings continued

The group has a legal interest in a number of joint ventures and joint arrangements, where the economic interest was divested by the Global Solutions
group prior to its acquisition by the group. The significant transactions with these entities are:

2009

Services/sales to

£m

White Horse Education Partnership Limited 1.6
Integrated Accommodation Services plc 42.3
Fazakerley Prison Services Limited 28.4
Onley Prison Services Limited 13.0
ECD Cookham Wood Limited 5.5
ECD Onley Limited 10.9
Stratus Integrated Services Limited 74
UK Court Services (Manchester) Limited 1.8
East London Lift Company Limited 1.2
Health Improvement Partnership (Wolverhampton City & Walsall) Ltd 0.5
Brent, Harrow & Hillingdon LIFT Company Ltd 0.5
Bexley, Bromley & Greenwich LIFT Company Ltd 0.4

113.1

Transactions with post-employment benefit schemes

Details of transactions with the group’s post-employment benefit schemes are provided in note 34. Unpaid contributions owed to schemes amounted
to £1.6m at 3| December 2009 (2008: £1.2m).

Remuneration of key management personnel

The group’s key management personnel are deemed to be the non-executive directors and those individuals, including the executive directors, whose
remuneration is determined by the Remuneration Committee. Their remuneration is set out below. Further information about the remuneration of
individual directors included within key management personnel is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 53 to 55.

2009 2008

£ £

Short-term employee benefits 5,721,186 5236982
Post-employment benefits 504,608 490,996
Other long-term benefits 28,631 31,055
Share-based payment 2,488,363 2,735,153
Total 8,742,788 8,494,186

44 Events after the balance sheet date

No significant post-balance sheet events have affected the group since 31 December 2009.

45 Significant investments

The companies listed below are those which were part of the group at 31 December 2009 and which, in the opinion of the directors, significantly
affected the group’s results and net assets during the year. The directors consider that those companies not listed are not significant in relation to the
group as a whole.

The principal activities of the companies listed below are indicated according to the following key:

Secure solutions S

Cash solutions C
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Country of Ultimate
Product segment incorporation ownership

Subsidiary undertakings
GA4S Australia (Pty) Limited S Australia 1009
G4S Custodial Services (Pty) Limited S Australia 100%
GA4S Security Services AG S Austria 100%
GA4S Security Services SA/NV S Belgium 100%
GA4S Cash Services (Belgium) SA/NV C Belgium 100%
G4S Cash Solutions (Canada) Limited C Canada 100%
G4S Security Services (Canada) Limited S Canada 100%
Wackenhut de Colombia SA S+C Colombia 100%
GA4S Security Services A/S S Denmark 100%
G4S Utility Services (UK) Limited (formerly AccuRead Limited) S England 100%
G4S Aviation Services (UK) Limited S England 100%
G4S Cash Centres (UK) Limited C England 100%
G4S Cash Solutions (UK) Limited C England 100%
GA4S International UK Limited C England 100%
G4S Care and Justice Services (UK) Limited S England 100%
GA4S Secure Solutions (UK) Limited S England 100%
GA4S Technology Limited S England 100%
Group 4 Total Security Limited S England 100%
GA4S Integrated Services (UK) Limited S England 100%
AS GA4S Eesti S+C Estonia 100%
GA4S Security Services Oy S Finland 100%
G4S Cash Solutions S.A. C Greece 100%
GA4S Keszpenzlogisztikai Kft S+C Hungary 100%
G4S Security Services (India) Pvt. Limited "> S India 40%
GA4S Cash Services (Ireland) Limited C Ireland 100%
GA4S Security Services (Ireland) Limited S Ireland 100%
Hashmira Company Limited S Israel 91%
GA4S Security Services (Kenya) Limited S+C Kenya 100%
GA4S Security Services SA S+C  Luxembourg 100%
Safeguards Securicor Sdn Bhd? S+C Malaysia 100%
Group 4 Securicor Cash Services BV C Netherlands 100%
Group 4 Securicor Beheer BV S Netherlands 100%
GA4S Security Services AS S+C Norway 100%
G4S Cash Services SRL C Romania 100%
al Majal Service Master Co. Limited® S Saudi Arabia 49%
GA4S Cash Services (SA) (Pty) Limited C South Africa 50%
GA4S Security Services (SA) (Pty) Limited S South Africa 74%
GA4S Cash Services (Sverige) AB C Sweden 100%
GA4S Security Services (Sverige) AB S Sweden 100%
ArmorGroup North America, Inc. S USA 100%
GA4S Youth Services LLC S USA 100%
RONCO Consulting Corporation S USA 100%
The Wackenhut Corporation S USA 100%
Wackenhut Services, Inc. S USA 100%
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45 Significant investments continued

Product Country of Ultimate
segment incorporation ownership
Joint ventures (see note 21)
Bridgend Custodial Services Limited? England 59%
STC (Milton Keynes) Limited England 50%
Bloemfontein Correctional Contracts (Pty) Limited* South Africa 20%
Associated undertakings (see note 22)
S USA 46%

Space Gateway Support LLC

GA4S Security Services (India) Pvt. Limited has a year end of 31 March.

Safeguards Securicor Sdn Bhd has a year end of 30 June.

Bridgend Custodial Services Limited has a year end of 30 September.

Bloemfontein Correctional Contracts (Pty) Limited has a year end of 30 September.

AW —

obtain the benefits from their activities. These are therefore consolidated as full subsidiaries.

By virtue of shareholder agreements, the group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of G4S Security Services (India) Pvt. Limited and al Majal Service Master, so as to
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At 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets (b) 9.9 8.2
Investments © 3,140.9 2,613.1
3,150.8 2,621.3
Current assets
Debtors d) 2,615.4 32408
Cash at bank and in hand 12.2 9.3
2,627.6 3,250.1
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdraft (unsecured) 17.9) (122.2)
Borrowings (unsecured) © (90.8) =
Other creditors ) (3,215.5) (3463.6)
(3,424.2) (3,585.8)
Net current liabilities (796.6) (3357)
Total assets less current liabilities 2,354.2 2,285.6
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings (unsecured) © (1,587.5) (1,5479)
Other creditors ) (7.3) (159)
(1,594.8) (1,563.8)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 0) (1.2) (2.0)
Net assets 758.2 719.8
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 37 352.6 352.1
Share premium and reserves () 405.6 3677
Equity shareholders’ funds 758.2 719.8

The parent company financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 15 March 2010.

They were signed on its behalf by:

Nick Buckles Trevor Dighton
Director Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

Retained profit for the year

Changes in fair value of hedging derivatives
Shares issued

Dividends declared

Own shares purchased

Equity-settled transactions

Tax on equity movements

Net increase in shareholders' funds
Opening equity shareholders’ funds
Closing equity shareholders’ funds

2009
£m

128.3
6.1
2.7

(94.2)

9.9
7.1

(1.7)
38.4
719.8
758.2

2008
£m

264
529
276.8
(75.0)
®9)
50
(14.8)
2625
4573
719.8
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a Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (UK GAAP).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, notwithstanding the company's net current liabilities, which the directors
believe to be appropriate given the amounts owed are mainly to wholly controlled subsidiaries.

Exemptions
Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS | Cash Flow Statements.
The cash flows of the company are included within its consolidated financial statements.

The company is also exempt under the terms of the revised FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures from disclosing related party transactions with
wholly-owned subsidiaries within the group.

The consolidated financial statements of the group contain financial instrument disclosures and comply with FRS 29 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
Consequently the company has taken advantage of certain exemptions in FRS 29 from the requirement to present separate financial instrument
disclosures for the company.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Tangible fixed assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their expected economic life. Short leasehold property (under 50 years) is depreciated over the life of the lease. Equipment and
vehicles are depreciated over periods up to a maximum of ten years.

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments, which comprise investments in subsidiary undertakings, are stated at cost and reviewed for impairment if there are indicators
that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

* External debtors
Debtors do not carry interest and are stated initially at their fair value. The company provides for bad debts based upon an analysis of those that
are past due in accordance with local conditions and past default experience.

» Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts
Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts comprise cash balances and call deposits.

* Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing bank overdrafts, loans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are recognised in the profit and loss account on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method.

* Externadl creditors
Creditors are not interest-bearing and are stated initially at their fair value.

*  Amounts owed to/from subsidiary undertakings
Amounts owed to/from subsidiary undertakings bear interest at prevailing market rates.

*  Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with its treasury policy, the company only holds or issues derivative financial instruments to manage the group’s exposure to financial
risk, not for trading purposes. Such financial risk includes the interest risk on the group’s variable-rate borrowings, the fair value risk on the group’s
fixed-rate borrowings, commodity risk in relation to its diesel consumption and foreign exchange risk on transactions, on the translation of the
group’s results and on the translation of the group’s net assets measured in foreign currencies. The company manages these risks through a range
of derivative financial instruments, including interest rate swaps, fixed rate agreements, commodity swaps, commodity options, forward foreign
exchange contracts and currency swaps.
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a Significant accounting policies continued

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting continued

Derivative financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet as financial assets or liabilities at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account, unless they qualify for hedge accounting. Where derivatives do qualify for hedge
accounting, the treatment of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged as described below:

*  Fair value hedge
The change in the fair value of both the hedging instrument and the related portion of the hedged item is recognised immediately in the profit
and loss account.

* Cash flow hedge
The change in the fair value of the portion of the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in equity and
subsequently recycled to the profit and loss account when the hedged cash flow impacts the profit and loss account. The ineffective portion of
the fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Leases

Annual rentals payable or receivable under operating leases are charged or credited to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the company are presented in sterling, its functional currency. Transactions in currencies other than sterling are translated
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities which are denominated
in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value which are denominated
in other currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items measured at historical
cost denominated in other currencies are not retranslated. Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in the profit and loss account.

Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all material timing differences that have originated, but not reversed, by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
is measured on a non-discounted basis at tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences reverse based on tax
rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised where their recovery is considered
more likely than not in that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Pensions

The company participates in multi-employer pension schemes in the UK, which provide benefits based on final pensionable pay. The company is
unable to identify its share of the schemes' assets and liabilities on a consistent and reasonable basis. In accordance with FRS 17 Retirement Benefits,
the company treats the schemes as if they were defined contribution schemes and recognises charges as and when contributions are due to the
scheme. Details of the schemes are included in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share-based payments

The company grants equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. The fair value of share-based payments is determined at the date
of grant and expensed, with a corresponding increase in equity on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the company's estimate

of the shares that will eventually vest. The amount expensed is adjusted over the vesting period for changes in the estimate of the number of shares
that will eventually vest, save for changes resulting from any market-related performance conditions.

The fair value of share-based payments granted in the form of options is measured by the use of the Black-Scholes valuation technique, adjusted for
future dividend receipts and for any market-related performance conditions. When share options are exercised the resulting entries are to increase
share capital and share premium for the new shares issued.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period in which they are paid. Dividends proposed but not declared are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial guarantees

The company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within the group. The company treats
such contracts as a contingent liability unless and until such time as it becomes probable that the company will be required to make a payment
under the guarantee.

Own shares held by employee benefit trust

Transactions of the company-sponsored employee benefit trust are included in the parent company financial statements. In particular; the trust's
purchases of shares in the company are debited directly to equity.
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b Tangible fixed assets

Land and Equipment
buildings and vehicles Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At | January 2009 2.5 8.3 10.8
Additions at cost 0.7 [.6 2.3
At 31 December 2009 32 99 13.1
Depreciation
At | January 2009 (1.0 (1.5) (2.6)
Charge for the year 04) 0.2 0.6)
At 31 December 2009 (1.5) (1.7) (B2
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 1.7 8.2 9.9
At 31 December 2008 |4 6.8 8.2
The net book value of land and buildings comprises short leasehold buildings (under 50 years).
c Fixed asset investments
The following are included in the net book value of fixed asset investments:
Total
Subsidiary undertakings £m
Shares at cost:
At | January 2009 2,613.1
Additions 1,375.7
Disposals (8479)
At 31 December 2009 3,140.9

The increase in carrying value of subsidiary undertakings in the year is mainly due to a reorganisation of the legal structure in respect of some of the
company's subsidiaries in which transfers were reflected at market values. Full details of significant investments held by the parent company and the
group are detailed in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

d Debtors
2009 2008
£m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,489.9 3,001.3
Other debtors 53.5 55.2
Prepayments and accrued income 2.4 14
Derivative financial instruments at fair value 69.6 1829
Total debtors 2,615.4 3,240.8

Included within derivative financial instruments at fair value is £57.6m due after more than one year (2008: £143.6m). See note (g) for further details.

Included in other debtors is £7.0m (2008: £nil) with regard to deferred tax comprised as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m

Accelerated capital allowances (0.5) -
Employee benefits 23 =
Changes in fair value of hedging derivatives 5.2 -

Total deferred tax 7.0 -

115
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d Debtors continued

The reconciliation of deferred tax balances is as follows:

Total
£m
At | January 2009 (7.8)
Charged to profit and loss 8.2
Charged to equity in relation to changes in fair value of hedging derivatives (1.7)
Transferred to current tax 8.3
At 31 December 2009 7.0
e Borrowings (unsecured)
The unsecured borrowings are in the following currencies:
2009 2008
£m £m
Sterling 506.7 94.0
Euro 305.6 349.0
US dollar 866.0 1,104.9
Total unsecured borrowings 1,678.3 1,547.9
The payment profile of the unsecured borrowings is as follows:
2009 2008
£m £m
Repayable within one year 90.8 -
Repayable within two to five years 584.1 6964
Repayable after five years 1,003.4 851.5
Total unsecured borrowings 1,678.3 1,5479
Undrawn committed facilities mature as follows:
2009 2008
£Em £m
Within two to five years 614.7 3504
Total undrawn committed facilities 614.7 3504

Borrowings consist of £561.6m of floating rate bank loans (2008: £646.0m) and £1,116.7m of fixed rate loan notes (2008: £901.9m). Bank overdrafts,
bank loans, loan notes issued in July 2008 and May 2009 are stated at amortised cost. The loan notes issued in March 2007 are stated at amortised
cost recalculated at an effective interest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a fair value hedge relationship. The directors believe
the fair value of the company’s bank overdrafts, bank loans and the loan notes issued in March 2007, calculated from market prices, approximates to
their book value. US$265m (£164.1m) of the loan notes issued in July 2008 have a fair value market gain of £29.9m. The fair value of the remaining

notes approximates to their book value.

Borrowing at floating rates exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The management of this risk is detailed in note (h).

There were no financial liabilities upon which no interest is paid.

f Other creditors
2009 2008
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade creditors 2.8 [l
Amounts owed to group undertakings 3,156.1 3,383.8
Other taxation and social security costs 2.0 1.8
Other creditors 4.6 12.7
Accruals and deferred income 38.1 25.6
Derivative financial instruments at fair value 1.9 38.6
Total creditors — amounts falling due within one year 3,215.5 3463.6
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Derivative financial instruments at fair value 7.3 159
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f Other creditors continued

Included in other creditors is £nil (2008: £7.8m) with regard to deferred tax comprised as follows:

2009 2008
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances - 09
Employee benefits - 29)
Changes in fair value of hedging derivatives - 9.8
Total deferred tax - 7.8
See note (d) for the reconciliation of deferred tax balances.
g Derivative financial instruments
The carrying values of derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below:
Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Forward foreign exchange contracts 0.1 28.6 0.1 28.6
Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 29.9 60.9 - -
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - 18.6 24.8
Interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges 39.1 923 - —
Commaodity swaps 0.5 Il 0.5 Il
69.6 1829 19.2 54.5
Amounts falling due after more than one year (57.6) (143.6) (7.3) (159)
Amounts falling due within one year 12.0 393 1.9 386

Derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value, based upon market prices where available or otherwise on discounted cash flow valuations.
The mark to market valuation of the derivatives has decreased by £78.0m (2008: increase £130.9m) during the year.

The interest rate, cross currency and commodity swaps which qualify as cash flow hedges have the following maturities:

Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m

Within one year 0.5 [l 3.0 32
In the second year - = 5.8 4.0
In the third year - = 8.0 7.8
In the fourth year 7.2 - 1.8 10.0
In the fifth year or greater 22.7 609 0.5 09
Total carrying value of cash flow hedges 30.4 62.0 19.1 259

Projected settlement of cash flows (including accrued interest) associated with derivatives that are cash flow hedges:

Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m

Within one year 0.8 34 13.3 10.6
In the second year 0.3 1.6 6.1 10.1
In the third year 0.4 1.6 1.6 4.3
In the fourth year 79 1.6 - 14
In the fifth year or greater 21.3 54.6 - =

Total cash flows 30.7 62.8 21.0 264
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h Financial risk

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business in many currencies. The group presents its consolidated financial statements in sterling and it is in consequence subject
to foreign exchange risk due to the translation of the results and net assets of its foreign subsidiaries. The company therefore hedges a substantial
portion of the group’s exposure to fluctuations in the translation into sterling of its overseas net assets by holding loans in foreign currencies.
Translation adjustments arising on the translation of foreign currency loans are recognised in the profit and loss account.

The company no longer uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge the residual portion of net assets not hedged by way of loans. This foreign exchange
hedging program was terminated in February 2009. The company believes cash flow should not be put at risk by these instruments in order to
preserve the carrying value of net assets, given the changed liquidity environment post the global credit crisis.

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £134.2m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency risk on US$265m of the US Private Placement
notes issued in July 2008, effectively fixing the sterling value on this portion of debt at an exchange rate of 1.9750.

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

Borrowing at floating rates as described in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements exposes the group to cash flow interest rate risk, which
the company manages within policy limits approved by the directors. Interest rate swaps and, to a limited extent, forward rate agreements are utilised
to fix the interest rate on a proportion of borrowings on a reducing scale over forward periods up to a maximum of five years. At 3|1 December 2009
the nominal value of such contracts was £170.3m (in respect of US dollar) (2008: £246.9m) and £217.7m (in respect of euro) (2008: £271.7m), their
weighted average interest rate was 5.0% (US dollar) (2008: 5.0%) and 3.7% (euro) (2008: 3.8%), and their weighted average period to maturity was
two and a quarter years. All the interest rate hedging instruments are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements in their fair
value have been deferred in equity.

The US Private Placement market is predominantly a fixed rate market, with investors looking for a fixed rate return over the life of the loan notes.
At the time of the first issue in March 2007, the company was comfortable with the proportion of floating rate exposure not hedged by interest

rate swaps and therefore rather than take on a higher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floating swaps effectively converting the fixed
coupon on the Private Placement to a floating rate. Following the swaps the resulting average coupon on the US Private Placement is LIBOR + 60bps.
These swaps have been documented as fair value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed interest loan notes, with the movements in their fair
value posted to profit and loss at the same time as the movement in the fair value of the hedged item.

The interest on the US Private Placement notes issued in July 2008 was kept at fixed rate.

Commodity risk and commodity swaps

The group’s principal commodity risk relates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices, particularly affecting its cash solutions businesses. The company
acts as a market intermediary, arranging commodity swaps and commodity options with its relationship banks with back to back deals on identical
terms with its subsidiaries to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatility.

Counterparty credit risk
The company’s strategy for credit risk management is to set minimum credit ratings for counterparties and monitor these on a regular basis.

For treasury-related transactions, the policy limits the aggregate credit risk assigned to a counterparty. The utilisation of a credit limit is calculated by
applying a weighting to the notional value of each transaction outstanding with each counterparty based on the type and duration of the transaction.
The total mark to market value outstanding with each counterparty is closely monitored. For short-term transactions (under one year), at inception of
the transaction, the financial counterparty must be investment grade rated by either the Standard & Poor’s or Moody's rating agencies. For long-term
transactions, at inception of the transaction, the financial counterparty must have a minimum rating of A+/Al from Standard & Poor's or Moody's.

Treasury transactions are dealt with the company's relationship banks, all of which have a strong investment grade rating. At 31 December 2009 the
largest two counterparty exposures related to treasury transactions were £27.6m and £14.Im and both were held with institutions with long-term
Moody's credit ratings of Aa3. These exposures represent 40% (2008: 40%) and 20% (2008: 24%) of the carrying values of derivative financial
instruments, with a fair value gain at the balance sheet date. Both of these banks had significant loans outstanding to G4S plc at 3| December 2009.

The company participates in the group’s multi-currency notional pooling cash management system with a wholly-owned subsidiary of a Aa3 rated
bank. There is legal right of set off under the pooling agreement.

i Provisions for liabilities and charges

Onerous

contracts

£m

At | January 2009 20
Utilisation of provisions 0.8)
At 31 December 2009 1.2

The onerous contracts provision comprises a provision against future liabilities for all properties sub-let at a shortfall and for long-term idle properties.
The provision is based on the value of future net cash outflows relating to rent, rates, service charges and costs of marketing the properties.



GA4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009
Overview

Business review

Governance

Financial statements 119 .

Shareholder information

j Share premium and reserves

Share Profit and Own

premium loss account shares Total

£m £m £m £m

At | January 2009 2559 123.6 (1.8) 3677
Retained profit - 128.3 - 128.3

Changes in fair value of hedging derivatives = 6.1 = 6.1
Shares issued 2.2 - - 2.2
Dividends declared - 94.2) - (942
Own shares purchased = = (99) (99)
Own shares awarded = (9.5) 9.5 =

Equity-settled transactions = 7.1 = 7.
Tax on equity movements - (1.7) - (1.7)
At 31 December 2009 258.1 159.7 (12.2) 405.6

k Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date, the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which expire as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m

Within one year 0.1 0.
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1.1 04
After more than five years 0.4 0.8
Total operating lease commitments 1.6 I3

| Auditor’s remuneration

Fees paid to KPMG Audit Plc and its associates for non-audit services to the company itself are not disclosed in its individual accounts because the
company’s consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.

m Staff costs and employees

2009 2008

Number Number

The average monthly number of employees of the company during the year was: 314 190
Total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments, were as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m

Wages and salaries 37.5 25.6

Social security costs 2.8 24

Pension costs 2.1 1.7

Total staff costs 42.4 297

n Share-based payments

The group has two types of equity-settled, share-based payment schemes in place: (1) share options previously held by employees over Securicor plc
shares and rolled over to G4S plc shares with the acquisition of that business on |9 July 2004, and (2) conditional allocations of G4S plc shares.
Disclosures relevant to the company are presented within note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

o Related party transactions

Certain disclosures relevant to the company are presented within note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. Company transactions with group
undertakings primarily consist of royalty charges, central service charges, group insurance recharges and loan transactions.

The only material transaction with a non-wholly owned group undertaking during the year was a £36.2m loan repayment from G4S Security Services
(SA) (Pty) Limited with the outstanding loan recoverable balance at 31 December 2009 being £0.2m (2008: £36.4m).
p Contingent liabilities

To help secure cost effective finance facilities for its subsidiaries, the company issues guarantees to some of its finance providers. At 3|1 December
2009 guarantees totalling £387.3m (2008: £649.5m) were in place in support of such facilities.

The company is included in a group registration for UK VAT purposes and is therefore jointly and severally liable for all other UK group companies’
unpaid debts in this connection. The liability of the UK group registration at 3|1 December 2009 totalled £12.1m (2008: £25.8m).
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document or the action you should take, you should immediately consult
your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent professional adviser authorised pursuant to the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares in G4S plc, please send this
notice and the accompanying documents to the person through whom the sale or transfer was effected so that it can be
passed on to the purchaser or transferee.

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of G4S plc will be held at [ronmongers' Hall, Barbican, London EC2Y 8AA on Friday, 28 May
2010 at 2.00pm in order to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions:

Resolutions | to 9 and 12 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions. Resolutions 10, I, 13 and 14 will be proposed as special resolutions.

I To receive the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the reports of the directors and auditor thereon.
To receive and approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2009.

To confirm and declare dividends.

To re-elect Alf Duch-Pedersen, a director (and member of the Nomination Committee) who is retiring by rotation.

To re-elect Lord Condon, a director (and member of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees) who is retiring by rotation.

To re-elect Nick Buckles, a director who is retiring by rotation.

To re-elect Mark Elliott, a director (and member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees) who is retiring by rotation.

® N U s W

To re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditor of the Company from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next general meeting at
which accounts are laid before the shareholders, and to authorise the directors to fix their remuneration.

9. That the directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to and in accordance with section 551 of the Companies
Act 2006 (“the 2006 Act"”) to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the company or grant rights to subscribe for; or convert
any security into, shares in the Company:

(i) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £117,540,000; and

(if) comprising equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the 2006 Act) up to a further aggregate nominal amount of £117,540,000 provided
that they are offered by way of a rights issue to holders of ordinary shares on the register of members at such record date(s) as the directors
may determine where the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of the ordinary shareholders are proportionate (as nearly
as may be practicable) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held or deemed to be held by them on any such record date(s), subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements,
record dates, shares represented by depositary receipts, legal or practical problems arising under the laws of any territory or the requirements
of any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter;

provided that this authority shall expire on the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, save that the Company shall be entitled
to make offers or agreements before the expiry of such authority which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry
and the directors shall be entitled to allot relevant securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if this authority had not expired; and all
unexpired authorities granted previously to the directors to allot relevant securities under section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (““the 1985 Act”)
shall cease to have effect at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (save to the extent that the same are exercisable pursuant to section
551(7) of the 2006 Act by reason of any offer or agreement made prior to the date of this resolution which would or might require shares to be
allotted or rights to be granted on or after that date).

10. That the directors be and are hereby empowered, pursuant to section 570 of the 2006 Act, subject to the passing of Resolution 9 above, to allot
equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the 2006 Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by Resolution 9 above as if section 56|
of the 2006 Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to:

(i) the allotment of equity securities in connection with an offer or issue of equity securities (but in the case of the authority granted under
paragraph (ii) of Resolution 9 above, by way of rights issue only) to or in favour of the holders of shares on the register of members at such
record date(s) as the directors may determine where the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of the shareholders are
proportionate (as nearly as may be practicable) to the respective numbers of shares held by them on any such record date(s), but subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements, treasury shares,
record dates, shares represented by depositary receipts, legal or practical problems arising under the laws of any territory or the requirements
of any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter; and

(i) the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (i) above) of equity securities pursuant to the authority granted under Resolution 9(i)
above, up to a maximum nominal amount of £17,630,000;

and shall expire on the expiry of the general authority conferred by Resolution 9 above unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the
Company in general meeting, save that the company shall be entitled to make offers or agreements before the expiry of such power which would
or might require equity securities to be allotted, or treasury shares to be sold, after such expiry and the directors shall be entitled to allot equity
securities or sell treasury shares pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.

All previous unutilised authorities under section 95 of the 1985 Act shall cease to have effect at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting.
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[1. That the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the 2006 Act, to make market
purchases (within the meaning of section 693(4) of the 2006 Act) of ordinary shares of 25p each in the capital of the Company on such terms and
in such manner as the directors may from time to time determine, provided that:

(i) the maximum number of such shares which may be purchased is 141,000,000
(i) the minimum price which may be paid for each such share is 25p (exclusive of all expenses);

(iii) the maximum price which may be paid for each such share is an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for an
ordinary share in the Company as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days immediately preceding
the day on which such share is contracted to be purchased (exclusive of expenses); and

(iv) this authority shall, unless previously revoked or varied, expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in
2011 (except in relation to the purchase of such shares the contract for which was entered into before the expiry of this authority and which
might be executed wholly or partly after such expiry).

I2. That in accordance with sections 366 and 367 of the 2006 Act, the Company and all companies which are subsidiaries of the Company during the
period when this resolution 12 has effect be and are hereby unconditionally authorised to:

(i) make political donations to political parties or independent election candidates not exceeding £50,000 in total;
(i) make political donations to political organisations other than political parties not exceeding £50,000 in total; and
(iii) incur political expenditure not exceeding £50,000 in total;

(as such terms are defined in the 2006 Act) during the period beginning with the date of the passing of this resolution and ending on 27 November
2011 or, if sooner. at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2011 provided that the authorised sum referred
to in paragraphs (i), (i) and (iii) above may be comprised of one or more amounts in different currencies which, for the purposes of calculating the
said sum, shall be converted into pounds sterling at the exchange rate published in the London edition of the Financial Times on the date on which
the relevant donation is made or expenditure incurred (or the first business day thereafter) or, if earlier, on the day in which the Company enters
into any contract or undertaking in relation to the same.

|3. That, with immediate effect:

(i) the Company’s Articles of Association be amended by deleting all the provisions of the Company's Memorandum of Association which, by
virtue of section 28 of the 2006 Act, are to be treated as provisions of the Company's Articles of Association; and

(i) the Articles of Association produced to the meeting and initialled by the chairman of the meeting for the purposes of identification be adopted
as the Articles of Association of the Company in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the Company’s existing Articles of Association.

[4. That a general meeting of the Company, other than an Annual General Meeting, may be called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice.

By order of the board

Peter David
Secretary The Manor
24 March 2010 Manor Royal
Crawley
West Sussex RHIO 9UN
Company No. 4992207
Notes

. Members are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of their rights to attend and to speak and vote on their behalf at the meeting.
A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the Annual General Meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the
rights attached to a different share or shares held by that shareholder. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. A proxy form which
may be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions accompanies this notice.

2. To be valid, any proxy form or other instrument appointing a proxy must be received by post or (during normal business hours only) by hand at
Capita Registrars, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU, in each case no later than 2.00pm on 26 May 2010.

3. The return of a completed proxy form, other such instrument or any CREST Proxy Instruction (as described in paragraphs 8 and 9 below) will not
prevent a shareholder attending the Annual General Meeting and voting in person if he/she wishes to do so.

4. Any person to whom this notice is sent who is a person nominated under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information rights
(@ "Nominated Person”) may, under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she was nominated, have a right to be
appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for the Annual General Meeting. If a Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment
right or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a right to give instructions to the shareholder as to the exercise of
voting rights.

5. The statement of the rights of shareholders in relation to the appointment of proxies in paragraph | above does not apply to Nominated Persons.
The rights described in this paragraph can only be exercised by shareholders of the Company.

6. To be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (and for the purpose of the determination by the Company of the votes they may
cast), shareholders must be registered in the Register of Members of the Company at 5.30pm on 26 May 2010 (or, in the event of any adjournment,
on the date which is two working days before the time of the adjourned meeting). Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant deadline
shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend and vote at the meeting.

7. As at 23 March 2010 (being the last business day prior to the publication of this Notice), the Company’s issued share capital consists of 1,410,568,639
ordinary shares, carrying one vote each. Therefore, the total voting rights in the Company as at 23 March 2010 are 1,410,568,639.
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8. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so by using the
procedures described in the CREST Manual (available via www.euroclearcom/CREST). CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored
members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

9. In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a “CREST Proxy
Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications, and must contain the information
required for such instruction, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or
is an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the
issuer's agent (ID RAIO) by 2.00pm on 26 May 2010. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the time
stamp applied to the message by the CREST Application Host) from which the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST
in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to
the appointee through other means.

10. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors, or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does
not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system timings and limitations will, therefore, apply in relation
to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or; if the CREST member is a CREST
personal member; or sponsored member, or has appointed a voting service provider, to procure that his or her CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time.
In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting system providers are referred, in particular; to those
sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

[1. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations 2001.

12. Any corporation which is a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a
member provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares.

13. Under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 members meeting the threshold requirements set out in that section have the right to require the
Company to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to: (i) the audit of the Company's accounts (including the auditor’s
report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the Annual General Meeting; or (i) any circumstance connected with an auditor
of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports were laid in accordance with section 437
of the Companies Act 2006. The Company may not require the shareholders requesting any such website publication to pay its expenses in
complying with sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006. Where the Company is required to place a statement on a website under section
527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must forward the statement to the Company's auditor not later than the time when it makes the statement
available on the website. The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any statement that the Company has been
required under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website.

[4. Any member attending the meeting has the right to ask questions. The Company must cause to be answered any such question relating to the
business being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given if (@) to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the
meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential information, (b) the answer has already been given on a website in the form of an answer to a
question, or (¢) it is undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered.

15. A copy of this notice, and other information required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found at www.g4s.com.

[6. A copy of the current articles of association and the proposed new articles of association that reflect the amendments proposed by Resolution 13
will be available for inspection during normal business hours (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) at the offices of G4S plc,
The Manor, Manor Royal, Crawley, West Sussex RHI0 9UN up until the close of the meeting. Copies will also be available at the offices of Herbert
Smith LLP, Exchange House, Primrose Street, London EC2A 2HS up until the close of the meeting and on the company’s website at www.g4s.com.
A copy will also be available at Ironmongers' Hall, Barbican, London EC2Y 8AA from |5 minutes prior to the meeting until its conclusion.

I7. Any electronic address or web site address is provided in this Notice of Meeting solely for the purpose stated expressly herein and may not be
used to communicate with the Company other than for such purpose.


http:www.g4s.com
http:www.g4s.com
www.euroclear.com/CREST
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The board of G4S plc considers the resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting are likely to promote the success of the company
and are in the best interests of the company and its shareholders as a whole. The directors unanimously recommend that you vote in favour of the
resolutions as they intend to do in respect of their own beneficial holdings.

Explanatory notes in relation to certain of the business to be conducted at the AGM are set out below.

I. Authority to allot shares (Resolution 9)
Resolution 9 seeks shareholder approval for the directors to be authorised to allot shares.

At the last AGM of the company held on 26 May 2009, the directors were given authority to allot ordinary shares in the capital of the company up
to a maximum nominal amount of £234,700,000 representing approximately 66% of the company’s then issued ordinary share capital. This authority
expires at the end of this year's AGM. Of this amount 469,400,000 shares (representing approximately 33% of the company’s issued ordinary share
capital) could only be allotted pursuant to a rights issue.

Resolution 9 will, if passed, renew this authority to allot on broadly the same terms as last year's resolution but the resolution has been updated to
reflect that authority is being given under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the 2006 Act”) (rather than section 80 of the Companies Act
[985) and to reflect a change in the language used in the 2006 Act. This change does not affect the substance of these resolutions.

The board considers it appropriate that the directors be granted a similar authority to allot shares in the capital of the company up to a maximum nominal
amount of £235,080,000 representing approximately 66% of the company's issued ordinary share capital as at 23 March 2010 (the latest practicable date
prior to publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting). Of this amount, 470,160,000 shares (representing approximately 33% of the company’s
issued ordinary share capital) can only be allotted pursuant to a rights issue. The power will last until the conclusion of the next AGM in 201 1.

The intention of the directors is to allot shares upon the exercise of options granted over Securicor plc shares and rolled over into options over the
company’s shares. The directors do not have any other present intention of exercising this authority.

As at the date of the Notice of Annual General Meeting the company does not hold any ordinary shares in the capital of the company in treasury.
However, the 5,543,818 shares held within the G4S Employee Benefit Trust and referred to on page 104 (hote 37 to the consolidated financial
statements) are accounted for as treasury shares.

2. Disapplication of statutory pre-emption rights (Resolution 10)

Resolution 10 seeks shareholder approval to give the directors authority to allot shares in the capital of the company pursuant to the authority
granted under Resolution 9 above for cash without complying with the pre-emption rights in the 2006 Act in certain circumstances. This authority
will permit the directors to allot:

(@) shares up to a nominal amount of £235,080,000 (representing approximately 66% of the company's issued share capital) on an offer to existing
shareholders. However unless the shares are allotted pursuant to a rights issue (rather than an open offer), the directors may only allot shares up
to a nominal amount of £117,540,000 (representing approximately 33% of the company's issued share capital) (in each case subject to any
adjustments, such as for fractional entitlements and overseas shareholders, as the directors see fit); and

(b) shares up to a maximum nominal value of £17,630,000, representing approximately 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the company as at
25 March 2010 (the latest practicable date prior to publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting) otherwise than in connection with an
offer to existing shareholders.

As with Resolution 9, the terms of Resolution 10 are broadly the same as last year’s resolution but the resolution has been updated to reflect that it is
being passed pursuant to section 570 of the 2006 Act rather than section 95 of the Companies Act 1985.

The directors confirm their intention to follow the provisions of the Pre-emption Group’s Statement of Principles regarding cumulative usage of
authorities within a rolling three-year period. The Principles provide that companies should not issue shares for cash representing more than 7.5% of
the company's issued share capital in any rolling three-year period, other than to existing shareholders, without prior consultation with shareholders.

3. Purchase of own shares (Resolution 1)

Resolution |1 seeks to renew the company’s authority to buy back its own ordinary shares in the market as permitted by the 2006 Act. The authority
limits the number of shares that could be purchased to a maximum of 141,000,000 (representing a little less than 10% of the company's issued
ordinary share capital as at 23 March 2010 (the latest practicable date prior to publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting)) and sets
minimum and maximum prices. This authority will expire at the conclusion of the company’s AGM in 2011.

The directors have no present intention of exercising the authority to purchase the company’s ordinary shares but will keep the matter under review,
taking into account the financial resources of the company, the company’s share price and future funding opportunities. The authority will be exercised
only if the directors believe that to do so would result in an increase in earnings per share and would be in the interests of shareholders generally.

No shares were purchased pursuant to the equivalent authority granted to the directors at the company’s last AGM.

As at 23 March 2010 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting), there were options over 100,000
ordinary shares in the capital of the company representing 0.0071% of the company's issued ordinary share capital. If the authority to purchase the
company’s ordinary shares was exercised in full, these options would represent 0.0078% of the company's issued ordinary share capital.
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4. Political donations (Resolution 12)

Resolution 12 is designed to deal with the rules on political donations contained in the 2006 Act. Under the rules, political donations to any political
parties, independent election candidates or political organisations or the incurring of political expenditure are prohibited unless authorised by
shareholders in advance. What constitutes a political donation, a political party, a political organisation, or political expenditure is not easy to decide,
as the legislation is capable of wide interpretation. Sponsorship, subscriptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for employees fulfilling public duties,
and support for bodies representing the business community in policy review or reform, may fall within this.

Therefore, notwithstanding that the company has not made political donations requiring shareholder authority in the past, and has no intention
either now or in the future of making any such political donation or incurring any such political expenditure in respect of any political party, political
organisation or independent election candidate, the board has decided to put forward Resolution 12. This will allow the company to support the
community and put forward its views to wider business and government interests without running the risk of being in breach of the law. As permitted
under the 2006 Act, Resolution 12 also covers political donations made, or political expenditure incurred, by any subsidiaries of the company.

5. Adoption of new articles of association (Resolution 13)

The company proposes to adopt new articles of association (the “New Articles”) at the 2010 AGM. These incorporate amendments to the
current articles of association to reflect the changes in company law brought about by the 2006 Act, which replaced the Companies Act 1985,
was implemented in stages and was fully in force by | October 2009. In addition, the Companies (Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 (the
““Shareholders’ Rights Regulations”) came into force on 3 August 2009 and amended certain provisions of the 2006 Act relating to certain rights
of shareholders at meetings of the company.

The principal changes in the New Articles relate to electronic communications, shareholder meetings and resolutions, the company’s constitution and
share capital. The New Articles also include some other modernising and clarificatory wording including, where appropriate, tracking the wording of
the new model form articles for public companies contained in Schedule 3 to the Companies (Model Articles) Regulations 2008 (the “model form
articles”) which replace the Table A articles under the Companies Act 1985 on which many of the company’s current articles are based.

Under the 2006 Act all provisions of the company’s memorandum, but most significantly the objects clause, were deemed to form part of the
company’s articles from | October 2009 including, in particular, the statement of objects and the statement of authorised share capital. The 2006
Act does not require a company to set out its objects: it provides that, unless the articles state otherwise, a company’s objects will be unrestricted.
The 2006 Act also removes the requirement for a company to place limits on its authorised share capital.

By adopting the New Articles, which do not contain an objects clause or the authorised share capital statement, the company will remove from its
articles these provisions, which would otherwise be deemed to form part of the company’s articles under section 28 of the 2006 Act.

The principal changes to the articles of association can be summarised as follows:

(@) The company’s objects
The 2006 Act significantly reduces the constitutional significance of a company’s memorandum. The provisions governing the operations of the
company are currently set out in both its memorandum of association and its articles of association. Under the 2006 Act, the memorandum no
longer contains an objects clause and simply records the names of the subscribers and the number of shares which each subscriber agreed to
take in the company. Under section 28 of the 2006 Act, the objects clause and all other provisions in the memorandum are treated as
part of the articles with effect from | October 2009 but the company can remove these provisions by special resolution. Unless the articles
provide otherwise, the company’s objects will be unrestricted. The company is proposing to remove its objects clause together with all other
provisions of its memorandum which, by virtue of the 2006 Act, are treated as forming part of the company’s articles of association as of
I October 2009. Resolution I3 confirms the removal of these provisions and adopts the New Articles.

Limited liability (Article 3)

Under the 2006 Act, the memorandum of association also no longer contains a clause stating that the liability of the members of a company

is limited. For existing companies, this statement is automatically treated as having moved into the articles on | October 2009. As noted above,
Resolution 13(i) confirms the removal, from the company’s articles of association, of the provisions of the company’s memorandum of association
which are treated as forming part of the company’s articles of association by virtue of section 28 of the 2006 Act, which includes the statement
of limited liability. An explicit statement of the members’ limited liability is therefore included in the New Articles.

b
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(c) Authorised share capital and unissued shares
The 2006 Act abolishes the concept of authorised share capital and, under the 2006 Act, the memorandum of association no longer contains
a statement of the company’s authorised share capital. For existing companies, this statement is deemed to be a provision of the company's
articles of association setting out the maximum amount of shares that may be allotted by the company. The adoption of the New Articles
by the company will have the effect of removing this provision relating to the maximum amount. Directors will still need to obtain the usual
shareholders' authorisation in order to allot shares, except in respect of employee share schemes.

References to authorised share capital and to unissued shares have therefore been removed from the New Articles.

(d) Redeemable shares (Article 7)
Under the 2006 Act, the articles of association need not include the terms on which redeemable shares may be redeemed. The directors
may determine the terms, conditions and manner of redemption of redeemable shares provided they are authorised to do so by the articles.
The New Articles contain such authorisation. The company currently has no plans to issue redeemable shares but if it did so the directors
would need shareholders’ authority to issue new shares in the usual way.

(e) Share certificates (Article 15)
The New Articles contain new provisions for the issue of consolidated share certificates, in line with the model form articles.

(f) Transfer of shares (Former Article 41)
The provision which gave the ability to suspend the registration of transfers of shares for periods not exceeding 30 days in any one year has
been removed from the New Articles as there is no ability under the 2006 Act to close the register.
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() Authority to purchase own shares, consolidate and sub-divide shares, and reduce share capital (Article 44 and Former Articles 52 and 53)
Under the Companies Act 1985, a company required specific authorisations in its articles of association to purchase its own shares, to consolidate
or sub-divide its shares and to reduce its share capital. Under the 2006 Act, public companies do not require specific authorisations in their
articles of association to undertake these actions, but shareholder authority is still required. Amendments have been made to the New Articles
to reflect these changes.

(h) Notice of general meetings (Articles 47 and 53)
The provisions in the New Articles dealing with the convening of general meetings and the length of notice required to convene general
meetings are in line with the relevant provisions of the 2006 Act (as amended by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations). The Shareholders'
Rights Regulations amended the 2006 Act to require the company to give 21 clear days’ notice of general meetings unless the company has
passed a special resolution reducing the notice period to not less than 4 days and the company offers members an electronic voting facility.

The amendment to Article 53 deals with situations where, because of a postal strike or similar situation beyond the control of the company, a
notice of meeting is not received by a shareholder. The amendment will ensure that such failure does not invalidate proceedings at the meeting
in question.

(i) Adjournments (Article 55)
The Shareholders’ Rights Regulations add a provision to the 2006 Act which requires that, when a general meeting is adjourned due to lack
of quorum, at least ten days’ notice must be given to reconvene the meeting. The New Articles include amendments to the provisions dealing
with notice of adjourned meetings to make them consistent with this new requirement.

(j) Attending and speaking at meetings (Article 58)
Article 58 of the New Articles now provides that the chairman of the meeting may permit non-members or persons who are not entitled
to exercise the rights of members to attend and, at the chairman'’s discretion, speak at a general meeting.

(k) Participation in meetings at different places and by electronic means (Articles 59, 60 and 61)
Amendments made to the 2006 Act by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations specifically provide for the holding and conducting of electronic
meetings. The New Articles include amendments to permit the directors to provide greater scope for members to participate in meetings
of the company even if they are not present in person at the principal place where the meeting is being held. The amendments permit the
directors to allow for members to participate not only by attendance at satellite meeting locations, but also by any other electronic means
of participation.

() Removal of chairman’s casting vote (Former Article 82)
Pursuant to changes brought about by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations, a listed company is no longer permitted to allow the chairman
to have a casting vote in the event of an equality of votes. Accordingly, this provision has been removed in the New Articles.

(m) Voting rights (Article 74)
The Shareholders’ Rights Regulations clarify the various powers of proxies and representatives of corporate members in respect of resolutions
taken on a show of hands. Where a proxy has been duly appointed by one member; he or she has one vote on a show of hands unless he or
she has been appointed by more than one member in which case the proxy has one vote for and one vote against if the proxy has been appointed
by one or more members to vote for the resolution and by one or more other members to vote against the resolution. Where a corporate
member appoints representatives to attend meetings on its behalf, each representative duly appointed by a corporate member has one vote
on a show of hands. If a proxy is instructed by one or more members to vote in one way and is given discretion as to how to vote by one or
more other members (and wishes to use that discretion to vote in the other way) he also has one vote for and one vote against the resolution.
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Voting record date (Article 75)

In line with a requirement for listed companies introduced by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations, the New Articles include a new provision,
which was not previously in the company's articles of association, dealing with the method for determining which persons are allowed to attend
or vote at a general meeting of the company and how many votes each person may cast. Under this new provision, when convening

a meeting the company may specify a time, not more than 48 hours before the time of the meeting (excluding any part of a day that is not

a working day), by which a person must be entered on the register of members in order to have the right to attend or vote at the meeting.

Validity of proxy votes (Article 79(2))

Following the implementation of the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations, proxies are expressly required to vote in accordance with instructions
given to them by members. The New Articles contain a provision stating that the company is not required to enquire whether a proxy

or corporate representative has voted in accordance with instructions given to him or her and that votes cast by a proxy or corporate
representative will be valid even if he or she has not voted in accordance with his or her instructions.
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(p) Receipt of appointments of proxy and termination of proxy authority (Article 83)
The deadlines for receipt of termination of proxy authority have been brought into line with the deadlines for receipt of proxies. Article 83
also permits the directors to specify, in a notice of meeting, that in determining the time for delivery of proxies, no account shall be taken
of non-working days.

(q) Alternate directors (Article 97)
Article 97(c) makes it clear that an alternate is subject to the same restrictions as the director who appointed him.

(r) Borrowing powers (Article 101)
A number of presentational and descriptive amendments have been made to the borrowing powers provision.

(s) Delegation to persons or committees (Article 102)
Under the company's existing articles of association, the directors may only formally delegate their powers in certain limited ways. Article 102
follows a simplified approach to delegation to modernise the procedure for delegation, allowing the directors to delegate as they decide
appropriate, in line with the approach adopted in the model form articles.
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(t) Retirement of directors by rotation (Article 103)
The New Articles have been redrafted in order to make this provision clearer and to ensure (as far as possible) a regular number of retiring
directors each year, with the number to retire being the number nearest to one-third of the board, excluding those directors who are retiring
and seeking re-election for other reasons. Article 103 continues to comply with Combined Code provision A.7.I which recommends that all
directors should be subject to re-election at intervals of no more than three years.
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Directors” appointments, interests and conflicts of interest (Article |14)

Under the company’s current articles of association, a director may, notwithstanding his or her office as a director of the company, be a
director, officer or employee of any body corporate in which the company is interested — provided that he or she has disclosed to the other
directors the nature and extent of any material interest he or she has.

In the New Articles, this provision has been amended to include provisions relating to confidential information, attendance at board meetings
and availability of board papers to protect a director from being in breach of duty if a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest arises.
These provisions will only apply where the position giving rise to the potential conflict falls within the situations covered by Article [14.

Article 114 has also been further amended for practical reasons so that, where a director is also a director, officer or employee of a body
corporate in which the company is interested, he shall be deemed to have disclosed the nature and extent of this interest to the directors
as required under this provision.
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Procedures regarding board meetings and resolutions in writing (Articles 119 and 124)

The provisions of Article 119 have been amended to make it clear that notice of a board meeting may be given personally, by telephone, in hard
copy or in electronic form. The requirements for giving notice to directors who are not in the United Kingdom have also been clarified. In order to
clarify the procedure for written resolutions of directors, Article 124 has been amended so that, rather than referring to a resolution in writing by
all directors, a resolution in writing will be valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting if executed by all the directors entitled to receive
notice of the meeting and who would have been entitled to vote (and whose vote would have been counted) on a resolution at a meeting.

(w) Permitted interests and voting (Article 125)
Article 125 has been amended to allow a director to vote on a resolution which relates to giving him an indemnity or funding for expenditure
incurred in defending proceedings provided all the other directors have been given or are to be given arrangements on substantially the same
terms. This exception has become a common exception for listed companies to include.

(x) Removal of age limit for directors (Former Article |124)
The provision requiring a director’s age to be disclosed, in a notice of meeting at which that director is to be appointed or reappointed, if that
director has attained the age of 70 years or more, has been removed from the New Articles to reflect the repeal of the previous provisions
regarding directors over 70 from the Companies Act 1985.

(v
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Notices and other communications (Articles 82, 148-157)

The 2006 Act enables companies to communicate with their members by electronic communication to a greater extent than previously
permitted. Article 149 will provide the company with a general power to send or supply any notice, document or information to any member
by a variety of methods — in person, by post or in electronic form (such as by email), or by making it available on the company's website.

In addition to any notice, document or information which is specifically required to be sent or supplied under the 2006 Act, the company

will also be able to send any other document or information to members using this variety of methods.

Article 82 allows the company to permit proxies to be sent or supplied in electronic form and, where the company gives an electronic address
in a form of proxy, shareholders may send the appointment of proxy to that electronic address, subject to any conditions or limitations
specified in the relevant notice of meeting.

The company may ask each member for his or her consent to receive communications from the company via its website. If the member does
not respond to the request for consent within 28 days, the company may take that as consent by the member to receive communications in
this way. If the company sends or supplies any notice, document or information to members by making it available on the company's website,

it must notify each member who has consented (or is deemed to have consented) to receive documents via the website, either by post or by
emalil (if the member has specifically agreed to receive communications in electronic form), that the notice, document or information has been
placed on the website. A member who has consented or is deemed to have consented to receive communications via the website can request
a hard copy of any document at any time. Members can also revoke their consent to receive electronic communications at any time.

In relation to joint holders of shares, Article 149(3) provides that the agreement of the first-named holder on the register of members to
accept notices, documents or information electronically or via a website shall be binding on the other joint holders. Article 149(4) permits

the company not to send or supply any notice, document or information to a member whose registered address is not in the United Kingdom
unless that member gives a non-electronic address in the United Kingdom.

Article 149(6) caters for situations where the provision of corporate information in electronic form or via a website may amount to a breach
of securities laws of another jurisdiction. The company may send hard copies if it needs to restrict the circulation of information in certain
circumstances, such as for US securities law reasons.

Article 152 is the article covering service of notice in the event of a postal strike; it has been amended to allow the company in such circumstances
to serve notices only on those members who receive notices via electronic means, provided that, as before, the company also puts an advert in
two national newspapers and sends a confirmatory hard copy notice if the postal service is available again within seven days of the meeting.

Article 156 deals with notices, documents or information sent by the company to a member which have been returned undelivered on
three consecutive occasions. The member will only be entitled to be sent further communications upon provision of a new postal or
electronic address to the company.

Article 157 is included to deal with the validation of documents in electronic form by members where required by the Articles. In the case
of notices of meetings or proxies, any validation requirements must be specified in the notice.
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(z2) Making and retention of minutes (Article 130)
Article 130 contains a new provision to the effect that minutes must be retained for at least ten years, reflecting the relevant provision of the
2006 Act. (No minimum retention time was specified previously.)

(aa) The seal (Articles 132 and 133)
Article 132 provides an alternative option (in the absence of specific instructions from the directors) for documents (other than share
certificates) to which the seal is affixed to be signed by one authorised person in the presence of a witness, in addition to either two directors
oradirector and the secretary.

6. Period of Notice for Calling General Meetings (Resolution 14)
Resolution 14 is a resolution to allow the company to hold general meetings (other than AGMs) on 14 days’ notice.

Before the introduction of the Shareholders' Rights Regulations on 3 August 2009, the minimum notice period permitted by the 2006 Act for general
meetings (other than AGMs) was 14 days. One of the amendments made to the 2006 Act by the Regulations was to increase the minimum notice
period for general meetings of listed companies to 2| days, but with an ability for companies to reduce this period back to 14 days (other than for
AGMs) provided that two conditions are met. The first condition is that the company offers a facility for shareholders to vote by electronic means.
This condition is met if the company offers a facility, accessible to all shareholders, to appoint a proxy by means of a website. The second condition is
that there is an annual resolution of shareholders approving the reduction of the minimum notice period from 21 days to |4 days.

The board is therefore proposing Resolution 14 as a special resolution to approve 14 days as the minimum period of notice for all general meetings
of the company other than AGMs. The approval will be effective until the company’s next AGM, when it is intended that the approval be renewed.
The board will consider on a case by case basis whether the use of the flexibility offered by the shorter notice period is merited, taking into account
the circumstances, including whether the business of the meeting is time sensitive.



G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009

Group financial record

Employees

With over 595,000 employees, G4S is the second-largest
private employer in the world. We take great pride in the
important work carried out by our global workforce who do
everything they can to ensure the security and safety of our
customers and their assets.

Employee numbers

000s
3063 3958 440.1 5075 5619
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

595.0

+5.9%

in employee numbers
in 2009

26.67%

Annualised labour turnover
rate; down from 27.7% in 2008

Earnings per share

Since 2004 GA4S has generated average earnings per share
growth of 16% on a compounded basis.

Earnings per share (as reported)
pence

+22%

EPS in 2009

95 12 121 133 167 202
®)
+696
EPS CAGR* from 2004
to 2009
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Revenue Revenue (as reported) + | 790/
GA4S revenues have grown by an average of 17.8% over the £m R . (2)009 +7.4%
last five years. The group strategy for enhanced growth has helped evenuestln ( b e on
deliver strong underlying organic growth together with capability 2 EEIBE G SIS [ERe )
adding-acquisitions to help drive growth into the future. e b A i D o
©)
+17.8%
Revenue CAGR* from 2004
to 2009
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
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Profit

Operating profit, defined as profit before interest, tax and
amortisation, has grown by an average of 24.8% over the last five
years. The increase in operating profit has been driven by strong
revenue growth, a strong cost focus and an improving business
mix with our higher growth businesses such as government and
New Markets having higher than the group average margins.

Profit before interest, (@)

tax and amortisation +2 | /)

<25 Fefpeia) PBITA in 2009 (+10.0% on
m

1655 2550 2744 3114 4164 500.3

a constant currency basis)

+24.8%

PBITA CAGR* from 2004
to 2009
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Revenue from New Markets Revenue from New Markets + | 4(7
% (o)

Our global presence, market shares and experience of working
in less developed markets is unrivalled in almost any industry.

[t means that we know what it takes to be successful in these
markets and are well positioned to maximise the structural
growth opportunities as they develop over time.

Revenue from New Markets

in 2009

+3196

Revenue from New Markets
CAGR* from 2004 to 2009

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Actual share performance

Since 2004 the GA4S share price has nearly trebled
outperforming the FTSE 100 (see page 53 for detailed
TSR performance and peer group).

. e GA4Splc === FTSE 100 +27%

G4S share price in 2009

+18%

N
8

from 2004 to 2009

IS)
S

Share price (rebased to G4S)
&
o

50

o

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

G4S share price CAGR*

* CAGR is compound annual growth rate.
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Financial calendar and corporate addresses

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Results announcements

Half-year results — August
Final resutts — March

Dividend payment

Interim paid — 30 October 2009
Final payable — 4 June 2010

Annual General Meeting
28 May 2010

Registered office

The Manor

Manor Royal

Crawley

West Sussex RHI0 9UN
Telephone +44 (0) 1293 554 400

Registered number
4992207

Registrars and transfer office

Capita Registrars
Northern House
Woodsome Park

Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield HD8 0GA

Telephone: within the UK 0871 664 0300 (calls cost |0p per
minute plus network extras, lines are open 8.30am to 5.30pm
Monday to Friday); from outside the UK +44 20 8639 3399

Fax: +44 (0) 1484 600 911
Email: ssd@capitaregistrars.com

Please note that beneficial owners of shares who have been
nominated by the registered holder of those shares to receive
information rights under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006
are required to direct all communications to the registered
holder of their shares rather than to the company or the
company’s registrar.

Auditor

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

8 Salisbury Square
London EC4Y 8BB

Stockbrokers

Deutsche Bank AG London
Winchester House

| Great Winchester Street
London EC2N 2DB

Financial advisors

Greenhill & Co. International LLP
Lansdowne House

57 Berkeley Square

London WIJ 6ER

Deutsche Bank AG London
Winchester House

| Great Winchester Street
London EC2N 2DB

G4S website

www.gds.com


http:www.g4s.com
mailto:ssd@capitaregistrars.com
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GA4S plc
The Manor
Manor Royal
Crawley
West Sussex
RHIO 9UN

Telephone: +44 (0)1293 554 400
Email: investor@g4s.com

Registered in England No: 4992207

View our online report at:
http:/ireports2009.g4s.com
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